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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. So David Tat Man (“Mr. So”) (&ZE X %4 ) , aged 31,
is an executive Director and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. So holds a bachelor degree in surveying
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a member
of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. So joined the Company
as a business development director of a subsidiary of the
Company in January 2014. Mr. So started his career in the
investment department of Savills (Hong Kong) Limited and
then worked in a company that specialized in China property
investment prior to joining the Company. He has extensive
experience in investment in China and Hong Kong. Mr. So
is currently a non-executive director of Chinese Food and
Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272), a company listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lai Yick Fung (“Mr. Lai”) (B8 %4 ) , aged 45, is an
executive Director and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lai joined the Company as a finance director
in April 2015 and was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company, an authorised representative of the Company
pursuant to Rule 5.24 of the GEM Listing Rules in May 2015.
Mr. Lai obtained a Master of Science Degree in Financial
Management in the University of London and a Bachelor
of Arts Degree in Accountancy in Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai had worked
for an international accounting firm and a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong and the United States as senior
management and has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung (“Mr. Au Yeung”) (E\f3 E#R %
4), aged 57, is an executive Director and a director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Au Yeung graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Diploma in
Management Studies and he served in a number of business
roles for different financial institutions in Hong Kong. Before
founding his own business, Mr. Au Yeung was appointed
as the Deputy General Manager of the Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited (stock code: 639), a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, for the period
from April 2002 to July 2005 and has over 20 years of
experience in banking and financial management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith ("Mr. Ng”) (R E L5 4%) , aged
54, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Ng is also
the chairman of the audit committee and members of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Ng graduated from the University of Alberta,
Canada, with a Bachelor's degree in Commerce, majoring
in Accounting. He also obtained a Master of Commerce
degree in Professional Accounting from the University of New
South Wales, Australia and is a Certified Public Accountant
in Australia and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of
management and accounting experience.

Mr. Ng is currently an executive director of China Fortune
Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune”) (stock code: 290),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. As at the date of
this report, the Company is interested in 97,470,000 shares
of China Fortune, while Mr. Ng is not holding any shares of
China Fortune. He is also an executive director of U-RIGHT
International Holdings Limited (“U-RIGHT") (stock code: 627),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, which received
petitions from the Hong Kong Court against the company
and its wholly owned subsidiary, Uni-Capital Limited filed by
Detusche Bank A.G., Hong Kong Branch on 6 October 2008,
before Mr. Ng's tenure of office. The winding-up petition
against U-RIGHT was subsequently dismissed pursuant to the
order of the Hong Kong Court dated 16 September 2013.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (“Mr. Yick"”) (5 ERE L %),
aged 31, was an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Yick is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
members of the audit committee and nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Yick graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Science degree. He
subsequently obtained the Juris Doctor degree as well as the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yick was admitted to practice
law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2012. He has been a
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong since then. Mr.
Yick worked in both international and reputable local law
firms and is currently working as a solicitor with emphasis
on corporate finance practice at a local law firm. Mr. Yick
principally engages in Hong Kong listing projects and assists
in legal compliance of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Zhang Min (“Mr. Zhang”) (RE % %), aged 58,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 23 March 2015. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee, members of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang holds
a Bachelor of Philosophy Degree from the Beijing Normal
College and a Master of Laws Degree from the Renmin
University of China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Zhang was appointed as a non-executive director of
China Fortune on 8 December 2010. He was re-designated
and appointed as chairman of the board, executive director
and a member of the remuneration committee of China
Fortune from 12 April 2011 to 30 June 2014. In addition,
Mr. Zhang was an independent non-executive director of
Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 886), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
from 28 January 2011 to 1 April 2014. He was also the chief
marketing officer of the China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd from 28 April 2011 to 31 August 2013 and was the chief
executive of China Construction Bank Corporation, Hong
Kong Branch, from September 2006 to March 2011 and a
director of CCB International (Holdings) Limited and China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited from August
2006 to March 2011. Both CCB International (Holdings)
Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries of China Construction
Bank Corporation (stock code: 939) (together with its
subsidiaries referred to as the “CCBC Group”), a joint stock
company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability, whose issued shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. He was the president of
the Beijing Banking Association from 2003 to 2005 and the
Beijing Investment Institution from 2001 to 2006. Mr. Zhang
possesses over 20 years’ experience in the banking industry
through his work with the CCBC Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) was principally
engaged in the business of one-stop value chain services,
health care services, property investment, trading of ceramic
products, consumables and agricultural products and grocery
food products.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
recorded revenue (including continuing and discontinued
operations) of approximately HK$66,151,000 (2014:
HK$45,541,000), representing an increase of approximately
45.3% as compared to that of last year. Loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company from continuing
and discontinued operations amounted to approximately
HK$59,214,000 (2014: HK$27,393,000). The basic loss per
share of the Company was approximately HK1.61 cents
(2014: HK1.15 cents).

The Group had successfully widened the asset base by
completing certain acquisition projects during the year, and
a positive impact in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income is expected in the
near future. The Group continued to expand its investment
portfolios by carefully evaluating different business
opportunities in Hong Kong and the PRC with a view to
maximise the shareholders value of the Company.

Health Care Services

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the health
care service segment reported a revenue of approximately
HK$6,403,000 (2014: HK$22,154,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 71.1% as compared to that of last
year.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15
April 2015, the Group had decided to make a strategic move
to cease the health care service business which had been
a major component of the Group’s revenue. This business
segment had recorded sustained loss and given the keen
competition in the market, the Group intended to allocate its
resources to develop other business opportunities, and hence
the decrease in revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Ceramic Products

The trading of ceramic products has not generated any
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
Due to the sluggish ceramic market and decrease in the
product demand, the Board decided to cease this business
segment with effect from 30 June 2015. The Group will re-
allocate its manpower and resources for exploration of other
business opportunities.

Property Investment

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the property
investment segment reported revenue of approximately
HK$1,521,000 (2014: HK$156,000), representing an
increase of approximately 875%, as compared with the
last year. At 31 December 2015, the Group held properties
in the People’s Republic of China (PRC), Taiwan and Hong
Kong for investment purpose amounted to approximately
HK$201,360,000 (2014: HK$28,812,000). The recovery
of property market in the PRC, particularly in Shenzhen,
provided an excellent opportunity for the Group to optimise
its investment portfolio by addition and disposal of certain
investment properties in the area. As regard Taiwan and Hong
Kong, there showed a slowdown in the property market in
general and our expansion plan remained prudent in these
areas, though we still managed to acquire a property in Tsuen
Wan, Hong Kong during the year.

Key performance - data of property investment

EEENWRE DM

REHE (&)

BMEEmES
BEEMBESNEBE_T—AFA_T—NF
TZA=Z+—ALFERARELETMA RS A
REEMSEBRERBR TG WEESR
EREREBSR BT —AFA=1H
ER-ARERENRAEEATFRER AFH
MEAM -

MERE
REBE_ZET—HFE+-_A=+T—HLEE"Y
¥R EDEHEBKEL1,521,0008 T (=
—PO4F : 156,000/ 7T ) * BAFIEINLI8T5% o
R-_E—RFE+-_A=+—H KAEERFPE
ARKEAE (FE) 2EREEFERER
BEYE45201,360,00008 7T (—Z— M4
28,812,000/ 7T) c P E (L E 2RI By %
M EHANEBERMEBREMRS LUEE R
ERAMNETHREME HMELEKEER
BB ERBEME BEVEMSERN
e MASERZEHENETTENRFEE
B EREERFANEEEZSERE—EY
%o

BRXE - YFERELEF

2015 2014

—F-HF _—FT0OF

Average occupancy level 145 A K 61.4% 8.0%
Average monthly rental income BEFK(FFKIM

per square metre (sg.m) A RA HK$815% 7t HK$ 1678 7T

Definition and calculation: Average occupancy level, being
percentage of floor area occupied by tenant. Average
monthly rental income per sq.ft. being average rental income
charged to tenant per sq. ft. of floor area leased.

EEMTE - FHERAKERBARMEAER
EENED L -8FHROAGHEEBARRK
FFHFREBEEEEREP RN FIHEES
YA o

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4+ REFRA 7 9
Annual Report 2015 — T —HFF i



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

One-stop Value Chain Services

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the one-
stop value chain services segment reported a revenue of
approximately HK$57,235,000 (2014: HK$18,342,000),
representing an increase of approximately 212%, as
compared with the last year. The increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the increased marketing efforts of the
Company by promoting a variety of products. The Group
considers this business segment a significant component
of its revenue in the coming year and with more resources
allocated to marketing promotion activities, its contribution
to the Group will be remarkable.

Key performance - data of one-stop value chain
services
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Gross profit margin EF =

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.

Trading of Consumables and Agricultural Products
During the year ended 31 December 2015, this business
segment reported a revenue of approximately HK$703,000
(2014: HK$4,889,000). The competition in this business
segment is very keen and the Group is cautious in its
development and will compare its profitability with other
business opportunities carefully.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products

The Group commenced the trading of grocery food products
segment pursuant to completion of acquisition of YIHE
Enterprise Holding Limited as disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 30 November 2015, involving in
distribution (i) in the catering channel in Hong Kong for
“Mengniu” liquid milk and pasteurized dairy products,
including but not limited to pure milk, low fat high calcium
milk, “Milk Deluxe”, “Fruit Milk Drink”, and “Yoyi C" under
the “Mengniu” brand; and (ii) in peanut oil, corn oil and
canola oil under the “Jinlongyu” brand via supermarkets,
convenience stores and small-scale stores in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, this segment
reported a revenue of approximately HK$289,000. After a
series of marketing and promotion plans are implemented, it
is expected that this segment represents a significant growth
momentum in the years ahead.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Board admits the responsibility to environmental
protection. Over the years, the Group has committed to
reduce waste and pollution with a view of effective and
efficient resources utilisation in the office spaces. Staff are
reminded from time to time the Group's direction in this
respect.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
The Group’s main business and operation work within
common trade practice environment and the Group
endeavours to comply with all legal and regulatory
requirements. In relation to the human resources, the
Group is committed to comply with the requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations, such as the Employment
Ordinance, ordinances in relation to discrimination, the
Privacy Ordinance and the Minimum Wage Ordinance. The
Group also values good conduct of the employees and has
set out clear guidelines to prevent bribery and to regulate the
acceptance of benefits by the employees. On the corporate
level, the Group continuously complies with the requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Listing Rules”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), such as
disclosure of interests, corporate governance, Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
and “Inside Information” disclosure. The Group employs legal
and financial advisers when undergoing acquisitions or other
corporate exercises. During the year ended 31 December
2015, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and rules by the Group.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
The Group recognises importance of retaining talents to
ensure the ongoing execution of business plans. The Group
has established all-rounded staff policy and guidelines for
staff welfare, provide a safe workplace, and support the
development of talent. The Group provides incentives to
its employees based on their performance. The Group
encouraged employees to update their work-related
knowledge, skill and attitude by providing training offered by
external organisations. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the employee voluntary turnover rate of the Group
was kept at a low level. During the year, no violation of
labour law was recorded. The key customers of the Group
include the long term trading customers and tenants of the
investment properties. The key suppliers of the Group are the
suppliers of the trading business. The Group has established
long term and solid business relationship with the suppliers
which ensures stable supply and quality products which meet
customers’ demand. During the year, there was no material
dispute between the Group and the customers/suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
a revenue (including continuing and discontinued operations)
of approximately HK$66,151,000 (2014: HK$45,541,000),
representing an increase of approximately 45.3% as
compared to that of last year. This increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in revenue generated from one-
stop value chain services, though partly offset by effect of
cessation of health care services during the year.

Cost of sales (including continuing and discontinued
operations) for the year under review was approximately
HK$61,917,000 (2014: HK$39,960,000), representing an
increase of approximately 54.9% as compared to that of last
year. This increase was due to change of product mix of the
Company's business portfolio during the year.

Administrative expenses (including continuing and
discontinued operations) for the year under review was
approximately HK$42,519,000 (2014: HK$36,263,000),
representing an increase of approximately 17.3% as
compared to that of last year. This increase was mainly due to
development and expansion of new business.

Finance costs for the year under review was approximately
HK$4,093,000 (2014: HK$2,457,000), representing an
increase of approximately 66.6% as compared to that of last
year. The increase was mainly due to increase in effective
interest expense on convertible bonds as compared with last
year and the interest paid for the secured bank loan.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company (including continuing and discontinued
operations) in the amount of approximately HK$59,214,000
(2014: HK$27,393,000). Basic loss per share of the Company
(including continuing and discontinued operations) increased
from HK1.15 cents for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
HK1.61 cents for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with its
internally generated resources and borrowing during the year
under review. At 31 December 2015, the bank balances and
cash of the Group was approximately HK$36,871,000 (2014:
HK$36,995,000).

At 31 December 2015, the net assets of the Group was
approximately HK$273,865,000 (2014: HK$135,046,000)
and the net current assets was approximately HK$93,758,000
(2014: HK$60,044,000).

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2015, the total liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$113,534,000 (2014:
HK$29,655,000), which mainly comprised of trade and other
payables, interest-bearing bank borrowing, amount due to
non-controlling interests, loan from non-controlling interests,
liability component of convertible bonds and deferred tax
liabilities. These liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and New Taiwan Dollars.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$387,399,000 (2014: HK$164,701,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, increased to 0.29 as at 31 December
2015 (2014: 0.18).

Segmental Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2015 by business segment is set out in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 44 (2014: 33)
total number of full-time employees. Staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments (including continuing and discontinued
operations) of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2015 were approximately HK$11,560,000 in total (2014:
HK$8,457,000). The Group determines the remuneration
and compensation payable to its staff based on individual
performance and expertise. Apart from basic remuneration,
share options may be granted to eligible employees by
reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual
contribution. Other benefits include retirement schemes.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2015, the Company's issued ordinary
share capital was HK$90,574,101.20 divided into
4,528,705,060 shares of HK$0.02 each (“Shares”) (2014:
HK$51,177,301.20 divided into 2,558,865,060 shares).

Fund Raising Activities

Placing of new 800,000,000 shares under specific
mandate - successful

On 13 December 2013, the Company and Ping An of China
Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited and FT Securities
Limited (collectively, the “Co-Placing Agents”) entered into
the co-placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place, through the Co-Placing
Agents on a best effort basis a maximum of 800,000,000
placing shares to not fewer than six placees at a placing price
of HK$0.188 per placing share, to be allotted and issued
under specific mandate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new 800,000,000 shares under specific
mandate - successful (continued)

The relevant resolution was passed at the Company’s special
general meeting on 7 March 2014. The completion of the
placing took place on 25 March 2014. The gross proceeds
from the placing were approximately HK$150.4 million and
the net proceeds after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses were approximately HK$145.0 million.
The net proceeds from the placing was used as to (i) HK$20.0
million for settling the cash consideration of the acquisition
of a subsidiary, Konson Global Investments Limited; (ii)
approximately HK$59.6 million for general working capital of
the Group (including as to approximately HK$17.6 million for
cost of goods sold, approximately HK$10.6 million for salaries
and allowance, approximately HK$12.0 million for rents, rates
and building management fee, and approximately HK$19.4
million for other operating expenses); (iii) approximately
HK$6.5 million for repayment of the outstanding liabilities
of the Company as to approximately HK$4.3 million loan
due to a shareholder, approximately HK$2.0 million loan
due to a former fellow subsidiary of the Company, and
approximately HK$0.2 million for the relevant loan interests;
and (iv) approximately HK$57.5 million for acquisition of
investment properties and other investment opportunities;
and (v) the remaining balance of approximately HK$1.4
million for future general working capital of the Company.
The placees included 17 individual investors and 7 corporate
investors. Further details of the Placing are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 13 December 2013,
7 March 2014 and 25 March 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 19 February 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bonds Il as a consideration of an
acquisition

On 13 December 2013, Skyline Top Limited (“Skyline Top™),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr. So Pan
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to sell to Skyline Top, and
Skyline Top has agreed to purchase from Mr. So Pan the sale
shares of Konson Global Investments Limited; and (i) Mr.
So Pan has agreed to assign to Skyline Top, and Skyline Top
has agreed to accept the assignment of, the sale loan at an
aggregated consideration of HK$40,000,000, of which: (i)
HK$20,000,000 shall be satisfied by Skyline Top by cheque or
cashier order upon the completion; and (ii) HK$20,000,000
shall be satisfied by the Skyline Top's procuring of the issue
of the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds 1I”) at the
conversion price of HK$0.17 (note) per conversion share by
the Company to Mr. So Pan upon completion.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bonds II, 117,647,058 (note) new shares shall be
issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the issue of
convertible bonds as a consideration took place on 31 March
2014.

Further details of the issue of convertible bonds as
a consideration of an acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 13 December 2013,
7 March 2014 and 31 March 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 19 February 2014.

Note: On 2 July 2015, a placing of 629,000,000 new shares of the
Company was completed and pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the bond instruments of the Convertible Bonds,
the conversion price was revised from HK$0.188 to HK$0.17.
As a result, number of new shares to be issued upon exercise
of conversion attaching to the Convertible Bonds was revised
from 106,382,978 to 117,647,058.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new shares under general mandate -
unsuccessful

On 11 February 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to place, through the placing
agent on a best effort basis, a maximum of 448,000,000
new ordinary shares with placing price of HK$0.2 per placing
share in the aggregate nominal value of approximately
HK$89,600,000 to not less than six placees. The maximum
net proceeds after deducting the transaction costs are
approximately HK$85,000,000. On 6 March 2015, the
Company was informed by the placing agent that the placing
had not been successful. Therefore, the placing agreement
lapsed and the placing will not proceed. Further details of the
placing are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 11 February 2015, 6 March 2015 and 9 March 2015.

Issue of 62,800,000 shares as a consideration of an
acquisition

On 12 January 2015, Fujian Seton Investment Co., Ltd.
(FBEMEIZEEFMR AT (“Fujian Seton”), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Cheung
Mong (“Mr. Cheung”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Fujian Seton agreed to acquire
and Mr. Cheung agreed to sell a property situated in the
PRC at a consideration of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,560,000) which shall be settled by
cash payment or delivery of securities of equivalent value
by a third party. The Group intends to hold the property for
investment purpose. On the same date, the Company as
the assignee and Mr. Cheung, as the assignor entered into
the assignment agreement pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to accept and Mr. Cheung conditionally
agreed to assign the consideration debt at a consideration
of HK$12,560,000 which is equivalent to the acquisition
consideration, to be settled by the issuance of 62,800,000
shares by the Company to the Vendor at the issue price of
HK$0.2 each under the general mandate of the Company.

On 22 April 2015, the consideration shares above have been
duly allotted and issued to the vendor and completion of the
assignment took place on 27 April 2015. Further details of
this assignment are set out in the announcement dated 12
January 2015 and 27 April 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new shares under general mandate -
successful

On 15 June 2015, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, and the placing
agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best-effort
basis, not less than six placees for the subscription of up to a
maximum of 629,000,000 placing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.20 per placing share under the General Mandate.
The completion of the placing took place on 2 July 2015,
where a total of 629,000,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed by the placing agent to not fewer than
six placees at the placing price of HK$0.20 per placing share.
The gross proceeds from the placing were approximately
HK$125.8 million and the net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other selected expenses were
approximately HK$124.4 million. The net proceeds from the
placing was used as to (i) approximately HK$48.0 million for
general working capital of the Group; and (ii) approximately
HK$68.5 million for future business development of the
Group. Remaining balance of approximately HK$7.9 million
will be used for general working capital of the Group. Further
details of the placing are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 16 June 2015 and 2 July 2015.

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition

On 28 May 2015, Skyline Top Limited and Yardley Wealth
Management Limited (“Yardley”) became shareholders
(the “JV Partners”) of Delightful Hope Limited (the “JV
Company”) for the purpose of the proposed acquisition. The
JV Company is owned as to 50% by each of the JV Partners.
The directors of the Company considered the JV Company is
the subsidiary of the Company in accordance with HKFRS10
Consolidated Financial Statement.

Upon formation of JV Company, the JV Partners have agreed
to make provision for the management and administration
of the JV Company's affairs, and set out their respective
obligations and rights on the terms and conditions set in the
shareholders’ agreement (the “Shareholders’ Agreement”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition (continued)

On 29 May 2015, the Company, the JV Company, Yardley
and Rich Best Asia Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into
the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which (i) the Vendor has agreed
to sell and the JV Company has agreed to purchase entire
equity interest in China Smart Asia Limited, a subsidiary of
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese Strategic”),
which the shares of Chinese Strategic are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8089); and (ii)
the Vendor has agreed to assign the JV Company, and the
JV Company has agreed to accept the assignment of sale
loan at an aggregate consideration of HK$93,000,000,
which shall be settled and discharged by the JV Company
in accordance with the time, mode and manner set out
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement: (i) forthwith upon
the execution of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
JV Company and Yardley shall jointly and severally pay the
sum of HK$20,000,000 either in cash or by cashier order
to Chinese Strategic for and on behalf of the Vendor as
deposit (the “Deposit”), and the Deposit shall be applied for
part payment of the consideration at completion; (i) the JV
Company and Yardley shall jointly and severally pay a further
sum of HK$26,500,000 either in cash or by cashier order to
Chinese Strategic for and on behalf of the Vendor for partial
payment of the balance of the consideration at completion;
and (iii) the remaining balance of the consideration in the
sum of HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and discharged by
the Company’s issuance to the Vendor (or any nominee of
the Vendor) (i) the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bond-
") in the principal amount of HK$23,000,000; and (ii) the
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bond-IV"”) in the principal
amount of HK$23,500,000 at completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition (continued)

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bond-Ill & Convertible Bond-IV, 186,000,000 new
shares shall be issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the issue of
Convertible Bond-Ill & Convertible Bond-IV as a part of the
consideration took place on 20 August 2015.

Further details of the issue of convertible bonds as
a consideration of an acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 May 2015, 20
August 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 27 July
2015.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
Acquisition of property in Taiwan

On 8 September 2014, Top Yield Properties Limited (F&
EEABMRAA), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the assignee, executed the assignment
agreement pursuant to which Mr. Wu Chih Kang, as the
assignor, assigned all his interest in the property to the
assignee at the consideration of NTD92,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$24,196,000) (the "Assignment
Agreement”). The property is located at Flat A3, 12th
Floor, Block A with two car parking spaces in the building
numbered 166 and 167 at Zenith City ([BF B1E | KiE),
Lane 235, Jingmaoer Road, Nangang District, Taipei City,
Taiwan (the “Taipei Property”). The Taipei Property has an
aggregate gross floor area of 2,958 square feet and is for
residential use. The Group intends to hold the Taipei Property
for investment purpose and will, depending on the then
market circumstances, lease out the Taipei Property after
completion of the acquisition for rental income. Completion
of the acquisition took place on 13 April 2015. Further details
of this acquisition and the Assignment Agreement are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 8 September
2014 and 13 April 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Acquisition of property in Shenzhen and its disposal

On 24 December 2014, Chengwang Investment Consulting
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (AE&REZXZH CRINDBR A,
a company of limited liability established in PRC and is
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Chengwang”),
and Mr. Tsoi Man Po (“Mr. Tsoi”) entered into the sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which Chengwang agreed
to acquire and Mr. Tsoi agreed to sell the property (as defined
below) at a consideration of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,750,000).

The property is located at Unit 9-11B, Block 2, Mangrove
West Coast, Mangrove Bay, Binhai Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, PRC (/BRI B 1L R )B G A SBALRHEAL 1 T8 =
TEE2189-11B ) (the “Shenzhen Property”). The property has
an aggregate gross floor area of 116.33 square metres and is
for residential use.

The Group intends to hold the Shenzhen Property for
investment purpose and will, depending on the then
market circumstances, lease out the Shenzhen Property
after completion of the acquisition for rental income. The
acquisition is expected to be completed on or before 30
January 2015 (the “Long Stop Date”). As Mr. Tsoi failed to
transfer all relevant ownership certificates in relation to the
Shenzhen Property from the relevant authorities on or before
the Long Stop Date, the agreement regarding the acquisition
has been lapsed.

Subsequently, on 21 April 2015, Chengwang and Mr. Tsoi
entered into the second sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which Chengwang agreed to acquire and
Mr. Tsoi agreed to sell the Shenzhen Property at a
consideration of RMB6,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,750,000). Completion of acquisition took place on 2
September 2015.

Further details of this acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 24 December 2014,
21 April 2015 and 2 September 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Acquisition of property in Shenzhen and its disposal
(continued)

On 7 December 2015, Chengwang as vendor and Mr. Mai
Jian Xun (“Mr. Mai") as purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which Mr. Mai agreed
to acquire and Chengwang agreed to sell the Shenzhen
Property at a consideration of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$11,408,000. Completion of disposal took
place on 18 January 2016.

Acquisition of property in Hong Kong

On 13 August 2015, Success Royal Investment Limited
("Success Royal”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Silver Target Corporation Limited (“Silver
Target”) entered into a provisional agreement for sale
and purchase pursuant to which Success Royal agreed to
acquire and Silver Target agreed to sell a property situated
at Workshop D1, 8/F, TML Tower, 3 Hoi Shing Road,
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong (the “Tsuen Wan Property”) at a
consideration of approximately HK$8,750,000.

The Group intends to hold the Tsuen Wan Property for
investment purpose and will, depending on the then market
circumstances, lease out the Tsuen Wan Property after
completion of the acquisition for rental income.

Completion of the acquisition of the Tsuen Wan Property
took place on 15 October 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Subscription of shares under specific mandate and
discloseable transaction on acquisition of 10% equity
interest of Anhui Damingyuan Tourism Development
Company Limited ( Z# X 85 B ik 5 % /& I 17 B IR 22 &])
On 19 August 2015, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”)
with Mr. Sun Hui (the “Subscriber”), who is the ultimate
beneficial owner of the Anhui Xingguang Investment
Group Limited (ZHE XK EEBEEHR A7) ("Anhui
Xingguang”). Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the
Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, on the
subscription completion date, in aggregate 250,000,000
subscription shares at a consideration of HK$37,500,000 at
the subscription price of HK$0.15 per subscription share. The
subscription shares shall be allotted and issued under specific
mandate.

On the same date, Kingtop Asia Investment Limited
("Kingtop Asia”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Anhui Xingguang entered into
a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which
Anhui Xingguang has conditionally agreed to sell, and
Kingtop Asia has conditionally agreed to purchase, the
sale shares, representing 10% of the equity interest of
Anhui Damingyuan Tourism Development Company
Limited (“Anhui Damingyuan”). The consideration for the
acquisition is RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$37,500,000), which shall be paid by Kingtop Asia by cash
to Anhui Xingguang at acquisition completion.

Anhui Damingyuan is principally engaged in developing a
4A-level resort in Bengbu City Auhui Province, which is still
under construction as at the date of this announcement and
is expected to be completed by end of 2016.

A special general meeting has been convened and held for
the shareholders to approve the issue of the subscription
shares under the specific mandate on 28 October 2015 and
the relevant resolutions were duly passed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Subscription of shares under specific mandate and
discloseable transaction on acquisition of 10% equity
interest of Anhui Damingyuan Tourism Development
Company Limited ( Z & X 87 E ic % /B R 7 B IR 2 &)
(continued)

As certain conditions of the Subscription Agreement and the
sale and purchase agreement have not been fulfilled by the
respective long stop dates and the parties failed to agree on
further extension thereof, both the Subscription Agreement
and the sale and purchase agreement lapsed in December
2015.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the
company dated 19 August 2015, 28 October 2015 and 11
December 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 8
October 2015.

Acquisition of 70% of the entire issued share capital

of YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited involving issue of
consideration shares under general mandate

On 28 October 2015, Fantastic Alliance Investments Limited
("Fantastic Alliance”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, the Company and Hexin Limited (“Hexin")
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which Hexin has agreed to sell, assign and transfer the
sale shares to Fantastic Alliance, and Fantastic Alliance has
agreed to purchase the sale shares from Hexin. The sale
shares represent 70% equity interest in YIHE Enterprise
Holding Limited (“YIHE"”). The consideration for the
acquisition is the sum of up to HK$68,544,000, which shall
be settled and discharged by Fantastic Alliance procuring
the Company to allot and issue a maximum of 408,000,000
consideration shares at HK$0.168 per consideration share.
The consideration shares will be issued and allotted under
the general mandate approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 28 October 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Acquisition of 70% of the entire issued share capital

of YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited involving issue of
consideration shares under general mandate (continued)
Hexin is the sole and beneficial owner of the entire equity
interest in YIHE, a company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability, and YIHE is the sole legal and beneficial
owner of the entire equity interest in Huge Famous
Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability. The principal business of Huge Famous
Corporation Limited involves the rendering of marketing,
logistic and product management and development services
for 2 globally renowned brands in Hong Kong, namely,
Mengniu ( 54F) and Jinlongyu (&8 &) .

The acquisition has been completed on 30 November 2015
and 53,040,000 shares, being the first portfolio consideration
shares were allotted and issued on 30 November 2015 but
the second portfolio consideration shares, third portfolio
consideration shares and fourth portfolio consideration shares
were yet to be allotted.

Further details of this acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 28 October 2015 and
30 November 2015.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not process any
significant investment, acquisition or disposals of properties,
subsidiaries or associated companies during the year ended
31 December 2015.

Charges on Group's Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had charges on one
of its investment properties to obtain a mortgage financing
from a bank in Taiwan of NTD41,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$10,436,000) (31 December 2014: nil).

Contingent Liabilities
At 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2015, the Group had capital commitment
amounting to approximately HK$1,026,000 (2014:
HK$21,768,000).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

All of the Group's assets, liabilities and transactions are
mainly denominated either in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi
or New Taiwan dollars. The Directors do not consider that the
Group is exposed to any material foreign currency exchange
risk. Therefore, no hedging devices or other alternative have
been implemented.

Events after the Reporting Period
Details are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, there remains a broad range of
macroeconomic uncertainties and challenges in the global
economy, including rebalancing of China’s economy, the
impact of low commodity prices and ongoing geo-political
tensions. The Group will strive to reduce our sensitivity to
adverse trends.

Up to date, the Group exercised certain strategic moves by
discontinuing the health care services business and trading of
ceramic products business which proved to be not profitable.
Meanwhile, the Group underwent certain additions of
investment properties in both PRC and Hong Kong with a
view to enhance rental income.

One-stop value chain services segment is expected to
constitute considerable portion of revenue in the coming
year, with stable gross margin and relatively low default risk.
On the other hand, the Group will spare more resources on
marketing effects to promote the trading of grocery food
products segment, leveraging the famous brands “Mengniu”
and “Jinlongyu” in the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4
February 2016, the Group expanded its trading of grocery
food products by forming a strategic alliance with Chan
Kee Holdings Limited (“Chan Kee"). Leveraging with Chan
Kee's strong distribution channel with retailers including big
chain supermarkets, the Group is optimistic about the future
profitability of this business segment.

During the first half of 2015, the China property market
was driven by various policies and gradually recovered from
the depressed conditions since 2014, the property market
appeared to rebound in the second quarter. Although there
remains certain pressure on inventory destocking in some
cities and the distribution of transaction volume among cities
remained uneven, a general upward trend in the property
market was established. Since the end of 2014, the central
bank has reduced benchmark interest rates and deposit
reserve ratio for a few times, Looking forward, it is expected
that monetary policy will remain relatively loose and the
property market in China will revive, which will have positive
impact on rental income of the Group’s properties portfolio.

The Company reiterates its commitment to maximising
shareholder value. The Group continues to actively identify
investment opportunities and will select projects which
align with the Group’s investment strategy, namely balance
between steady cash flows and fast asset turnover, or which
bring synergy to the Group’s existing business.
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The Directors present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 60 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the principal activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 8 to 28 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
234 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customer accounted for approximately 63.6%
(2014: 33.2%) of the Group's turnover (including continuing
and discontinued operations), and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 77.8% (2014: 42.2%) of the
Group's cost of sales (including continuing and discontinued
operations), for the year ended 31 December 2015. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2015, any Director or his associates
or any shareholder (who owned more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) has any interest in the above-
mentioned customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

EEENEREHE_TRAFt_A=1t—H
LTFEFRMER ’f?r B o
FEER

ARAR/—RKREEBRAR - ZWBEBRAF 2E

ZEBHNZE M B RKRIM TS -

RERRE

AEEBE_T-AFt _A=1+—HLFE
EEINAFERFORAZFEBE NEMEE
Yah 5% -
EEVTEERBE—_T—AFE+T-_A=1—
Etﬁ&ﬁﬁi%ﬂm(_f P4 48 ) o

E 3 e

BB RN THEBIMNRSFTRENANEB EEERK
SRS 7fﬁ%§z*ﬁ’\zl§$¥ﬁ%8ﬁ F28E FATE
MEREBSNwmAIM ZEwERAERS
HwER—IPD o

B HE
AEERROAAVRFEZEAMEERE
EMBEMEHNAFRE2348

ﬁ%&%ﬁ

AEEBE_T-AFt _A=1+—HILFE
B E &% ﬁm@ﬁﬁﬁKﬁAW%ﬁ§W£
16 °

FTEEFRHER

BE_T-AF+-A=+—BLEFE T%
BSRAEFPZHERGARELERR (BER
BREBIREHET)K63.6% (—F—F:
33.2%) MEAHER 2 RBRIGANKEH

ERA (BIEFENERILIEEER)X77.8%
—VOF:422%) FESFED HE

T-RET A=t HLFEHREES.
ii% BALTIEAERNRBIEEITRAS%NA £
ZERERN EXEE 2 BEP R EEEA T

N
ZS o
e

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4+ REFRA 7 29
Annual Report 2015 — T —HFF i



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year ended 31 December
2015 in the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 64 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company did not have any
reserves available for cash/in special dividend distribution to
shareholders of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and vote
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM)
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:00 p.m.
on 29 April 2016 (Friday)
Book close date 3 May 2016 (Tuesday)
To 4 May 2016 (Wednesday)

Record date 4 May 2016 (Wednesday)

AGM date 4 May 2016 (Wednesday)

In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, Union Registrars
Limited, at A18/F., Asia Orient Tower, Town Place, 33 Lockhart
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (to be relocated to Suites 3301-
04, 33/F, Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's
Road, North Point, Hong Kong with effect from 5 April 2016)
before the above latest time to lodge transfers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has adopted a new share option scheme on 6
May 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

30 china Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEEREFR AT
Annual Report 2015 —Z — R EEH

&S
ARBZBEARBE-FT—
AL FEEHFBENER

AF+-A=+—
B RS TR WM FE33 ©

fEfE
AEEFBZEBHBENAFRFEAR L
ERREHRANZT-

o] 1 7 Tk {48
R-F—RF+-_A=+t—8 ARAHER
&/ A RER IR B D IR T AL AR 2 £
fii 78 ©

EEMERDBFEERTFE
BREERREHFEERRBFAE ([RRE
FRERRELRERRNVEF

BB XA —T-R"EMAZTNA
G0l ! (EHH) THMEIE
EERERR TR ERhRAZH(EHD)ZE
i@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ,ﬂ?ﬁ :E—/\ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ(i,ﬁﬁz)
ek d=p:i “T-RXFRAMEA(EH=)
BRBFAEGHH “E-AFRAMmA(EH=)

AREEREERRBFASHENLANE £
BERR IBERMBE X ERABBEKREA
FLLL%LﬁK#MWEﬁM x 18 B ] T ik
ERARNBZEBROBFPELORBEELFE
ERABEMRAR] mma%%@ﬁvﬁ E335R R
EZEEREAISKE (KEZ-T—X"FMNAA
HREBARSILARZIEBSHRERRSES
28A33123301-04% ) »

B IR T &
ARB ZF——F R ARNBRA— BB
& ([RE st &)



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years from 6 May 2011 to 5 May 2021, unless terminated
otherwise as in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Group to grant options to eligible participants
the Directors may at its absolute discretion select as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. Eligible
participants include any employee (whether full-time or part-
time, including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors), shareholder,
customer, supplier of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an
equity interest; any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support, any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company. Where any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BT E (M)
BREGEHE - ZE——FEARBE-Z
——ESRARRZTEHEERAR ERE
BB MENEM T R IEERIN -1
B8 E EEAREREF A RERERT
BHZAERSEEREBERE EAREY
AEEFRELERMNERIDH A ERSHE
ERRBRAQE HEMAMNBEARRKAKERFE
Bz EAERE ([(REER]) 2EER (T
WmERKRBES UBEERTES FRTE
ERBIFRTES) BRR -FFP HER:
R FEIEMRTSE 2 EMALS
R AEERTMREER 2 EMNEKERE
AXBER TMER (EXALIHEMBER
AL)HER: RELH AR ERLE EF
BB EMEH L MAARENE R MER
tEH BRI E R E AR B 2 EE -

BT AR LA TTEREERE 8 R
SEEMEBBRESEMRL ZBERE (8
RO EITE A ARITRE 2 BAE) M Al BEN T
W+ —EAMEARE RS EERTHRD
B NMSBBEARRREDETRAZ1%
(MEARFE]) - WEBZE - PREBRES
B (B#EZ%A) EOEA+=@EAR T
FREBAEARE BERE ARARAZ
PR ER A & BRAS BCR At / © [ A2 B £ BRUR
SBEUFATESTARET B ZEMBEA
TR EABRE AR S AR &R
TEREEFBALTERBERESR (BHEZ
Bt —EAMBARE TSR TZAL
ZFBEBRE (BRETE BEEHEkERT
82 BERHE ) T 31T S 3 T - (Ve e
BATHAD0.1% A L+ R (iR & IRR h B AE E
RERROHETESEZAREERASEE
B AP REZEBREANRRAS
ERERCR AL

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4+ REFRA T 31
Annual Report 2015 — T —HEF i



DIRECTORS’' REPORT
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
as set out in the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option. The subscription price for shares
under the Share Option Scheme will be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
May 2011, the Company was also authorised to issue up to
242,459,969 shares (i.e. 121,229,984 consolidated shares
upon the share consolidation effective on 11 October 2013)
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group,
being 10% of the shares in issue on 6 May 2011 (the
“General Scheme Limit"”). The Company may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant options
beyond the General Scheme Limit to participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, options in respect
of 64,750,000 Shares were granted on 13 July 2015 to
certain Directors under the Share Option Scheme. Closing
price of the Shares immediately before 13 July 2015 was
HK$0.2 per Share. No options were exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the number of Shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme was 64,750,000 (2014:
Nil), representing approximately 1.43% (2014: Nil) of the
Company's issued share capital as at that date.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2015 were:

Executive Directors
Mr. So David Tat Man
Mr. Lai Yick Fung (appointed on 1 July 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min (appointed on 23 March 2015)

Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a fixed term of two
years and may be terminated by not less than three months
prior notice in writing served by either party to the other
in accordance with the provisions set out in the respective
appointment letter.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of two years
and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than six months’ notice in writing served by either party to
the other in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective service agreement. Each of the executive Directors
may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
having regard to the operation results of the Company and
performance of the Directors.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
(continued)

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith,
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min, an annual
confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2015.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, chief executive
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, were
as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

Long position in the underlying shares in respect of the share
options of the Company (which were regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives) granted under the Share
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 6 May 2011:
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Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per Share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant (HKS)  Exercisable period 2015 the year the year the year 2015
WZB-1F RZB-1F
BRITHE -A-H +ZA=1-H
23 BiLBH (Br) &S H AT FREN FRTE FRER DB
So David Tat Man 13 July 2015 0.212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 - 8,550,000 - - 8,550,000
HEX —Z-n¥tA+=H “R-nELATMAEER
ZE-RELATEH
14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 - 12,825,000 - - 12,825,000
ZE-RECATHEE
—Z-t%tAt+=H
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 - 21,375,000 - - 21,375,000
R+ ELATHAEER
“T-\¥tA+=H
Lai Yick Fung 13 July 2015 0.212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
BRE —Z-n¥tA+=H “R-nELATMAEER
ZE-RELATEH
14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
ZE-RECATHEE
—Z-t%tAt+=H
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
R+ ELATHAEER
“T-\¥tA+=H
Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith 13 July 2015 0.212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 - 800,000 - - 800,000
RER —Z-n¥tA+=H “R-nELATMAEER
ZE-RELATEH
14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
ZE-RECATHEE
“Z-t%tAt+=H
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
R+ ELATHAEER
“T-\¥tA+=H
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey 13 July 2015 0.212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 - 800,000 - - 800,000
HER —Z-n¥tA+=H “R-nELATMAEER
ZE-RELATEH
14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
ZE-RECATHEE
“Z-t%tAt+=H
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
R+ ELATHAEER
“T-\¥tA+=H
Zhang Min 13 July 2015 0.212 14 July 2015-13 July 2016 - 800,000 - - 800,000
RR —Z-n¥tA+=H “R-nELATMAEER
ZE-RELATEH
14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
ZE-RECATHEE
“Z-t%tAt+=H
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000

“§LFLATHAE
“$-ELATZA

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4+ REFRA 7 35
Annual Report 2015 — T —HFF i



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under the section “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above,
at no time during the Reporting Period, there subsisted
arrangements to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
is a party, being arrangements whose subjects are, or one
of whose objects is, to enable any of the directors or the
chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors of the Company, their spouse or
their children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2015.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware of and having made due
enquiries, as at 31 December 2015, the following parties,
other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions directly or indirectly
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company:

EERFETRAERERODHELR
AR

B EX TEFERETETHABERARRRSHAEM
TREORE 2 B~ BRI R AB 75 2 s SUK
B —EMEREEIN RS AR AT

BEARNRAREEFAMHBRRZ2EFTLHNE
Mz ELHNEER (ARFLHNEF
Z—R)BEARABEFHEBTHRABRERBA
AR R SAATEMEA BB HEHE S
(BfREESF) MERNE  BARBEMES-

BHENEBARERM TR TERBEE=
E-RAF+ - A=T—RI-FEMREERERN
RBEARRAIHRES

FERR

REFMALEFELEESH R_F—0F
TZA=T—H U TAL(ARAEEFHE
ZITHA BRRIN RA R BB K AR R B 10 Bk
BUATAREEZ MR E R FEXVEEFH2K3
7 EMERX AR R AR B SRR SR AN R RRIE
7 M EIE GBI E336IRFE < B EE K
BRERIORR

REQXARGREBRRO ZHE:

Number of
shares of Number of Approximate
the Company underlying percentage of
(Corporate shares of the the issued
Name of shareholders Interests) Company Total share capital
EARKRGEHE RATEHEE HERTRAEN
BRRAHE (REHER) RH#EE me BABEDL
(Note 1)
(Hat1)
So Chi Yuk (Note 2) - 500,000,000 500,000,000 11.04%
§ER (Mit2) (Note 2)
(Hfiz2)
Sino Coronet Limited (Note 2) - 500,000,000 500,000,000 11.04%
PEERRE (Hi72) (Note 2)
(Hfiz2)
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FERR (&)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company: (continued)

REQXARGREBRRG 2HFE: (&)

Number of
shares of Number of Approximate
the Company underlying percentage of
(Corporate shares of the the issued
Name of shareholders Interests) Company Total share capital
KARRBEE PGP HEBITRAEAMN
BRRER (AFIRER) R E oy BABDE
(Note 1)
(Hizt1)
Yardley Finance Limited (Note 3) - 500,000,000 500,000,000 11.04%
BB ER AR (Hi23) (Note 3)
(Hizt3)
Chan Kin Sun (Note 3) - 500,000,000 500,000,000 11.04%
BRIERT (H7723) (Note 3)
(Hizt3)
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (Note 4) 411,553,215 186,000,000 597,553,215 13.19%
= ARBIERAR AR (Hitd) (Note 4) (Note 5)
(Wi7z4) (H1725)
Rich Best Asia Limited (Note 4) 411,553,215 186,000,000 597,553,215 13.19%
Rich Best Asia Limited (#75£4) (Note 4) (Note 5)
(Wi7z4) (H1725)
Top Status International Limited (Note 4) 318,953,215 - 318,953,215 7.04%
Top Status International Limited (#7:#4) (Note 4)
(Hizta)

Notes: BtaE -

1. As at 31 December 2015, the Company's issued ordinary 1. RZE—RAF+A=1+—H FARQa%#
share capital was HK$90,574,101.20 divided into TE B A B90,574,101.208 70 0 A
4,528,705,060 Shares of HK$0.02 each. 4,528,705,0600% & R E11E0.02)8 7T 2 i 17

2. Sino Coronet Limited (“Sino Coronet”), a company 2. PEAERAE ([FE] —HREBRZEH

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is holding convertible bonds (the “First CB") in the principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 which can be converted into
500,000,000 new shares of the Company at conversion price
of HK$0.02 per share. Since Sino Coronet is wholly owned
by So Chi Yuk, So Chi Yuk was deemed to be interested in
the First CB.

EFMAZZERAR) EHERSE S
10,000,000 THy Al AR (&5 ([ —H#E AT
REH]) ZEEF AR BRETR0.02E
JL A, #25500,000,000% 48 A BT A% 15 © B
PEEHRSESERE WHEBERRAR
FHABMBRESPERER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

3. The First CB was pledged to Yardley Finance Limited
("Yardley Finance”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability. Since Yardley Finance is wholly-owned
by Chan Kin Sun, Chan Kin Sun was deemed to be interested
in the First CB.

4. Top Status International Limited (“Top Status”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is wholly-owned by Rich Best Asia Limited (“Rich Best”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Rich
Best is in turn wholly-owned by Chinese Strategic Holdings
Limited (“Chinese Strategic”), the issued shares of which
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. As at 31
December 2015, of the 411,553,215 shares, 318,953,215
shares were held by Top Status, 49,000,000 shares were
held by Fameway Finance Limited (wholly-owned by Rich
Best), 1,100,000 shares were held by Winner Performance
Limited (wholly-owned by Rich Best), 42,100,000 shares
held by Right Magic Limited (wholly-owned by Rich Best)
and 400,000 shares held by Sina Winner Investment Limited
(wholly-owned by Rich Best). As such, both Chinese Strategic
and Rich Best were deemed to be interested in 411,553,215
shares.

5. Rich Best is holding convertible bonds (the “Second CB")
in the principal amount of HK$46,500,000 which can be
converted into 186,000,000 new shares of the Company
at conversion price of HK$0.25 per share. Since Rich Best is
wholly owned by Chinese Strategic, Chinese Strategic was
deemed to be interested in the Second CB.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of any
other person, other than a director or the chief executive
of the Company, who held interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2015 as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements, certain of which
constituted connected transactions that are exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business or interest that
compete with the business of the Group or has or may have
any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in Note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws although there is no restriction against
such under the laws in Bermuda.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this
report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above and also in Note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2015 and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors; namely Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (Chairman), Mr.
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min.

The audited financial results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING") was appointed
as auditor of the Company on 18 December 2008 and
subsequently re-appointed as auditor of the Company at
the last three annual general meetings of the Company
held on 16 May 2013, 26 May 2014 and 2 June 2015. The
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2012, 2013 and 2014 of the Company were
audited by SHINEWING. A resolution for the re-appointment
of SHINEWING as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INTRODUCTION

The board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures.

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under
review except for the following deviation:

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides, among
others, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Company did not appoint a chairman. The Board will
keep reviewing the structure of the Board from time to time.
If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience
is identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the
post of chairman as appropriate.

Under code provision A.2.7 of the Code, the chairman of
board should at least annually hold meetings with the non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors present. As the
Company does not have the Chairman, no such meeting was
held in this regard for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, every board
of directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors. Under Rule 5.28 of
the GEM Listing Rules, the audit committee must comprise a
minimum of three members. Subsequent to the resignation
of Mr. Lau Tin Cheung with effect from 1 January 2015, the
number of independent non-executive Directors and audit
committee members had fallen below the minimum number
required under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules. On 23 March 2015, the Company appointed Mr.
Zhang Min as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of the audit committee of the Company. Hence,
the requirements under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules were fulfilled since then.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard as set out
in such code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six Directors, three are
executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2015
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. So David Tat Man

Mr. Lai Yick Fung (appointed on 1 July 2015)

Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung (appointed on 2 January 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min (appointed on 23 March 2015)

The Directors’ biographical information are set out on pages
4 to 7 in this report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company is committed to having a diversity of the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy. The
Company considers that having a Board with diverse culture
would assure Directors that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment
where bias, discrimination and harassment on any matter
are not tolerated. The Board has adopted a board diversity
policy which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. Board appointments are based on merit
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 except for
the period from 1 January 2015 to 22 March 2015, the Board
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification
to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. One of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed
term of two years and may be terminated by not less than
three months prior notice in writing served by either party to
the other or in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective appointment letter.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and have received from
each of them the annual confirmation of independence
required by Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring of
the Group's overall strategies and policies; approving of
business plans; evaluating the performance of the Group and
overseeing the management. The Board focuses on overall
strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the executive Directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of
the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

The Company has arranged insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions which
may be taken against its Directors and officers in the
execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
The Board meets regularly for at least four times a year to
review the financial and operating performance of the Group.

Details of the attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and general meetings of the Company
are as follows:
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BOARD PRACTICES

Apart from the four regular Board meetings of the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Board met on other occasions
when a board-level decision on a particular matter was
required. The Directors received detailed agenda and
documents prior to the meetings of the Board to ensure that
the Directors were able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings. All Directors may
access the advice, regulatory updates on governance and
regulatory matters from professional parties if necessary.

The Company Secretary and the company secretarial team are
responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings and ensure compliance with the
procedures of the Board meetings and general meetings
of the Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes,
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations
on changes and developments relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to
the Directors at the Board meetings. Trainings conducted by
professional service provider regarding Listing Rules’ updates
on corporate governance have been provided to the Directors
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance is upheld
and that the Directors possess up-to-date information to
discharge their duties.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS (continued)

All of the directors of the Company, namely, Mr. So David Tat
Man, Mr. Lai Yick Fung (appointed on 1 July 2015), Mr. Ng
Cheuk Fan, Keith, Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang
Min (appointed on 23 March 2015), have either attended
seminars organised by external professionals relevant to the
business or directors’ duties or read professional materials
publicated by regulators or professional bodies for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The positions and roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive of the Company should be held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company did not
appoint a chairman or a chief executive.

The Board will keep reviewing the current structure from
time to time. If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and
experience is identified, the Company will make appointment
to fill the posts as appropriate.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following the
re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda in October 2007, it was re-established pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board on 15 February 2008
and specific terms of reference were adopted. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, all are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan,
Keith and Mr. Zhang Min. Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Zhang
Min has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 23 March 2015.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The role and function written in the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are no less exacting terms
than the Code. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee also reviews and recommends
the Board on its proposals relating to the remuneration
of the executive Directors with reference to the Board's
corporate goal and objectives. No Directors or any of his/
her associates can be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration are
considered by the Remuneration Committee to determine
the remuneration package of individual executive Directors
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment; or relating to
dismissal or removal for misconduct to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair, not
excessive, reasonable and appropriate.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee of the Company held three meetings to review
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management and to advise on remuneration packages of
newly appointed Directors. Details of the attendance of the
meeting are as follows:
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Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (Chairman) SREESE (£/E) 3/3

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith RENFAE 33
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following
the re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
into Bermuda in October 2007, the Nomination Committee
was re-established pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Board on 15 February 2008 and specific terms of reference
were adopted. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members, of which all of them
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ng
Cheuk Fan, Keith, Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang
Min. Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith was the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. On 23 March 2015, Mr. Ng Cheuk
Fan, Keith ceased to be the chairman of the Nomination
Committee but remains as a member of the Nomination
Committee and Mr. Zhang Min was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, both with effect
from 23 March 2015.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
and supervising the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and senior management.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, including the independence status in the case of
an independent non-executive Director, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board has also adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based
on a range of measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge
and length of service, having due regard to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety
of business and professional background, the Company
considers that the Board possesses a balance of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings to review the composition,
size and structure of the Board, to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors. Details of the attendance of the meetings are as
follows:

EEZRA (FE)
EXENCEMEFTEXNBZTENBR B
REAEEREEFEXNBZTTEM TR - Hit
EBEEEGKEZIREAR LS A
EERA/EAE BREENMENMER - Fi&k Xt
REEER BEEBRNRER K2 MBLR
BEH AREBARAARGNEHEA LT
ROABFE - ENRBEEGRERE TF
EBRBEEES ARARS EFSHEY
Bz iee K BERMZ TR UEAXR
NCIE SV iR

SRAEREESR
BE-T—RAFT_A=1T—HLEFE &%
ZEgHEBRA=-RgR URIEZTgnd
B ARE R AR IERITEENE L
M IYHRESEEARNESTSIFLHER 25
ZIEEEFIBIT

Attendance
Name of members REER IR
Mr. Zhang Min (Chairman) (appointed on REREE (FE) (RZE—RF
23 March 2015) ZAZ+=BEZEE) 212
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (acted as Chairman RENEE(BE—HF—A—HZ
from 1 January 2015 to 23 March 2015) —E-RAF=RAZT=BEFEERE) 3/3
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey 5 EE 4 33
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (Chairman), Mr.
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee had during the year performed
such functions and reviewed the unaudited quarterly and
interim results and audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the audit committee
of the Company held four meetings to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, and corporate governance
and internal control review and make recommendation to the
Board on reappointment of the external auditor. They had,
in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company,
reviewed the annual results of the Group and recommended
to the Board for their consideration and approval. The audit
committee of the Company was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance (continued)
Details of the attendance of the Company’s audit committee
meetings are as follows:

BEREES (A)
ERRERHER (&)
ARAEGZEZESEBNHFEFBNOT:

Attendance

Name of members REER R

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (Chairman) RENEE(EE) 4/4

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SEELE 4/4

Mr. Zhang Min (appointed on 23 March 2015) RREE (RZE—RF=A=+=H

L) 4/4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION PEESEE

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate %%gﬁE\EETTﬁ%%fﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ HEmgeE

governance duties with its written terms of reference as set ENEERIRENE

out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and a) BT BT ARAR BB ESANEE
practices on corporate governance; KR

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous b) BEREENSREIEEBANEIRL
professional development of Directors and senior %g/gg%%&,
management;

d) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and o) S El NERANNBEELEETESR Y
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory SHEHNRENLER
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct d) HET st REREENESZ @AM
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to STTAIRERFMR (nE) K
employees and Directors; and

e) to review the Company's compliance with the e) S AN AT EESAERENLDESSE
corporate governance code and disclosure in the MEFNIEEEE AT
Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$945,000 (2014:
approximately HK$435,000) was charged to the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2015. Remuneration to the auditors of the Company,
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, amounted to HK$530,000
and HK$415,000 respectively for the provision of annual
audit services and other audit services for the year ended
31 December 2015. The Group also committed HK$36,900
to LK Risk Services Limited for the tax compliance work
of the Company and certain subsidiaries for the year of
assessment 2015/2016. A resolution for re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The Board concurs with the views of the Audit Committee in
determining the re-appointment of auditors of the Company.
There has been no change in auditors in any of the preceding
five financial years.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group's account for each financial period to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. In preparing the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015, the Board has selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

The auditors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibilities in the independent auditor's report on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the period from 1 January 2015 to 30 April 2015,
Ms. Yip Zodia Wang (“Ms. Yip"”) was the Company Secretary.
Ms. Yip is delegated by an external service provider and the
primary corporate contact point is Mr. So David Tat Man, an
executive Director. Ms. Yip is an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. She has extensive professional experience
in company secretarial practice. Ms. Yip resigned as the
Company Secretary from 1 May 2015.

On 1 May 2015, Mr. Lai Yick Fung (“Mr. Lai"”) was appointed
as the Company Secretary. Pursuant to Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Lai has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2015.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

The Directors, on the requisition of shareholder(s) of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the rights, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of two months from the said date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong or the registered office
in Bermuda, or by e-mail to info@chinaeco-farming.com for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii)
not less than 100 shareholders, the Company shall, at the
expense of the requisitionists: (a) to give to shareholders of
the Company entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; (b)
to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. The Company has disclosed
all necessary information to its shareholders and investors
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Moreover, the
Board maintains close communications with the shareholders
and investors of the Company through a number of formal
communication channels which include (i) the publication of
the Company’'s latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports, notices, announcements and circulars; (ii) the general
meetings providing an opportunity for the shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; and (iii) the Company’s website provides an effective
communication platform between the Company and its
investors.

During the year of 2015, there has been no significant
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the Audit Committee have conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.
The internal control system is designed to meet the Group's
particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by
their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and
ensuring the reliability of financial information used for
business and publication. Qualified management throughout
the Group maintains and monitors the internal control system
on an ongoing basis.

The Company has engaged an independent professional firm
to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal controls over business processes of certain
subsidiaries of the Group for the period from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2015. The Board has reviewed its progress
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and received its
report in March 2016.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

The Board considered that the internal control system of the
Group is effective and no material deficiencies are noted on
the internal control system.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board resolved to delegate to the Audit Committee the
responsibility of overseeing the Group’s risk management.
Terms of reference of the Audit Committee had been
amended to (i) review the Group’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems; (ii) discuss
the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have an effective internal control systems; and (iii)
to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings.

On behalf of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RE

iAo

Shine‘ZOan

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ECO-FARMING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued into
Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 60 to 233, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors of the Company,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: P03224

Hong Kong
22 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOMIE
mERmRk 2 mE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

R-E—RF+-_HA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-MF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt aE TET FHET
(Restated)
(ge&E7)
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Revenue g 5 59,748 23,387
Cost of sales $HE AN (57,032) (22,892)
Gross profit EA 2,716 495
Other gain or loss, net Hth Y s s B 18 F 58 6 (2,280) 971
Increase in fair value of BEMENTFAEEINFE
investment properties, net 17 2,759 451
Decrease in fair value of financial BEAFEFAEBRRD
assets at fair value through TREEQNFERD
profit or loss (15,936) (1,129)
Administrative expenses ITHHEX (39,950) (27,790)
Share of results of associates DILEE N A EE 20 947 4,047
Finance costs A& B 8 (4,093) (2,457)
Loss before taxation B AT E 1R (55,837) (25,412)
Taxation HIA 9 (2,863) (48)
Loss for the year from continuing RERLEEBN
operations REZEE (58,700) (25,460)
Discontinued operations BRIEREEL
Loss for the year from discontinued BRI E B
operations KFEEFHE 10 (1,051) (3,387)
Loss for the year KREEZEE 11 (59,751) (28,847)
Other comprehensive expense AEFHEMEPEMAS:
for the year:
Items that may be reclassified HEnEH 7 EEZEm
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIHEEA -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEE 2
translating foreign operations ER R (7,848) (165)
Total comprehensive expense AFEEZEHRXBE
for the year (67,599) (29,012)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e REMEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015
RZZE—AF+-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—E2-HF —T—mF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FET FAT
(Restated)
(ge&:7)
Loss for the year attributable to RRGHEEANEBERER
owners of the Company B8
— from continuing operations —REFELEER (58,163) (24,006)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEREER (1,051) (3,387)
(59,214) (27,393)
Loss for the year attributable to FEVERR IR R A R B
non-controlling interests REEEIR
— from continuing operations —REFERCEER (537) (1,454)
(59,751) (28,847)
Total comprehensive expense KRB ANEBEARFE
for the year attributable to PHFX B
owners of the Company
— from continuing operations —REFBEEEER (66,007) (24,197)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEREER (1,051) (3,387)
(67,058) (27,578)
Total comprehensive expense FEVERR IR R A 2 RS
for the year attributable to RNEEEEMAZETE
non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations —REFELEED (541) (1,434)
(67,599) (29,012)
LOSS PER SHARE BRER 15
From continuing and REFERDKIE
discontinued operations: R
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (BI) (1.61) (1.15)
From continuing operations: REFELEHER:
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE (B) (1.58) (1.01)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &

At 31 December 2015
R-E—RF+-_HA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-MF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FERT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment 5 M 5% A 16 5,087 4,408
Investment properties KEWE 17 190,070 28,812
Goodwill Bl 18 18,414 908
Intangible asset B EE 19 6,283 -
Interests in associates AN I - 3] 20 44,678 43,731
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 21 - -
Loan to non-controlling interests M) 1 AR AR R M 2
EHE R 30 - 735
Deposit paid for acquisition of ERKIERE REEZ
plant and equipment ®e 1,309 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of ENKERENE L
investment properties e - 14,113
265,841 92,707
Current assets RBEE
Inventories, finished goods FE (®iKMm) 1,169 934
Trade and other receivables JE AR 5% % ELAth
J& WK TR 22 9,575 5,896
Loan receivables e E R 23 27,896 5,000
Loan to non-controlling interests ) JF 128 A% AR BR A 2
EH B 30 735 -
Deposit paid for operating right EfgEkRe - 1,200
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEEARR
profit or loss ZEREE 24 34,022 21,969
Bank balances and cash RITERLRE 25 36,871 36,995
110,268 71,994
Asset classified as held for sale SERFEHECZEE 26 11,290 -
121,558 71,994
Current liabilities il =R
Trade and other payables JE A<t BR R S EL A
JE S 5RI8 27 9,977 10,814
Amount due to non-controlling FEAT FEIZE IR AR 3R
interests 25 TR IR 28 2,012 1,053
Loan from non-controlling interests FEPER IR R A B K 30 735 -
Bank borrowing RITIEK 29 9,581 -
Convertible bonds AR E S 31 751 -
Contingent consideration payable JEAT S ARAE 41 4,707 -
Income tax payable FERT RIS HL 37 83
27,800 11,950
Net current assets MENEE R 93,758 60,044
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLDERE 359,599 152,751
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI &

At 31 December 2015
RZZE—hFE+-_HA=+—H

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 233
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

2015 2014
—®F-HF —FOF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
LK TET FAT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds Al A& 5 31 53,397 16,970
Loan from non-controlling interests IR RS E X 30 - 735
Contingent consideration payable JERT S ARE 41 8,458 -
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMIBEBAE 32 23,879 -
85,734 17,705
Net assets BEFR 273,865 135,046
Capital and reserves BEXR®EE
Share capital LN 33 90,574 51,177
Reserves =] 137,056 85,317
Equity attributable to owners of the RATEE ANEEER
Company 227,630 136,494
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AR SR 2 46,235 (1,448)
Total equity e A RE 273,865 135,046

directors on 22 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: TIATEE:
So David Tat Man Lai Yick Fung
BIEX BmE
Director Director
EF EFE

FO0E2BEMGREVBREABEFEN T
—ANFZAZ T AEREEET LT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-_Z—AF+_A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANARENES
Equity
component of Share Non-
Share Share  convertible options  Translation Special  Accumulated controlling
capital premium bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TRERS FER
(%3 BRHEE EERS BRERG BEGRR GG 2itER A BRER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Thr Thn TEx TET TET TEL Thn Thr TEx
(Note 33) (Note 31) (Note 38) (Note)
(F733) (HizE31) (Fi3t38) (W)
At 1 January 2014 R-E-MmE—f-A 35,177 45729 29,651 - - 6,026 (106,080) 10,503 (14) 10,489
Loss for the year AERER - - - - - - (27,393) (27,393) (1,454) (28,847)
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEEEMZE (AR RA:
for the year:
~ Bxchange differences arising on ~BEENERMELN
translating foreign operations EAZE - - - - (185) - - (185) 20 (165)
Total comprehensive expense for theyear — AFE2ERXHE - - - - (185) - (27,39) (27,578) (1.434) (29012)
Placing of new shares (Note 33(b) REHRH (HE330) 16,000 134,400 - - - - - 150,400 - 150,400
Transaction costs attributable to placing of & R EHBRR 2 X BHA
new shares - (4,502) - - - - - (4,502) - (4,502)
Recognition of equity component of AEREFREDS
convertible bonds (Note 31) (GEE] - - 7671 - - - - 7671 - 7671
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+=f=+-8 51,177 175,627 37302 - (185) 6,026 (133473) 136,494 (1,448) 135,046
Attributable to the owners of the Company
ADARENERL
Equity
component of Share Non-
Share Share  convertible options  Translation Special  Accumulated controlling
capital premium bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TRRES FER
B& RAEE BEPS  BRERE BEGRE Rl GE it 8 At L $ At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TRL TERL TER TER FEL FEL TRL TERL TER TEL
(Note 33) (Note 31) (Note 38) (Note)
(F&E33) (PEE31) (Fi5E38) (W)
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-HE-F-B 51177 175,627 37302 = (185) 6,026 (133,473) 136,494 (1,448) 135,046
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - - - (59,214) (59,214) (537) (59,751)
Other comprehensive expense for the year: ARG EE {2 :
- Exchange differences arising on —HEENERMELY
translating foreign operations EizE - - - = (7,844) - - (7,844) (4 (7,848)
Total comprehensive expense for theyear —~ AFE2ERZHE - - - = (7,844) - (59,214) (67,058) (541) (67,599)
Issue of shares upon conversion of SEaRREFRRTRG
convertible bonds (Note 33(f) (BizE33(f) 24,500 (1,920) (21,056) - - - - 1524 - 1,524
Issue of shares upon acquisition of WBREMEREIRER
an investment property (Note 33(c)) (B3330) 1,256 11,646 - - - - - 12,902 - 12,902
Placing of new shares (Note 33(d)) RERRN (F333) 12,580 113,220 - - - - - 125,800 = 125,800
Transaction costs attributable to REFRABERIRAE
placing of new shares - (1,258) - - - - - (1,258) - (1,258)
Issue of shares in consideration for the fEBKEHBARNRE
acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33(e)) METRE (H533() 1,061 7213 - - - - - 8,274 1,724 9,998
Recognition of equity component of RTRREFERDD
convertible bonds (Note 31) (FizE31) - - 8,652 - - - - 8,652 - 8,652
Recognition of equity-settled share based ~ BEFZMER EH RUKR A
payments (Note 38) AR (H538) - - - 2,300 - - - 2,300 - 2,300
Capital contribution to a subsidiary A—HHBREELER
(as defined in Note 40(b)) L& (T4 RHTEE400)) - - - - - - - - 46,500 46,500
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F+-A=1+-H 90,574 304,528 24,918 2,300 (8,029) 6,026 (192,687) 227,630 46,235 273,865
Note: B 5

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
amount of share and share premium of the former subsidiary of the
Company and the nominal amount of the Company'’s shares issued

pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2002.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE—T-—AF+-_A=1+—BHIFE

2015 2014
—®2-1f%f —T0OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Loss before taxation BR 5 Bl S 12
— from continuing operations —RERBEKEE (55,837) (25,412)
— from discontinued operations —REBR I EET (1,051) (3,387)
(56,888) (28,799)
Adjustments for: HTHIEEELFE:
Finance costs RN 4,093 2,457
Depreciation for plant and equipment B R EITE 1,260 639
Amortisation of an intangible asset BV EE#HE 133 -
Share based payments VARRAD B AR 2,300 -
Increase in fair value of S E YN A NFEE
investment properties, net (2,759) (451)
Decrease in fair value of financial asset at BEATFEFABRRZ
fair value through profit or loss ERMEEATERD 15,936 1,129
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill AEEREZREEE 908 -
Impairment loss recognised on other BEE M FE W RIERE 2
receivables VERIEN i 3,515 -
Impairment loss recognised on HERERREREEIR
loan receivables 4,000 -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERIHEHERE ZEE
investments - 3
Gain on bargain purchase = BUE K A (507) -
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HE R &R e - (140)
Gain on fair value of contingent FAREB 2z A TFERE
consideration (999) -
Share of result of associates DR S N A ELE (947) (4,047)
Interest income B U A (1,718) (355)
Operating cash flows before movements AREEEREBNZ
in working capital KEReRE (31,673) (29,564)
Decrease in deposit paid for operating right B EERER D 1,200 -
Increase in inventories FEEN (235) (934)
Increase in trade and other receivables R LA B 3k Rz L At R LAk T 38 (4,397) (8,438)
Increase in financial assets at fair value EAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss & B E E N (27,989) (21,874)
(Decrease) increase in trade and JE A<F BR R % EL A JE A< SR IE
other payables Rt A ) 38 AN (10,474) 5,417
Net cash used in operations EBTAIRE F5E (73,568) (55,393)
Income tax paid ERATEH (46) -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES & £KEFABRSFE (73,614) (55,393)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE—T-—RF+-_A=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—B-HE —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received 2 U FE 7 355
Loan advance BRHERK (26,896) -
Purchase of plant and equipment BEWE & (1,491) (4,239
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (18,607) (17,020)
Deposit paid for acquisition of ENKRERE LB 2ZS
plant and equipment (1,309) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of ENKBRENE S
investment properties - (14,113)
Loan to non-controlling interests M) FE1E AR AR SR A 2 VE B &K - (735)
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEERENMFHRIE
investments - 1
Proceeds on disposal of plant and equipment & B E K & & H P15 508 198 140
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WS B A A e IR & b F 58
subsidiaries (Note 40) (Pff5¥40) (45,793) (24,213)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBBHFAREFE (93,891) (59,824)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BE B
Transaction costs from issue of BITAIMRESR 2 X HHA
convertible bonds (702) (352)
Interest paid =R (2,537) (2,270)
Advance from non-controlling interests FEER R RS 2 BK 959 245
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEERR R E R ITE
interests 46,500 -
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHRAD 2 FT1S RIE 125,800 150,400
Transaction costs from issue of new shares BATHRRD 2 X H KA (1,258) (4,502)
Loan from non-controlling interests REFIERBRRERE R - 735
Repayment of loan to a former fellow BEEAMRRMBATER
subsidiary - (2,060)
Repayment of loan to a shareholder BERRER = (4,429)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBHREREFHE 168,762 137,767
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBeSEEMFR
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,257 22,550
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FOzHekBRe%E
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 36,995 14,552
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXREE 2B (1.381) (107)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEZRREEFE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, AIRTTE R MRS FIR
represented by bank balances and cash 36,871 36,995
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

General

China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Company Law
of the Cayman Islands on 30 November 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"”) since 5
February 2002.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Company re-domiciled from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda by way of de-registration in the Cayman
Islands and continuation as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda. The change of domicile
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on
15 October 2007 and the Company was continued
into Bermuda with limited liability with effect from 29
October 2007.

The addresses of the registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and the principal place of business of the Company
is 25/F.,, Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The directors of the Company do not
consider any company to be the ultimate holding
company and parent company of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
business of one-stop value chain services, property
investment, trading of consumables and agricultural
products and trading of grocery food products. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group was
also engaged in the health care services and trading of
ceramic products which were discontinued in current
year (see note 10).

HAMIERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE
—REEREREE
—REIE
PREBRELERAERAF(RAQFANDR
—EETF+ A=+ AREFASES
NEVEERERSEMA Y A —HER
RBRAQAC

AARIBRONER-_EE_F_AHHE
BEBBARSAR AR ([#2FT]) Al
¥R (TEIZER]) Eme

REZ_FTEELtF+A=+—81t
FE -ARAFEARASEESEUETM
EBRBEBREENERER 2 RRT
B EFeHEEMzaRE-Bfic
EARNRBRER-_ZEZELtF+A+H
BitE MARREBE_EE+LFT+A
TThBRBERERARRBRER

-
4o

RN A 2 w3 S B o 3k & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda- ME & XME R A
BHBEFRRBE188RIKL 0251 o K
RAEZFVEZREEMAGTHEKAEELR
A SELIER AR R AT -

ARARREMBAR (R IAEEH])
T2RFE-UAEBERRE BDEX
B OHRRMREREZMERRME
SGZEB - RBE_ZT—HAF+=H
=T HLEFE AEETEEEERR
BRELMEERE S ZFLEEK
ERARFARLIE (RHEI0) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz—_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

1.

68

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
(continued)

General (continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company. Other than those
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and incorporated in Taiwan whose
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB"”) and New
Taiwan dollars ("NTD") respectively, the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is HK$.

Basis of preparation

The Group has been continuously incurring losses
in these years. Nevertheless, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its operating cash
flows as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period given
that:

(i) the directors of the Company will continuously
review the cost structure of the Group and
formulate appropriate cost saving measures to
improve the performance and the cash flows of
the Group's operations; and

(ii) the directors of the Company anticipate that
the Group will generate positive cash flows
from its operations.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare these
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 on a going concern basis. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amount and
reclassification of assets and liabilities that might be
necessary should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIB ¥ £ REFR A7
Annual Report 2015 —Z—AEF i

—REERGREE (&)

—R=E (#)

A mRAEIT (BIT]) 258
TR ARRZINERR - BRZFRT
EARKME (THEKRIZEREGE
MR Z B AR DBIAARE (TA
REDRFa®([Fa®l)RUNEE
BN KRR REWBARZINEE R
BRABTT

mBEE

AEERNIFRBEELER - BEW
o ARBNEFTRR AKELERH
HEETRNEARSHREREK T =
BRAARBEZEERE N U ER

() AREEHERMAEBENKA
iEE LHIF] A B ENE AN
e A EARRBEBOHRIRK
RERE: M

(i) ARFBEFEH AEEKEH
EBELLRSRE-

Hit XARIEERAE ERHELER
EREHE_T-—AF+_A=+—H
I FENZEGREMBEREIBAE-
RAVBBRRT TN EEMAEERER
BreEmaBLENTREREEK
BENEOERENSENAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs, which include
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS(s)”), amendments and interpretations,
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA™).

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

Amendments to  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
HKAS 19 Contributions

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition” and ‘market condition’; and
(i) add definitions for ‘performance condition’” and
‘service condition” which were previously included
within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The
amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based
payment transactions for which the grant date is on or
after 1 July 2014.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE
FEFH%E*T&%M““‘T?% B R %

Al ([BEEMBHRELEN D RFE
,%’A &) 1% B
RARFEE AEBECEATIHEES
SRR g ([BEAGAE]) B
] RMERT BB M R EER - Eh
BREEBVHHRELD  FE G LR
(IEEGTER]) B REZE-

BAMBHREEN —T-THEE-T--F
EEIEN B BRRBRER
Al F Rt
BRMBHRE LN T —FE-F-=F
EEIEN B BRRBRER

Bz EE
EEeHENE19% REEAGHE:EEHRK
ZIERTA

B NPt E SN RAEE M HR &
R BBV B REENHAEENAK
FERBEFENPBRERRMARE,
R FRAM B MEAHZEEFAL
DN X

CE-REECER-_FRANCERY
BHREZ 2 FERE
TE-REE-T-_FREMCERY
BRELER 2 FENERRETERE
BRI E R 2 ZIRERTA - i
e

A

AI

BB BREEINE 2R ZEFTAI)E R
SFEBIRM] & BN ZE®  K(ii)
MABRE TRB MG R ITRBEE] 2
EE ZSEEFACERATREK
2R - BAMBMEERF2RZ
BRI AERNEL BN R - T—MNFE+
A—RAR 2R ZUBRH N Z2R5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

2.

70

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability should be measured at fair value at each
reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the
scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be
recognised in profit or loss. The amendments to HKFRS
3 are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity
to disclose the judgments made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria to operating
segments, including a description of the operating
segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating
segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity's assets
should only be provided if the segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of
HKFRS 13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and
consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS
9 did not remove the ability to measure short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rate
at their invoice amounts without discounting, if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item
of property, plant and equipment or an intangible
asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that
the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner
consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/
amortisation is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a
management entity providing key management
personnel services to a reporting entity is a related
party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the
reporting entity should disclose as related party
transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision
of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is
not required.

The directors of the Company do not consider that
the application of the amendments to HKFRSs 2010
— 2012 has had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

e B BRHE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard
does not apply to the accounting for the formation
of all types of joint arrangement in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope
of the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value
of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities
on a net basis includes all contracts that are within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS
39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet
the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities
within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS
40 and HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and
application of both standards may be required.
Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property
must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a
business combination under HKFRS 3.

The amendments are applied prospectively. The
directors of the Company consider that the application
of the amendments to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle has
had no material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Part 9 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 622)

In addition, the annual report requirement of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation during
the financial year. As a result, there are changes to
presentation and disclosure of certain information in
the consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)  Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle’

Amendments to  Disclosure Initiative’
HKAS 1
Amendments to  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38
Amendments to  Agriculture: Bearer Plants’
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to  Equity Method in Separate Financial
HKAS 27
Amendments to  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
HKAS 28 Venture’
Amendments to  Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 10, Consolidation Exception’
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Depreciation and Amortisation’

Statements’

Amendments to  Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
HKFRS 11 Joint Operations’
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2018.

3 Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except
as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 and
includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended
to bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge
accounting that will allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in the financial
statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued
in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS
9 that were issued in previous years with limited
amendments to the classification and measurement by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” ("FVTOCI”) measurement category for
certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS
9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as
follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)

AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities" credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.

o In the aspect of impairment assessments,
the impairment requirements relating to the
accounting for an entity’s expected credit losses
on its financial assets and commitments to
extend credit were added. Those requirements
eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the
impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.
Instead, expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses should always
be accounted for. The amount of expected
credit losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

° HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which
is more closely aligns hedge accounting with
risk management activities undertaken by
companies when hedging their financial and
non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at
whether a risk component can be identified
and measured and does not distinguish
between financial items and non-financial
items. The new model also enables an entity
to use information produced internally for risk
management purposes as a basis for hedge
accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary
to exhibit eligibility and compliance with the
requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes.
The new model also includes eligibility
criteria but these are based on an economic
assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk
management data. This should reduce the costs
of implementation compared with those for
HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces
the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
early application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies
to contracts with customers, featuring a contract-
based five-step analysis of transactions to determine
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.
The five steps are as follows:

(i) Identify the contract with the customer;

(ii) Identify the performance obligations in the
contract;

(i) Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
application permitted. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’'s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
until the Group performs a detailed review has been
completed.

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing
from one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal
through sale or disposal through distribution to
owners) to the other should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of
the original plan. There is therefore no interruption
of the application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing
the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
Cycle (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing
involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess
the nature of the fee and arrangement against the
guidance for continuing involvement in HKFRS 7 in
order to assess whether the additional disclosures for
any continuing involvement in a transferred asset that
is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides, the
amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures
in relation to offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report, unless the disclosures provide a
significant update to the information reported in the
most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market
depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed
based on the currency in which the obligation is
denominated, rather than the country where the
obligation is located. When there is no deep market
for high quality corporate bonds in that currency,
government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information
in the notes to the interim financial statements
‘if not disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial
report’. The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify that
the required interim disclosures must either be in the
interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statements
and wherever they are included within the greater
interim financial report. The other information within
the interim financial report must be available to users
on the same terms as the interim financial statements
and at the same time. If users do not have access to
the other information in this manner, then the interim
financial report is incomplete.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
Cycle (continued)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKFRSs 2012 —
2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should
use professional judgement in determining what
information as well as where and in what order
information is presented in the financial statements.
Specifically, an entity should decide, taking into
consideration all relevant facts and circumstances, how
it aggregates information in the financial statements,
which include the notes. An entity does not require
to provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if
the information resulting from that disclosure is not
material. This is the case even if the HKFRS contain
a list of specific requirements or describe them as
minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items,
headings and subtotals when their presentation is
relevant to an understanding of the entity’s financial
position and financial performance respectively.
Entities, in which they have investments in associates
or joint ventures, are required to present the share of
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for using the equity method,
separated into the share of items that (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (i) will
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

BrR5 SRR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE

2.

82

—T-REFT-A=T—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)"”)
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
(continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i) an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its
financial statements when determining the
order of the notes; and

(ii) significant accounting policies are not required
to be disclosed in one note, but instead can
be included with related information in other
notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of amendments to HKAS 1 in the future
may have a material impact on the disclosures made in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use
of revenue-based depreciation methods for
property, plant and equipment under HKAS
16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-
based amortisation methods for intangible assets is
inappropriate. This presumption can be rebutted only
in the following limited circumstances:

(i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; and

(i) when a high correlation between revenue and
the consumption of the economic benefits of
the intangible assets could be demonstrated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”)
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will
become effective for financial statements with annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments should be
applied prospectively.

As the Group uses straight-line method for
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of an intangible asset, the directors of
the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing
the acknowledged inconsistency between the
requirements in HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its joint venture and associate. An
investing entity is required to recognise the gain or
loss arising from selling or contributing assets that
constitutes or contains a business to a joint venture
or associate in full. An investing entity is required
to recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or
contributing assets that does not constitute or contain
a business to a joint venture or associate only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that joint
venture or associate.

The effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 has not yet been determined. However,
earlier application is permitted. The amendments
should be applied prospectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture (continued)

As the Company does not have any sale or
contribution of assets with its associates and
investment in joint operations, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The amendments clarify the requirements when
accounting for investment entities as well as provide
relief in particular circumstances, which will reduce the
costs of applying the standards. Specifically, a parent
entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity
is exempted from preparing consolidated financial
statements. A parent entity which is also a subsidiary
of an investment entity and hold interests in associates
and joint ventures is exempted from applying equity
method if it meets all the conditions stated in
paragraph 4(a) of HKFRS 10.

Besides, the amendments clarify if an investment
entity has a subsidiary that is not itself an investment
entity and whose main purpose and activities are
providing investment-related services that relate to the
investment entity’s investment activities to the entity
or other parties, it should consolidate that subsidiary.

If the subsidiary that provides the investment-related
services or activities is itself an investment entity,
the investment entity parent should measure that
subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss. If an
entity that is not itself an investment entity has an
interest in an associate or joint venture that is an
investment entity, the entity may, when apply the
equity method, retain the fair value measurement
applied by that investment entity associate or joint
venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint
venture’s interests in subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
AND NEW HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception (continued)

Furthermore, if a parent that is an investment entity
and has measured all of its subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss, that investment entity should
present the disclosures relating to investment entities
required by HKFRS 12 in its financial statements. If
an investment entity has consolidated its subsidiary in
which the subsidiary itself is not an investment entity
and whose main purpose and activities are providing
services that relate to the investment activities of its
investment entity parent, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 apply to financial statements in which the
investment entity consolidates that subsidiary.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 will become effective for financial statements with
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Earlier application is permitted.

As the Company does not have any investments in
investment entities, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of the amendments
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The principle accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If
a subsidiary prepares its financial statements using
accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s financial
statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(i) the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the Group's returns. When the
Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained
through: (i) a contractual arrangement with other
vote holders; (i) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (iii) the Group’s voting rights and
potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the
above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of these elements of control
stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income of subsidiaries are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs incurred to effect a business
combination are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except deferred tax assets or liabilities arising
from the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
in the business combinations are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the Group's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by
another standards, are measured at acquisition-date
fair value except for non-controlling interests that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are measured either at
fair value or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. When the consideration transferred
by the Group in a business combination includes assets
or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Other contingent consideration that is within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at
each reporting date, and changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with HKAS
39. Other contingent consideration that is not within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at each
reporting date and changes in fair value are recognised
in profit or loss.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU(s)") (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

The Group's policy for goodwill relating to an
associate that included in the carrying amount of
the investment is set out in “interests in associates”
below.

Interests in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

The Group's interests in associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. Under the equity method, interests
in associates are initially recognised at cost. The
Group'’s share of the profit or loss and changes in the
other comprehensive income of the associates are
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively after the date of acquisition. If
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interests in the associate, which
determined using the equity method together with
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net interests in the associates, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are provided for, and a liability
is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates.

If the associates use accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, adjustments are made to make
the associates’ accounting policies conform to those of
the Group when the associates’ financial statements
are used by the Group in applying the equity method.

Interests in associates are accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of
the investment, any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates are
recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

After application of the equity method, including
recognising the associates’ losses (if any), the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
any additional impairment loss with respect to its
interests in the associates. Goodwill that forms part
of the carrying amount of interests in associates
is not separately recognised. The entire carrying
amount of the interests (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the interests in the associates. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised in
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates.
The Group's share in the associates’ gains or losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost
of items of plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

3.

92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Plant and equipment (continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

Intangible asset acquired in a business
combination

Intangible asset acquired in a business combinations
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at its fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated
statement of financial position comprise cash at banks
and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as
defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of three categories, including FVTPL,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-_T-—AF+-_A=1+—BLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

94

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments (other than
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL) of
which interest income is included in other gain
or loss, net.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are either held for
trading or designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

The Group designated its investment in unlisted
convertible bond as financial assets at FVTPL,
since the conversion right attached with the
bond is closely related, no separation between
the conversion option and bond component is
made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE

3.

96

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other gain or loss,

et”, line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 35(c).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, deposit paid for operating right,
loan to non-controlling interests, and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment loss (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_T-—AF+-_A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

98

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade and other receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

()

Financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets
is reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, loan to
non-controlling interest and deposit paid for
operating right, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade or other receivable, loan
receivable, loan to non-controlling interest and
deposit paid for operating right, is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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3.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

The Group's liabilities are classified into other
financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and
other payables, amount due to non-controlling
interests, bank borrowing, loan from non-
controlling interests and debt component of
convertible bonds, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company'’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_T-—AF+-A=1+—BHLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the
gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity,
is included in equity (equity component of
convertible bonds).

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in equity
component of convertible bonds until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case
the balance stated in equity component
of convertible bonds will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in equity component of convertible
bonds will be released to the accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iij)  Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-current asset held for sale

Non-current asset is classified as held for sale if its
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
Such classification requires the asset must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset and its sale is highly probable. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current asset classified as held for sale is
measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and services
rendered in the normal course of business, net of
discounts, and sales related taxes, if any.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

3. EXEFEX(H)

EMIA (&)

(i) BUH R
EREEWRRCREZAKE
MEm emEERHZEE

FRA 1 Z R KB 5 Bk & [0 e
%yj:/ﬂé/ﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁ‘]’ EHX/%EEWU
BEE-

REBMEEEREMEER
ZEEEREE HE R RER
REREREMEEKZ R RE
R R BT RE 2 EAME
L ETERBEPER -

EAEE 2 BEEEMER K

JEmEs - TEURRCBAE &
HUBRER 2 BB 8 2 Bk (52
EffKENRERZZEN B
HHER

BELEZERBEE
WIERBDEELRAENERALER S
sl - IS @ EERIKDE - BlH%E
RSIEEHEZEE-ZBHEBRATE &
EHERREE —REABHGKHAE
BAERSNEENRER  EEH KA
AR M HE - BIRE N EARE
MiEE MEBEE AR, BRE—F
NEERERAE—BTEHE-

SEABIELE 2 ERB AR ERE
AEENMEEERATEL BELR
B AR -

Uy 355 e 52

% 5 TR B WSk B E 2 A ER
B UWER—REBBERELER
RERBE 2 YR BE MR R
HEMRBEHRIA (1F) °

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4+ REFRA T 103
Annual Report 2015 — T —HFF i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect

of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
lease.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$ using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserves (attributable
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme contributions
Payments to the defined contribution plans in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Taiwan are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries in
the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz—_Z—AFt+-_A=+—HLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss. When current tax or deferred tax arises from
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the date of grant is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE

3.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of goodwill
above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's
share-based payment transactions, leasing transaction,
net realisable value of inventories and value in use of
goodwill for the purpose of impairment assessment,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

110 china Eco-Farming Limited PEIBEEREFR AT

Annual Report 2015 —Z —

hFFR

3.

EXRETEE (&)
BREEREREEZREBERR
UEBENSFBRRZBEERERD
(mﬁ)

AW el & B S R R BN FIE
BEMETRSE FHEMAEBEERK

RARBAITR XS ETRAIRERE
WIREHRE - R R EREERRTIGE
RPN BB SREBEMZEENE
BEE BRI SR L

%ﬁéo

ffbFHEE (SR ELEM) 2K E
SRINEREER RIZEE (He
EABM) 2 REESHREH KD
T AR ER BRI N B R R -

MEREEREER IEE (FBRE
ELBMN) 2 REESEMEETKRD
TR BIERIER EATE I Z REE
TR EFEYERZEE (K
ReELBU)BAREBEENDETE
Z B TE B o 0 (B /85 18 3 [m] B By R 58 A IR
Ao

DV EEE

AT ERQFE (REBABD M 2R
7 HERS FE A 2R FE R
RAERHE T S AT 2B EEKIN)
B AEEEREZEMS2EENGE
AHEESRBETERMERZEEN
BEZRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’'s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs,
as follow:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
determines whether transfer occur between levels
of the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities
which are measured at fair value on recurring basis by
reviewing their respective fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised and disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern and liquidity

The assessment of the going concern assumptions
involves making judgement by the directors of the
Company, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. Please refer to note 1 in relation
to the going concern assumptions adopted by the
directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The Group determines whether an acquisition of
subsidiaries qualifies as acquisition of business
in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combination or acquisition of assets that require
judgment. The directors of the Company consider
the substance of the acquisition of subsidiaries
that constitute a business will be accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combination, in case the acquisition of subsidiaries
does not constitute a business, it is classified as
acquisition of assets. Details of acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group during the year are set out in
note 40.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of goodwill is approximately HK$18,414,000 (31
December 2014: HK$908,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$908,000 (31 December 2014:
nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 18.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE
EXSTHHABRGHFTIREREZ
FEXRR (&)

FERETEE ZBRE & (&)

Wi F g A Al
AEEEFTWENBRARESEERRE
FBPBwEERNEIN (KEFT)EHK
EHRNBEEREHE - AARESE
R WENBQRBK —EEBOR
BARIER W HmE ERF35% (L
R EBARKBEESIRR - BUIEN
BARIE B —IBER AR ER
BEWE - ARERNFE RN E
NE 2 FHIFHE M40 ©

A TRERZRZEEZRR

T E I ¥R E BRI Al sE E B A
BEREER T - MRFEFERFELE
RAEZ RRBBEERRR LT HE
ERRZEMEZRIR-

BEZHE
ErfmfZttREAYEESREEE
ZHReEEBN 2 FEAEBEEL G-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment loss on interests in
associates

The directors of the Company determined whether
interests in associates are impaired by reference to an
estimation of recoverable amount of investment. The
recoverable amount of interests in associates requires
the group to estimate the future cash flow expected to
arise from the associates and a suitable discount rate
including the risk adjustment in order to calculate the
present value. The assumption includes management
best estimate of the set of economic condition in the
future.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
interests in associates is approximately HK$44,678,000
(2014: HK$43,731,000). No impairment loss is
recognised in both years.

Allowance for doubtful debts

Allowance for doubtful debts is made based on the
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables, and loan receivables. The identification of
doubtful debts requires the directors of the Company
to make judgement and estimates. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness, past collection history
of each debtor as well as the collateral received by
the Group. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of trade and
other receivables, and loan receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/written back in the period in which the
estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Allowance for doubtful debts (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amounts
of trade and other receivables were approximately
HK$1,267,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
nil) and HK$8,308,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$3,515,000) respectively
(2014 carrying amount of trade receivables of
approximately HK$888,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of nil) and carrying amount of other
receivables of approximately HK$5,008,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$800,000)). Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables recognised for the year ended
31 December 2015 amounting to approximately
HK$3,515,000 (2014: nil).

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
loan receivables was approximately HK$27,896,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$4,000,000) (2014: HK$5,000,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of nil)). Impairment loss
on loan receivables recognised for the year ended
31 December 2015 amounting to approximately
HK$4,000,000 (2014: nil).

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of the financial position at 31 December
2015 at their fair value of approximately
HK$190,070,000 (2014: HK$28,812,000). The fair
value was based on a valuation on these properties
conducted by an independent firm of professional
valuers using property valuation techniques which
involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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800,000/7L) ) HE_T—HF+=
A=1T—HBIEFE 2 #7R%3,515,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

As described in note 35(c), the directors of the
Company use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial
instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. Financial instruments are valued using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions
supported, where possible, by observable market
prices or rates. The estimation of fair value of unlisted
convertible bonds includes some assumptions not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The
carrying amount of the unlisted convertible bonds
designated at FVTPL as at 31 December 2015 is nil
(31 December 2014: approximately HK$5,189,000).
Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in note
35(c). The directors of the Company believe that the
chosen valuation techniques and assumptions are
appropriate in determining the fair value of financial
instruments

Fair value of share options

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value
of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

Fair value of profit guarantee

The directors of the Company use their judgement
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
measuring the fair value of profit guarantee. Details of
the assumptions used are disclosed in Note 40(a). The
directors believe that the chosen valuation techniques
and assumptions are appropriate in determining the
fair value of the profit guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

REVENUE 5. Uk &=

Revenue represents revenue arising on one-stop value
chain services, rental income, trading of consumables
and agricultural products, and trading of grocery
food products for the year. An analysis of the Group's
revenue for the year from continuing operations is as

Wamts— A EEERY HeBA-
HREMMEREME S BHRMEZIR
FREEN KRG AEERFRNERFE
REXBH ST

follows:
2015 2014
—g-EF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Restated)
(ge&E5)
One-stop value chain services —uh N EE#E R 57,235 18,342
Rental income (Note) e WA (K1) 1,521 156
Trading of consumables and HEMRERERE
agricultural products 703 4,889
Trading of grocery food products BHRRE S 289 -
59,748 23,387
Note: B sk -
2015 2014
—E—FHF —ET-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Gross rental income el 4Bz 1,521 156
Less: outgoings (included in cost of sales) & : St HH (T ABYER ) (264) (28)
Net rental income He W A FEE 1,257 128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
6. OTHER GAIN OR LOSS, NET

6. HttWENEIEFH

2015 2014
—®2-hf —T-NOF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Continuing operations HEREXK
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERATFEFABRZ
at FVTPL TREE WS 3,612 419
Loss on concert project held (Note) BYEERIER BB (M) (2,825) -
Interest income F B U A 1,718 355
Other rental income HaH2 WA 3 10
Gain on bargain purchase EEWE RS 507 -
Gain on fair value of contingent ERFAREBZz 2 FEKS
consideration payable 999 -
Impairment loss recognised on HEEmR R EEER
goodwill (908) -
Gain on disposal of plant and & M E & e W e
equipment - 140
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale ~ H&r[{H &R E M EE
investments - (3)
Dividend income from financial assets &2 A FEzFAEZE Z
at FVTPL T EEERE WA 785 17
Impairment loss recognised BEE b B W RIB HERR
on other receivables A EE (3,515) -
Impairment loss recognised MEWE R R 2 RERBE
on loan receivables (4,000) -
Sundry income FEIFA 1,344 33
(2,280) 971
Note: B sk -
On 5 February 2015, the subsidiary of the Company entered R-E—AF-_AHEH AARHBARH
into an agreement with an independent third party for BN E=HE—EME  URPREYE
holding a concert in the PRC and paid an initial deposit of Ee W NUBEES ARS5,0000007T

RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,250,000).
The concert had been held on 13 June 2015 and loss of
approximately RMB2,260,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$2,825,000) was resulted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments, based on
information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focus on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reporting
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

HAMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE
REAARFEFTG (AXTELERR
B)RENER AEERETERDE
MOBRBFEEDNKLENREER

PRSI M B m e ARG RI KR Bl - R
EYAEENRIZERO AR T ELE
SRR E AP AR B RO AR & o SRR N

Tﬁzi$ E@FE%WW% /U
ERB DR ERAZHARWMT

1. One-stop value chain services - provision of total solution services including trading,
packaging and logistics solutions

1. —UAEEERS - REZEMRIR(BEES BEEMRERTR)R
%

2. Property investment - generated rental income from operating leases of Group's
investment properties

2. MERAE - REEREMELEHEELN —RES KA

3. Trading of consumables and - trading of consumables and agricultural products

agricultural products

3. BEHEMREEMRES - HEMREEME S

4. Trading of grocery - trading of grocery food products
food products

4. BhmEmE - BmE

Upon the acquisition of 70% of the equity interest in
YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited (“YIHE"), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"),
and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “YIHE
Group”) during the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group commenced the trading of grocery food
products. As a result, a new segment of trading of
grocery food products was added under operating and
reporting segments in the current year. Details are set
out in note 40(b).

REBEE-_Z-—AF+-_A=+—HL
FRERBEALEERARAQR ([EH
Bl —ERNRBREAES ([RBRE
LRE MMz A5 &R HH
F“ﬂ’%ﬁ%ﬁﬁé%lDZm%%

@ ARECHREBHRME S -H
Et#ﬂﬁ% %%ﬁ”ﬁEMA$¢
BZRERAZ2HNE - FHEFFHAN
40(b) °

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4+ REFRA T 119

Annual Report 2015 — T —HFF i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE

7.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. SEER (8)
Operating segments regarding health care services and BEEEEREREEREEAEREFHR
trading of ceramic products were discontinued in the BRI RNEBIR |F&E - NHFF 2R
current year. The segment information reported on the E’j/\*ﬁéﬂlT B E R | 4R
next pages does not include any amounts for these FEHEM L5 R EERFIEH N
discontinued operations, details which are described in 10 °
note 10.
Segment revenues and results DHENBERXEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue UTARNEBRIRI 2R E LS IEE D
and results from continuing operations by reportable TEBEREERINE N EE S
and operating segments:
For the year ended 31 December BZt+-B=+—BHLEE
Continuing operations
REREER
Trading of
One-stop value consumables and Trading of grocery
chain services Property investment agricultural products food products Total
- U EEERE NERE HERREERES BRERES @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“%2-1f -Z-NF Z-%-1f C-E-NF Z-%-1f C-E-MF C-%-1f - C-%-1f C—E-|F
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TEx TEL TER TEr TEn Thr TEr TER TEr TERL
(Restated)
(&5
REVENUE [$:
Bxternal sales e 535 1830 1,521 156 703 4889 %9 - soM8 1338
Segment profit (loss) AEREH (B8) 63 (1,165) 736 (120) (2,608) (2,606) (265) - (2,078) (3,891)
Unallocated corporate FARAAEMNRES
other gain or loss, net ERFE (1,372 971
Unallocated corporate expenses &2 B A AIRX (33,309) (22,953)
Decrease in fair value of finandial 82 FEGHABHZ
assets at FVTPL SREELTERD (15,936) (1,129
Share of results of associates PEBENTEE 947 4,047
Finance costs BENK (4,093) (2,457)
Loss before taxation BHAEE (55,837) (25,412)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents
the profit (loss) from each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, directors’ emoluments,
other gain or loss, net, (except for the impairment
loss recognised on goodwill), decrease in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL, share of results of associates
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. SEELE (HFE)
Segment assets and liabilities NTHEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and LT ABRERIZ ZW|MLEEESIEE D
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: CEREEBEST:
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
—®2-hf —T-NOF
+=A +=A
=+—H =t+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHT
(Restated)
(&%)
Segment assets DHEEE
Continuing operations HEKEEK
One-stop value chain services —uh BB IR 2,212 2,929
Property investment e 205,740 49,667
Trading of consumables and HEMEREMES
agricultural products 5,434 2,904
Trading of grocery food products BHREME S 24,954 -
Total segment assets NEEEHE 238,340 55,500
Assets relating to discontinued FHERIEREER 2 EE
operations - 2,841
Unallocated corporate assets ROBRREE 149,059 106,360
Consolidated assets CEEE 387,399 164,701
Segment liabilities DEERE
Continuing operations HEREXK
One-stop value chain services —uh B E RS 28 732
Property investment Y ERE 6,217 3,917
Trading of consumables and HEMREEME S
agricultural products 97 432
Trading of grocery food products BHREME S 287 -
Total segment liabilities NEaEER 6,629 5,081
Liabilities relating to discontinued EHDRIECEEBNEE
operations - 2,870
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMAREE 106,905 21,704
Consolidated liabilities CLEaE 113,534 29,655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than certain plant and equipment,
interests in associates,
investments, loan to non-controlling interests,
certain other receivables,
deposit paid for operating right, financial assets
at FVTPL, and bank balances and cash; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables, amount due
to non-controlling interests, bank borrowings,
income tax payable, loan from non-controlling
interests, liability component of convertible

bonds, contingent consideration payable and

deferred tax liabilities.
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7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. SEBEY (F)
Other segment information Hipmasr
Continuing operations
FREEER
Trading of Trading of
One-stop value consumables and grocery food
chain services Property investment agricultural products products Unallocated Total
—hARERRHS NERE HERRBERES BHERER FAR @it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
%-if -“I-pF Z%-RF “T-PF Z%-RF "T-0F Z®-5F TP Z¥-FF TP ZB-Rf “R-OF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T FiEn T TR L Fi#n ThL F#n TR R T
(Restated)
(&%5))
Amounts included in the measure Rt EHEEHEIHE
of seqment profit BERBHANSE
or loss or segment assets
Additions to non-current assets  FEREEERE (Mit)
(Note) = 260 173,613 36,216 1 1812 24,830 - 756 2,199 199,210 41,087
Increase n fair value of investment &M EAFERMFE
properties, net - - 2,759) (451) - - - - - - (2,759) (451)
Depreciation for plant and BRERFENE
equipment 52 2 230 17 n 142 - - 567 229 1,220 510
Amortisation of intangible asset  EF/AEHEH - - - - - - 133 - - - 133 -
Impairment loss recognised on AEERRZRERE
goodwil - - 908 - - - - - - - 908 -
Amounts regularly provided to EORETIEEE
chief operating decision maker RRERTHANE
but notincluded in the measure ~ BHHABEEL
of segment profit or loss HENGE
or segment assets
Gain on disposal of financial assets &R AT E AB#Z
at FVTPL SREENG = - = - © - o - (3,612) 419) (3.612) 419)
Loss on concert project held BREEEED R - - - - - - - - 2,825 - 2,825 -
Interest income LN - - - - - - - - (1,718) (355) (1.718) (355)
(Gain on disposal of plant and HERRERRE SR
equipment - - - - - - - - - (140) - (140)
Loss on disposal of avallable-for- ~ HEAEHERENER
sale investments - - - - - - - - - 3 - 3
Dividend income from financial A TFEF ABH 2
assets at FUTPL SREERS UM - - - - - - - - (785) (17) (785) (17)
Decrease in fair value of financial AT
assets at FVTPL ERAEDTERD - - - - - - - - 15,936 1129 15,936 1,129
(Gain on bargain purchase ZEEENE - - - - - - - - (507) - (507) -
Impairment loss recognised REBEUTERERL
on other receivables AERE - - - - - - - - 3515 - 3515 -
Impairment loss recognised RERERRAL
on loan receivables REEE - - - - - - - - 4,000 - 4,000 -
Gain on fair value of contingent SRR EMATEME
consideration - - - - - - - - (999) - (999) -
Share of results of associates MEBEAREE - - - - - - - - (947) (4,047) (947) (4,047)
Interests in associates REERAZER - - - - - - - - 44,678 3731 44,678 3,731
Finance costs AL = - - - - - - - 4,09 2457 4,093 2457
Taxation #E - - 2,885 - - 4 (22) - - - 2,863 4
Note: Non-current assets excluded those relating to Mzt ERDEETRIERDKRICEER

discontinued operations and excluded available-for-
sale investments.

BRZZFEE N IAEEAHEKE
BE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. oDEEE (')
Geographical information i & & #
Information about the Group’s revenue from REE K QINIE PRI E KL E &P
continuing operations from external customers BURENERIRERFEHEES] AE
is presented based on the location of customers. EIERHSEENIEEEMTEINEES -

Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the

assets.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RENHEFE 2z FRBEE
For the year ended
31 December As at 31 December
BEZ+-A=+—HILLEE W+ZHA=+-—-H
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-Hf —ZT-NF ZE-HE —T-NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FTEx FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&&=751)
Hong Kong 5 58,228 18,534 46,694 12,126
Macau B - 199 - -
The PRC H 1,365 - 199,195 68,655
Taiwan =y - 4,654 19,952 11,688
The United States of America EFEB A RE 155 - = -
59,748 23,387 265,841 92,469
Note: Bk
Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued ERDEETBFHDKRIELEEB R
operations and financial instruments. THBEBANZEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEBR (&)

Information about major customers EBRTEEZEENER

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years MHEEERARPL Z I A AREE I
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the AFBIB10% 7 50T

Group is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-HF _—T-MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Customer A’ BEPEA 7,052 15,136
Customer B’ BB 42,085 -
1 Revenue from one-stop value chain services segment ' ke —uh R EAERRS 2 W=
FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMK
2015 2014
—EB-HF —T—MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest on bank borrowing RITIEFFE 146 -
Effective interest expense on MR EF 2 ERNEEA
convertible bonds (Note 31(d)) (HEE31(d)) 3,947 2,364
Interest on loan from a former AR RMTB AR ERF A
fellow subsidiary - 29
Interest on loan from a shareholder IR E B - 64
4,093 2,457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

9.

TAXATION BiE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Continuing operations HEKEEK
Current tax: BOERRH 1A -
Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise BEENEEMENR
Income Tax — 48
Deferred tax (note 32): IEEFR IR (MIFE32) ¢
Current year REE 2,863 -
2,863 48

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No Hong
Kong Profits Tax is provided for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 as the Group did not have
any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008.
No EIT is provided for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 as the Group did not derive any
assessable profit subject to EIT.

The Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 17% of the estimated assessable profits
for both years. No Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax
is provided for the year ended 31 December 2015 as
the Group did not derive any assessable profit subject
to Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

TAXATION (continued) 9. BiE(H&)
The taxation for the years can be reconciled to the e FERNNERGSEBRLEMEE
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement WHHI R BT E R SER T ¢
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
(Restated)
(geE5)

Loss before taxation PR AT BT 1B

(from continuing operations) (BRFBCEER) (55,837) (25,412)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of ZBAFTEH R E16.5%:H

16.5% (2014: 16.5%) FfRIE (ZE—m4F: 16 5%) (9,213) (4,193)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A FIFE R X B 5 2 &

for tax purpose 8,098 2,163
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARMWARNRIEZE

tax purpose (1,999) (257)
Tax effect of share of results of DIEEE AR EENRE 2

associates (157) (668)
Tax effect of temporary difference AEREREZBIMBETE

not recognised 77 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 52 1 18 B3 18 B B 755 52 & 7,189 3,137
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) A DA A R 1 3R

difference previously not recognised A HR R = R (350) (118)
Utilisation of tax losses previously BAURI R ER 2 HIEER

not recognised = (19)
Effect of different tax rates of RARELERERKLEH

subsidiaries operating in other Sy =N RN b RS2

jurisdictions (782) 3
Taxation for the year (relating to FABIE (BEARBLEER)

continuing operations) 2,863 48
Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 32. EREEHIEMFBEHNME32
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

S
10.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 15 April 2015, the Group entered into a
termination agreement with the health care operator
to terminate the health care service business. As a
result, the operating segment of health care services
has been ceased by passing a board resolution on 15
April 2015. Details are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated on 15 April 2015.

On 30 June 2015, a board resolution has been passed
to discontinue the operating segment regarding
trading of ceramic products due to the sluggish
ceramic market and the decrease in the product
demand of ceramic products.

10.

ERIEREXRE

R-ZE-—RAFHUA+RA AEEEE
BIREEERFI LR IHE AR IEE
KH'JLHHK%@‘“ Rt - B8 AR 2 AR 75
RESBENZ ﬁi@ﬂ+£i§|u

BREES /%E%%E‘Wﬁ”ﬁi‘“ ° B
BABERENAARBERAA-T—RF
MA+H BB R

R-ZZT—RF~A=+H —BHEEE
RERERR B FHBEEDE
S E N EREEETIHESS REEE
EmWEMBERTEMEILLE -

The loss for the year from the discontinued operations BRI EERNANERZEBES T

is analysed as follows: T
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET

Total loss for the year RNEEEIBARE

— trading of ceramic products -fHEEME S (2 (24)
— health care services -ERRERS (1,049) (3,363)
(1,051) (3,387)
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 10.
(i) Discontinued operation-health care (i)
services

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

The results of the health care services for the
period from 1 January 2015 to 15 April 2015,
which have been included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income were as follows:

ERIEEEXRR (F)

ERIEEERE -BRRERE

BE-ZE—hAF—H—HEZZE
—HRFMN A+ B PEEERRE
BREHESE (HEFARESER
MEMPERER)OT

Period Year
ended ended
15/4/2015 31/12/2014
HE
BEZ —T—WOF
—E-HF +=A
mMA+HH =t—
1 A IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Revenue I = 6,403 22,154
Cost of sales 8 & A AR (4,885) (17,068)
Administrative expenses TEAX (2,567) (8,449)
Loss for the period/year RNEAREFEE R (1,049) (3,363)
Loss for the year from BRI E BN RFEEE
discontinued operation BIEATEIE:
included the following:
Depreciation for plant and B R EITE
equipment 40 129
Staff costs 8 TR A 195 318
Retirement benefits scheme RRRRFET B FR
contributions 6 16
Minimum lease payments paid BRM A GFTMLEHRENE
under operating leases N&EHEERIEA
in respect of office premises 1,866 6,461
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE
10.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 10. BARIEEEER (&)
(i) Discontinued operation-health care (i) ORITEEER -—BERRERE
services (continued)
During the year, the health care services FR - BEIREIRSE S EEE
segment contributed approximately AREBRRLH S RO FELY
HK$2,811,000 (2014: HK$12,632,000) of 2,811,000 L (—Z T — M4
the Group’s net operating cash outflows, 12,632,000/87T) * SMIEE 8=
paid approximately HK$118,000 (2014: {749118,000/ 7T (=& — P04 :
HK$452,000) in respect of investing activities 452,000 JT ) I 5t @t & 5E B U
and received approximately HK$144,000 R #1144,000%8 0 (ZZ— P4 :
(2014: HK$14,948,000) in respect of financing 14,948,000 70) ©
activities.
(ii) Discontinued operation-trading of ceramic (ii) CRUIEKEEE-BWEERES
products
The results of the trading of ceramic products BE-_ZEZ—ThFEF—A—H&2_%
for the period from 1 January 2015 to 30 —RFEARNAR=THEEBEEE®
June 2015, which have been included in the BoOMEE (HPt A AGEEER
consolidated statement of profit or loss and LEMmEEmkZER)MT:
other comprehensive income were as follows:
Period Year
ended ended
30/6/2015 31/12/2014
BHE
BZ —T—1OF
—E-IF +ZA
ANA=T1H =+—H
il IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Revenue Wees -
Administrative expenses THAX (2) (24)
Loss for the period/year RNEAREFEEE (2) (24)
During the year, the trading of ceramic FRN - BAERERE S BEHEAE

products segment contributed nil to the
Group’s net operating cash flows, investing
activities and financing activities.
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1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. ~EEESE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: REEBIEBRAING T &IEE58E
2015 2014
—E-HE —T—MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
(Restated)
(L&E5)
Continuing operations HEREER
Directors’ and chief executive’s BEERITRBE 2 5
emoluments (Note 12) (Mi5E12) 4,910 2,603
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ HME TR A (TREEEX
and chief executive’s emoluments) TR EL ) 6,169 5,225
Retirement benefits scheme RREFEEER (TEE
contributions (excluding directors BEERITHRAER)
and chief executive) 280 295
11,359 8,123
Auditors’ remuneration % B AT BN & 550 435
Amount of inventories recognised BRARI 2FENIA
as an expense 56,807 22,804
Amortisation of an intangible asset | A EE Y 133 -
Depreciation for plant and equipment /& K& REITE 1,220 510
Minimum lease payments paid AR LREYENREHER
under operating leases B &EHEERE
in respect of office premises 2,113 2,583
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five
(2014: eight) directors and the chief executive (the
“Chief Executive”) of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Executive directors

12. ESERITHARZME

BE_T-AFA-_ZT-OF+-A
=t HALFERARARAMES (=
TP\ 7) RITHAEE (117548
Bl)EaENAEMMENT

BE_F-AF+-A=1t—HLFE

Independent non-executive directors

HTES BUKHTES
Lai Yick Au Yeung
Fung Poleung  Zhang Min
(appointed on (appointed on (appointed on Ng Yick
So David 1 July 2 January 23 March  Cheuk Fan, Ting Fai,
Tat Man 2015) 2016) 2015) Keith Jeffrey Total
Bing BERER &R
(R=B-1%F (R=Z-~F (R=B-1%
tA-8 -A=H =ZA=t=H
BEY L £3:)) BZE) Ez4) RER SEEB Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TERT TER TET TERT TER
Emoluments paid or receivable in Bt A LEEAD AR
respect of a person's services asa  EMEARZEFH
director, whether of the Company & & S EMFE :
or its subsidiary undertaking:
- Fees - = = = 139 180 180 499
- Other emoluments -HftMe 1,204 668 - - - - 1,872
~ Retirement benefits scheme —RIREFI B
contributions 18 9 - - - - 27
- Share-based payments “URAAERZFR 1,519 355 - 142 142 142 2,300
Emoluments paid or receivable REFEMATRARAL
in respect of director's other ENBARSHERN
services in connection with the REMHE AM ek ENRIE
management of the affairs of (Fizti)
the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking (Note i)
- Other emoluments -HfMe - 207 - - - - 207
~ Retirement benefits scheme —RIREFI B
contributions - 5 - - - - 5
Total emoluments e 2,741 1,244 - 281 32 322 4,910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERTHERZHE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_E—MNE+-_A=1+—HILEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#Es BUFHiEs
Tsang Chi Hin, Chu Yu So David Cheung Lau Tin Tsang Hin Ng Cheuk Yick Ting
Chief Executive Man, Philip Tat Man Tak Shum Cheung  Fun Anthony Fan, Keith Fai, Jeffrey
(resignedon ~ (resignedon ~ (appointed on ~ (resigned on ~~ (resignedon  (resignedon  (appointed on  (appointed on
1 January 1 April 1Aprl 1 September Tlanuary  1September 1 September 1 September
2015) 2014) 2014) 2014) 2015) 2014) 2014) 2014) Total
m#
(fimg3) RHR BEX FER X RS RER PEE
(RZ5-1% (R-2-WF (R2F-0F (R-Z-BE (R2F-1F (Ro2-ME (RoF-DmE (R-Z-RE
-R-8 MR- -A-8 hA-8 -R-8 hA-H hA-H hA-8
&) FHE) BEfE) BHE) FHE) FHE) L $39) BZf) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin T Tt Fin T T T Fin T
Emoluments paid or receivablein ~ SEFATEEALTH
respect of a person's senvices asa AMBATZEEH
director, whether of the Company RS S EKFE:
or its subsidiary undertaking:
- Fees Bk B - - 160 180 120 60 60 580
- Other emoluments e 1,066 24 680 - - - - - 1,990
- Retirement benefits scheme -RINERIHEIER
contributions 17 3 13 - - - - - 3
Total emoluments HeaE 1,083 247 693 160 180 120 60 60 2,603
Note: Mf=E
(i) The emoluments represent the payments to Lai Yick (i) e iEmBs e AT R AERER
Fung in respect of his services in connection with the MRE MR EELR Z K-
management of the affairs of a subsidiary.
No Chief Executive of the Company for the year ended HE-_ZT—RAF+-_A=+—RHLF

31 December 2015 (2014: Mr. Tsang Chi Hin is the
Chief Executive of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as the Chief Executive.)

No director and Chief Executive waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments paid by the Group during the
two years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

During the two years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

E $” A EITHAR (—ZF—MF:
BEMILCENMBARNRRITRAS ﬁﬁﬁ
BEOME ERRIESITRAREIRHA
B2z )

BMEEERTRAHNELRBNER
SERBE_ZT—AFAR-_ZFT—NF
T - A=+—8 L MEFE e Em
Mz -

REBEE-Z-—AFE-_FT-—NFE+=
A=t—BIMEFE ZK%@EE?@%W
ARBEEXMNEMME  ER/IMAR
SERRINAR 2 2R - S F R BER S
18

o

i3

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE
13.

14.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2014: two) were directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in
the disclosures in note 12 above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2014: three) individuals were as

13.

BEM<

AEERUESHFMALH = (=
T—MF W) SARREEREHNE
EREXHF12PHWER AR mAL (=
T =) @R AT ZBE 0T

follows:

2015 2014
—F-Hf —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Basic salaries and allowances HEAH € RERL 1,053 1,424

Retirement benefits scheme RAIRAEFIFT B3R
contributions 36 40
1,089 1,464

The emoluments of each of the above employees were
within the band from nil to HK$1,000,000 during the
two years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

During the two years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
highest paid individuals (including the directors of the
Company and the Chief Executive) as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2015, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2014:
nil).
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

SO MBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE
15. BREE
FHRSERCRLIREXER
RRRER ANEIEFRER LB EER
TIERATBIEFE

2015 2014
—E-HF _—T-MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(g&E7)
Loss B
Loss for the year attributable to RRRHEBE AEGEREA
owners of the Company from RERER I EREEBD
continuing and discontinued REZER
operations (59,214) (27,393)
2015 2014
—EB-RF —T-MF
Number of shares R E
Weighted average number of TR INiE 8
ordinary shares for the purpose of (EREAEBEMS)
basic loss per share 3,682,030,759 2,376,947,252

Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion/exercise of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds set out in note 31 and options
to subscribe for additional shares set out in note 38
since their conversion/exercise would result in an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion/exercise of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds set out in note 31 since their
conversion/exercise would result in an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2014.

RBE_FT—RAF+_A=+—HL
FE -BREEEEREGREKNEBER
A FREEEBMNTEL T REMN T
BNFTEH AR R MR ITHE AT RAREH
K BT 5238 Fr & AT 52 B RE MR 1 Y B AR
R 1TE B RZERR
TEeHHE—_T—RAF+_A=+—
ALEFENEREREEBRREETY
@,

RBEE-FT-NOF+-_A=+—H1t
FE BREERRESRENEEN
[l - FREEB BN EL T REME
TPTE AR B W ARITEE TR R B
R ATE TR ZE R R TR
EHEE_TME+_A=t—H1
FENEREABRBRARBELE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted

from continuing operations attributable to the owners

15. SREE (#&)
REARFESEER

loss per share

of the Company is based on the following data:

RRRHER ABIERER
EARNEEERIDERNIA NIRRT E

2015 2014
—E-HF _—T-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
(Restated)
(g&E5)
Loss for the year attributable to ZN/NCIE RS DN AP =
owners of the Company from FERE KIS EEBR
continuing and discontinued RFEEFEEE
operations (59,214) (27,393)
Less: Loss for the year from W BRI EEH
discontinued operations KFEEHIE (1,051) (3,387)
Loss for the purpose of B EEEBRE
basic and diluted loss per share (REREAREEEEMS)
from continuing operations (58,163) (24,006)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operations is HK0.03 cents per share (2014: HKO.14
cents per share), based on the loss for the year
from the discontinued operations of approximately
HK$1,051,000 (2014: HK$3,387,000) and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and
diluted loss per share.
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. MER=ZE
Computer,
Furniture,  network and
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and related Motor
improvement machinery equipment equipment vehicles Total
BA-EER  BH B4R \
BENXEE  HEREE B HERE RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
cost
At 1 January 2014 R-E-mE-A—H 2,713 598 683 135 352 4,481
Additions e 1,094 - 349 "1 2,685 4,239
Avising from acquisition of subsidiaries E KERBAREE
(note 40(o)) (MEE40(0)) - - - - 414 414
Disposals e - - - - (352) (352)
At 31 December 2014 T-mE
+H+ 3,807 598 1,032 26 3,09 8,782
Additions 752 - 456 " 272 1,491
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries E WﬁWE REL
(note 40(b) (PEE40(0)) - - 55 11 623 689
Disposals 5 (2,534) - (651) (33) - (3218)
Exchange adjustment ERHE - - (15) (1) (64) (80)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE
+ZA=1+-8 2,025 598 877 234 3,930 7,664
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A— 2,598 598 417 122 352 4,087
Provided for the year FniE 217 - 163 18 21 639
Eliminated on disposals R ERHE - - - - (352) (352)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-m%
+-A=t-H 2,815 598 580 140 241 4374
Provided for the year FREE 398 - 122 30 710 1,260
Eliminated on disposals R E R (2,534) - (471) (15) - (3,020)
Exchange adjustment AR - - (10) - (27) (37)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—1F
ToA=T- 679 598 221 155 924 2577
CARRYING VALUES EHE
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%
+-A=+-H 1,346 - 656 79 3,006 5,087
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-mE
+-A=+-H 992 - 452 106 2,858 4,408
The above items of plant and equipment are ity RE RS EE B RN EGE T

depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Computer, network and
related equipment
Motor vehicles

Over the term of leases

20%
20%

20%

20%

ERFHRAERERATERTE:

HEMEKE

TR Ko 2s

BRI B MR

B W R ARRE R B

REEHA

20%
20%

20%

20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. EBEYXE
2015 2014
—B-HE —TNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FET
FAIR VALUE F1E
At 1 January w—H—H 28,812 7,580
Additions (note (a)) NE (K@) 55,203 17,020
Arising from acquisition of BEHNBARES
subsidiaries (note 40(b)) (Kt3E40(b) ) 121,010 3,821
Net increase in fair value REZPERH A TE
recognised in profit or loss B nFEE 2,759 451
Reclassified to asset held for sale EMOBEERELEELE
(Note 26) (B5E26) (11,290) -
Exchange adjustment EH A (6,424) (60)
At 31 December Rt+—ZA=+—8H 190,070 28,812
Net unrealised gain on property FFAGEEEREM
revaluation included in FPEHWRERZMESMR
consolidated statement of R W FEE
profit or loss and other
comprehensive income 2,759 451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

Included in the additions during the year
2015, an investment property of approximately
HK$12,902,000 was acquired by way of
issuance the Company’s share. On 12 January
2015, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party for the purchase of
investment properties located in the PRC at a
consideration of RMB10,000,000, equivalent
to approximately HK$12,560,000 and to
be settled by allotment and issuance of
62,800,000 consideration shares at the issue
price of HK$0.2 each. The acquisition has been
completed on 27 April 2015. Details are set out
in Note 33(c).

The fair value of the above investment
properties as at the date of completion and
as at 31 December 2015 has been arrived
at based on a valuation carried out by Asset
Appraisal Limited ("Asset Appraisal”), the
independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The valuation was determined
by using income approach (details as explained
in note (e)), and the fair value of these
properties is approximately RMB10,322,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$12,902,000, as
at date of completion. The difference between
the par value of the ordinary shares issued and
the fair value of the investment properties, is
approximately HK$11,646,000, are recognised
as share premium at the acquisition date.

The fair value of all of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2015 and 2014
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective dates by Asset
Appraisal.

All of the Group's properties interests are held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes and are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_T-—AF+-_A=1+—BHILFE

17. REWHE (HE)

@ Z—E—AFHNARABERBIENE
TARARMD F A WE—EL
12,902,000 LK) IR & W) % -
R—ZZE—HRF—A+=-H"
ARG BARIE —ZBILE
—HEIVEEmE NEBEM
RABNKEDNE REAA
R #10,000,0007C (HHE R A
12,560,000/ 7T ) + I % bA 3% 3%
TESRO0.2MH T id 8 & ¥ 17
62,800,000 X B & 0 2 1 o
WEEBEER-_ZE—RAFNA
T tAEK - BEFBENN
5¥33(c) °

PR EMERKBEARAR=-F
—AF+=_A=+—HZRAFE
DR EEENERERAA
([HaiE]) (BARKEIEEEE
2B B EALERD) (T 2 fh
BER - B@AHEIEAKRAE
(HBERM T (M) EE Mz
EMERTK BN R FENR
AR #10,322,0007T (& R4
12,902,000/ 7T ) ° BT E @A
WEEEREEMERTFE RN
EE4)A11,646,0007 7T Jh RN IR
BHEERERNDRE-

b) AEER-_ZT—RFR-_ZFT—/H
F+ZA=+—BZHMEKREY
ERFEDNIBEPIEREHEA
BRI T 2 hEE -

© AREZE2IMERESREEH
WA ARBRESHIEEATTE
ZA WA ERAGE A
BRNEMEAK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

17.

(d)

(e)

The above investment properties are located in
Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed
and discounted at the market yield expected
by investors for this type of properties. The
market rentals are assessed by reference to
the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the
properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The discount
rate is determined by reference to the yields
derived from analysing the sales transactions
of similar commercial properties in the PRC
and adjusted to take into account the market
expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group's investment
properties. Details of the valuation techniques
and assumptions are discussed below.

There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties located in
Taiwan with the fair value of approximately
HK$19,440,000 as at 31 December 2015
(2014: nil), have been pledged to a bank to
secure the bank borrowing granted to the
Group. Details of bank borrowing are set out in
note 29.
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(d)
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FREEMEMRNE S FEE
VANN =33
AEBR-_ZE—RAFR-_ZT—
F+ZA=Z+—HNEREWMEY
NEEDRBRAEEE MY
¥mpAarHAEMmERS
IR EE UL B Y AT TEHI A
i aEET M RITE - mE
HeH2EWEN A HHEERIA
Ko 1A B 3T AR 2B L 9 2 BT AR Y
MeETHEH - TEEXDHIZED
MHREEUEANENHEER S
EENWRE WA RERE
ENTISTERERRE TUE
EURBRAEEREDERTE
WERZ-TEMANMERER
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FHFFIB RN T X o
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EMEESLRERGIHHBRE
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=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

17.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWE (&)
(h)  Details of the Group's investment properties (hy BEFEFR-_ZT—RER-ZT
and information about the fair value hierarchy —ME+=—A=1+t—"HZ2&E&Y
as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December EUNEBEANFEERER 25
2014 are as follows: (=R UNNE

Fair value as at
31 December

RTt=ZA=+—-HHWAF¥E

2015 2014

—E-FHEF —T—MOF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET
Investment properties URBENREME
located in Hong Kong (DERE AT

(categorised as Level 2) 17,750 8,350
Investment properties URPEBREME
located in the PRC (DERE_HH)

(categorised as Level 2) 120,185 20,462
Investment properties URPEBREME
located in the PRC (DBAEBE=HH)

(categorised as Level 3) 32,695 -
Investment properties URBERNREME
located in Taiwan (DBAEBE=HH)

(categorised as Level 3) 19,440 -

190,070 28,812

There was no transfer between levels of fair value FA ATFEFERPIELR FEE-

hierarchy during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

17.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. BREYWE (H)
The following table gives information about how THRIEHEEMENR _ZE—FER —F
the fair values of the investment properties as at —F+_A=1+—HBHORAFEZET
31 December 2015 and 2014 are determined (in FEMBR (TEEHEFERFTBS®
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used): ABHE) -
Relationship of
key inputs and
Significant significant
Fair value Fair value as at Valuation technique and unobservable unobservable
hierarchy 31 December 2015 key inputs inputs inputs to fair value
ATENIERAUE
R-B-RF+-A=1-R EERER REBEN BARBRENERBA
AVHESER HRTE TERARE BRBARE BB EHEE
Investment Properties located in Level 2 HK$17,750,000 (2014: HK$8,350,000)  Income approach - by reference to N/A N/A
Hong Kong capitalised income derived from existing
tenancies based on the comparable
prevailing market rents and the
reversionary potential of the properties
A EENRENE E=85 17,750,000 7T (ZF— W% : WNE-BE2ZEARTELERITER TER TEA
8,350,000 7C) SORARPAELNEAMMARZ
ENENERE
Investment Properties located in PRC Level 2 RMB102,190,000 (Equivalent to Income approach - by reference to N/A N/A
approximately HK$120,185,000) capitalised income derived from existing
(2014: RMB16,326,000 (Equivalent tenancies based on the comparable
to approximately HK$20,462,000)) prevailing market rents and the
reversionary potential of the properties
fis B A% E=85 ARH102,190,0007 (1HE R WNE-BE2ZEARTELERTER TER TEA
120,185,000870) (=T~ SORARPAELNEAMMARZ
AR¥16,326,0007 (HER ENENERE
20,462,000%72) )
Investment Properties located in PRC Level 3 RMB27,800,000 (Equivalent to Income approach - by reference to Adjusted prevailing The higher the prevailing
approximately HK$32,695,000) capitalised income derived from existing market rents market rent, the
(2014: nil) tenancies and the reversionary potential lower the fair value
of the properties
fis B A% F=RA AR #27,800,00070 WNE-B2ERERFTELNEAL SRERITERS BROTEESES:
(1€ 7#732,695,000%7T) WARZENENDRE BATEE
(Z2-m%£:%)
Investment Properties located in Taiwan ~ Level 3 NTD80,000,000 (Equivalent to Income approach - by reference to Adjusted prevailing The higher the prevailing
approximately HK$19,440,000) capitalised income derived from existing market rents market rent, the
(2014 nil) tenancies and the reversionary potential lower the fair value
of the properties
IR & BHRENE F=H5 #17 %80,000,0007 WNE-E2ZRERFPTEENEAL SRERITTEES ROTEESES AR
(1% #4719,440,0007T) WARZENZNEREN TEBE
(ZZ-mF: %)
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

17. BEWHE (E)

The reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements REVMEE=RATEFERLEENE
of investment properties on recurring basis is as 7 EER -
follows:
HK$'000
FAET

At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and

1 January 2015

Exchange adjustment

Additions

Acquired from acquisition of subsidiary
Net increase in fair value recognised in

R-_ZT—MHF—H—H"
—E-MFE+A=+—HK
—E-R%—A—H -

PE 78 & (2,254)

NE 45,718
EUWE B R R FTES 19,604

IR FERR Y 2 B hF 2R

profit or loss 357
Reclassified to asset held-for-sale BNOBRRBIELERE (11,290)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—HRF+_A=+—H 52,135
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the net HE-Z—RAF+-_A=+—RHLF
increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss of E - REaBERANAFEBINFED
approximately HK$357,000 (2014: nil) are included 357,000 L (ZE—MF:F) Tyt A
in increase in fair value of investment properties, net. KEMER RN TFEGINFFE - BERA
Included in the net increase in fair value is amount FEMHFREVENREHROARE
of approximately HK$3,595,000 (2014: nil) that IR 5B £ BE#3,595,0008 T (== —1

is attributable to the unrealised losses relating to FB)FFARFEIGINFRE-
investment properties held by the Group at the end of

the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

18. GOODWILL 18. BE
2015 2014
—E—HF —E= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
COST R
At 1 January n—A—H 908 -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries B UK B A R E L
(note 40(b)) (P #E40(b) ) 18,414 908
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 19,322 908
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January m—H—H - -
Impairment loss recognised FRERNBERBE
during the year (908) -
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H (908) -
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 18,414 908

Impairment loss is recognised after the assessment of
the recoverable amount, being the value in use, made

by the directors’ of the Company.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
with indefinite useful lives set out above have been
allocated to two individual CGUs, comprising one

subsidiary in the property investment

one subsidiary group in the trading of grocery food
products segment. The carrying amounts of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) as at 31

MEBERAARESZHEAI KL SRR
(BN FR{EME) R HERR -

AETRERR EXEABERE
RHnmEDENEEMETRR R
EEEMN BEMEREDEN—REN

segment and BRARLEBHRMESDEN —ENE

December 2015 allocated to these units are as follows:
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODW.ILL (continued)

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_T-—AF+-_A=1+—BHILFE

BE (&)

2015 2014
ZE-HF —T-MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHEIT
Investment properties — Fujian Seton ~ &Y E-BERRBRE
Investment Co., Ltd BRAR ([BEMA])
(“Fujian Seton™) - 908
Trading of grocery food products BHEME S
— YIHE Group —HEE65E 18,414 -
18,414 908

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$908,000 (2014:
nil) in relation to goodwill arising on acquisition of
Fujian Seton. The operation of Fujian Seton is leasing
its investment properties for rental income purpose,
the management considers the recoverable amount
derived based value in use calculation disposal. The
calculation uses cash flow projection based on the
expected income to be obtained from the investment
properties held by the CGU and the recoverable
amount is approximately HK$18,464,000, which
mainly represented the investment properties held by
the CGU, accordingly, an impairment loss had been
recognised.

The recoverable amount of YIHE Group is
approximately HK$26,528,000 has been determined
on the basis of a value in use calculation. The
recoverable amount is based on certain similar key
assumptions. The value in use calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering on a 4-year period, and
a discount rate of 12.36%. The cash flows beyond
the 4 year period are extrapolated using a steady
2.5% growth rate. The growth rate is based on the
general inflation rate for the year 2015. Cash flow
projections during the budget period for YIHE Group is
also based on the budgeted sales and expected gross
margins during the budget period and the inflation
during the budget period. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of YIHE Group to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of YIHE Group.

HEe TR+ _-_A=+—HIF
B ASERUEREANRKEEERA
A)EE A A 7 2 RE B2 R (B 5 18 908,00078
T (ZE—NFE:F) cREHR B ER
AEAEREWENESHESWA M
EHEERA KO BINIZFEREER
AEGL FEEANBESRERANE
RS B IR & E A BT E W W ER
B TE HR A X AT Y [B] £ RE 4918,464,000
BT HETERASEABMAMFNE
BYE Al RESBBDERR

BEASBEMATIE S EE 426,528,000
BLEREAEBEEFEMETE - AJkE
CRRBRAE THEUBRBR -FHERE
Mt ENFEREREEEHMEZNE
B BEENRSRERA - RITRE
12.36% ' MiBAIUF BIR)IR & K A
BTEERER2S%ELHEE -HEEREK
DERZZE—RAFHN—RBERE-HAE
SEREE AR RERRIMER
TEEEBAMNTEEHEERTBEHENEAL
BEHANMBR - EEERE TRZ
EREMNTMEEIEEH I SERE
AERAFTIERaEA SR KOE
TEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

19.  INTANGIBLE ASSET 19. EREE
HK$'000
FET
COoST B A
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R-ZZE-—NF—-—HA—BK
and 1 January 2015 —E-NF+ZA=T—8BK
—T-H¥—H—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40(b)) W B B B8 A &) (B 3E40(b) ) 6,416
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE-—RE+_A=+—H 6,416
AMORTISATION s
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 RZE—NMFEF—HA—BK
and 1 January 2015 —E-WE+A=+—8HK
—ET-hF—H—H -
Charge for the year ZANCS 133
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—hFE+_A=+—H 133
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2015 R-E—HRHF+-_A=+—H 6,283
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MOFE+-A=+—H -
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the AANRIEERE EEHEEERFER
franchise has finite useful life and is amortised on a By HERPUENIRE G F 8o

straight-line basis over the 4 years.
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 200 ABERTZHER
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T
Cost of unlisted investments REEERAZ
in associates I LETIREKAR 39,684 39,684
Share of post-acquisition results SMERERESR 4,994 4,047
44,678 43,731
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had R_E—RAFR_ZE—WNF+_HA
interests in the following associates: =+t—B -XAEBERTIEE QAR E#E
A
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests
incorporation/ or participating shares
establishment/ indirectly held by Proportion of
Name of entity Form of entity operation (Class of shares held the Group voting power held Principal activity
AMEL/ YL/ AEBEERELRAE
ERER BEVA meny frisht 288 ERAISRBHLA FRRERLA IEER

2015 2014 2015 2014
“%-1f -0 Z%-1f “E-ME

Direct associates
FDC Limited (note) Limited Liability Samoa Ordinary shares 49% 49% 49% 49%  Inactive
ERBELT
FDC Limited ( ff3£) BRAA BES Bk 49% 49% 49% 9% BER
228 (IR REHHERAR Limited Liability PRC Paid up capital 40% 40% 40% 40%  Investment holding
Zhonghe Huaxia (Beijing) Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Befing HX")
(Note 2)
AEE (LR RERDERAT BRAA hE HRER 40% 40% 40% 0% RERR
(MtREE)) (M)
Indirect associates
BREELT
2R (XR)REBRAT Limited Liability PRC Paid up capital 2% 2% 2% 2% Investment holding
Zhonghe Xinnong (Beijing) (Note3)  (Note3)
Investment Co., Ltd.
("Beijing XN") (Note 2)
AR (LR RERRAR BRAA hE HRER 2% 2% 2% 0% RERR
(Mgl () (W3) (W)
RARATRTRERERAR Limited Liability PRC Paid up capital 2% 2% 2% 2% Properties development
Fuyu Zhonghe Xinnong Market Real (Note3)  (Note3)
Estate Co., Ltd. ("Fuyu”) (Note 2)
RARATRTRERERAR BRAA i BRER 2% 2% 2% 0% NERE
(&) (H3E2) (Wa3) (W)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BHz—_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20.
Notes:

1. FDC Limited was inactive since its incorporation, the
carrying amount attributable to the Group is not
significant.

2. The English translation of the company name is for
identification purpose only. The official names of
these companies are in Chinese.

3. Fuyu is wholly owned by Beijing XN and 55%
shareholding of Beijing XN is owned by Beijing HX,
accordingly, the Group effectively holds 22% equity
interest in Beijing XN and Fuyu.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
material associate of the Group and is accounted for
using equity method is set out below:

REE QT zEm (&)

B

—

FDC Limited & & ffff A 37 LA 2R 37 48 2%

B mARERGERAELTEKR.

NE B ZE SR E T E MR - %
ERANE T B AP IR -

3. KamitmamBE2EHE Mt
BRIRItREEHEAS5% A EE
ERFEILRTERKARMN2%E

N9
ZS o

I

AEBZEDEARN T BB 2 RFM

MHERBEHIIMT

31 December

31 December

2015 2014

—E-HF —T-mF

+=A +=A

Beijing HX and its subsidiaries TREFREKELR =t—8 =+—A
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Current assets MEEE 303,129 273,950
Non-current assets EMBEE 458 8,217
Current liabilities mENBE (115,074) (93,426)
Non-current liabilities FEREBARE (11,746) (12,775)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR AR R A = (67.,209) (68,776)
Net assets BEFE 109,558 107,190
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. RIS AT X (E)

From 1 April

Year ended 2014 to

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

B BA-_TNmOF

—E—EE MA—H=Z=

+=A —E-mE

=t+-—H +=A

LLFE =+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Revenue W e 24,746 101,552

Profit for the year/period and REE/HEEF &

total comprehensive income AEE,/HE2EKEERE

for the year/period 2,367 10,118

The reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented above to the carrying amount
of the interests in associate is set out below:

EX2MBEMRZERBE QR Z
S AREE C HRESIT :

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
—E-1F —E—FE
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Net assets of the associate REB AR Z RAH
attributable to the Group BEFE 109,558 107,190
Proportion of the Group's 40% REBRIEREE 2
ownership interest in Beijing HX 40% PR B RERE R L 151 43,823 42,876
Goodwill G 855 855
Carrying amount of the Group's REBRIEREEZ
interest in Beijing HX B REE 44,678 43,731
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

21.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. AHEERE
2015 2014
—E-RE —T—uF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Unlisted equity investments — cost FELETRAZRE — KA

(Note) (BT &E) 500 500
Less: Accumulated impairment loss & : 25T REEE (500) (500)

Note: Bt

The unlisted equity investments represent investment
in unlisted equity securities issued by a private entity
incorporated in Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

JELEMBRARERN —HRBE B EMAILA
EBRBTHIFLTRAESZRE &
BRAERBE RO R REEBERSE

BTERRAERFEBNBEIFE A &
RRAREEFRR/ERNFEREAIEFE-

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. FEH&EE?REZE%FEU&?XIE
2015 2014
—E-FEF —T—MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Trade receivables JE UG BR X 1,267 838
Deposit and other receivables (Note 1) & & & H b fEUg 7018 (FHFE1) 11,284 5,338
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B SRERBE (3,515) (800)
7,769 4,538
Prepayments T RIE 539 470
9,575 5,896
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade
and other receivables.

Note:

As at 31 December 2014, included in the deposit
and other receivables is a refundable deposit of
HK$1,980,000 paid for the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in an entity incorporated in Taiwan
from an independent third party. The project
investment period as stated in the contract had
been lapsed during May 2015, but the Group could
not obtain the refund from the potential investee.
Full impairment is made during the year ended 31
December 2015.

The credit period granted to the Group's trade
customers generally ranges from 0 days to 90 days
(2014: 0 days to 90 days). The ageing analysis of
trade receivables presented based on the invoice

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE
22. BRI H B W R IE
7N 5= [ 5 S A R R B B A B M TR TR
FrA EMEFRm -

B

i

—

R-ZZE—ME+-_A=+—0" &%
MEAMEBGRIBRER —BBILE=
FURER B MR E 1%
f& #E #9 B R [B13% 4 1,980,000/ 7T - &
WETHEMEERENER Z=ZZ—H
FRAKXS HALSEREBEER
BRARERR - REEZZE—RF
+Z A=+ BLEFE BHEREH
DERER

2. REBRTESRFPZEEHR KN
FORZEH (ZZE—MF: 08 E90
B) BWERFRARRERARBEREES
BEI (BRI IR A FERR B BRAR ) T

dates, which approximates the respective revenues SWRIEBRSTMOT :
recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period,
which is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 1,215 888
31 to 90 days 31£90H 52 -
1,267 888

As at 31 December 2015, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance were debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$52,000 (2014: nil) which were past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group had
not provided for impairment loss.

R-E—RE+-_A=+—8 K&
ErREKEREHBEREMAEY
52,0008 L (Z T — & &) 2 &
- BREESRRERREH K
EBE M AR ZERREL REBEE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22.
Note: (continued)

3. The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are 3.
past due but not impaired is as follows:

JE W BRI ELfth R W kTR (4R

ffeE: (#8)

BB HMERIRE < B YRR AR AR ik D AT
LN

2015 2014

—2-1& -—T-mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

0 to 30 days 0%30H 52 -

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience and the financial standings of these
customers, the directors of the Company believe that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there have not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The Group’s neither past due nor impaired
trade receivables mainly represent sales made to
creditworthy customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

4. The movement in the allowance for impairment of 4.
deposit and other receivables is set out below:

EEMERREZ BERRES B
KEBANER RIFERRLSIBYE
FRB REBEKRERZEEFZ
BBMRN - KRB EFHEARZSE
RBTESEEERELEAEHN
LRI B E - BB AU E L RE
R

7R 62 [0 f 70 B e I SR (B 2 FE IR
RE BRI Y B R E8
RFZEPIEHZIHER-

HE REMRWKFR 2 BIEREE
;oI

2015 2014
—B-EHF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHBT
At the beginning of the financial MBEFEEY)
year 800 800
Impairment losses recognised on IR ® K E IR IB TR
deposit and other receivables REEBE 3,515 -
Release on de-registration of —EM B A R AR R S AR B
a subsidiary (800) -
At the end of the financial year MIHEER 3,515 800
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Note: (continued)

(continued)

Included in the allowance for impairment of deposit
and other receivables are individually impaired
other receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$3,515,000 (2014: HK$800,000).
The individually impaired other receivables are
recognised based on the credit history and the
financial condition of its debtors or counterparties,
such as financial difficulties or default in payments,
and current market conditions.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE

22. FEWIRFTK HMEWRE (F)

BisE: (48)
4. (&)

4EER A4 53,515,000 T (=&
— P94 : 800,000/ 7T ) 2 BRI E R E
HAtb EUGRIEE 5T AR S R H AD FEIL
I RERE - S ED BEEME
IWHIBEREEHS AR ZEFNE
FARE 2 R BA A AR 50 (51 m B 7 TR 6 o
NEGEL) R BRI T LARER -

The Group's deposit and other receivables that are 5. REBEEBEE BRI EEI

denominated in currencies other than the functional SN EEETIMER IR S & E b E W R IE
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out FHy T

below:

2015 2014

—E-HF —ET-mEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

RMB AR 674 3,232

NTD A 558 272
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE—

TR+ -_A=1T—HILFE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES

23. EBERER

2015 2014
—F-Hf —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Fixed-rate loan receivables TE FI 2R 7 e U B 3R
— Secured — A 27,896 5,000
— Unsecured — 4K A 4,000 -
31,896 5,000
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (4,000) -
27,896 5,000

Analysed as PRI,

Current assets (within one year) REEE(—FNRN) 27,896 5,000

Notes:

(a

(d)

(e)

The secured loan receivables were neither past due
nor impaired as of the end of the reporting period.

The loan receivables are entered into with
independent third parties with contractual maturity
within three months to one year (2014: one year).
The Group seeks to maintain tight control over its
loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk by
reviewing the borrowers’ financial positions.

The secured loan receivables are secured by the
unlisted shares or properties of the borrowers.

As at 31 December 2015, the current fair value
of collateral held by the Group is approximately
HK$39,737,000 (2014: HK$9,400,000).

B & :

RBEHR - FEPEEERLIEE
HsRE

YW ER T ERBYE=T77I &4
PRA=ZEAZE—F(ZT—HF: —
F) AKEBEBEMERANTEK
AR - B 45 S E R B R R A
B UBEERBREERE-

BRMERERTIAERAZIELT
B S AR -

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—A 'K
SEEEMNEAMERQAFEY
/39,737,000 L (ZF — M £ :
9,400,000/ 7T ) o

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal (e) REERUBFIENERME (HER
to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s loan REHME) ZHBEMT -
receivables are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—MF
Effective interest rate: B
Fixed-rate loan receivables (& TE 7 & 1) R B R 8% - 18% 8%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE—_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWEFR (E)
Notes: (continued) MeE: (&)
(f) The Group's loan receivables that are denominated in f) UAHAEBE BRI B LAINEEE S
currencies other than the functional currencies of the ENRNEBREWRERIYWOT

relevant group entities are set out below:

2015 2014
—B-EF —E—MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
RMB AR 16,996 -
(g  The movement in the allowance for impairment () FEWEFURBERE 2 EBEHN T
of loan receivables is set out below:
2015 2014
—B-EHF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fax FHET
At the beginning of I EFEE )
the financial year - -
Impairment losses recognised HE W E SRR 2 R EEE
on loan receivables 4,000 -
At the end of the financial year BFE R 4,000 -
Included in the allowance for impairment FEUE OB B B 5T A AR ABEEAY
of loan receivables are individually impaired 4,000,000/ 7C (ZZ—HF: )M
loan receivables with an aggregate balance &5l 2 R E W E 3R - (8 Bl B R E e
of approximately HK$4,000,000 (2014: nil). WEFREREBEEBAXRZSHFHE
The individually impaired loan receivables FRE 2 R B A AR5 ({5140 B 75 IR B o
are recognised based on the credit history NFGEX) R BRI TIAER -

and the financial condition of its debtors or
counterparties, such as financial difficulties
or default in payments, and current market
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE
24.

—T-REFT-A=T—HILFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

BAVESABSZEHMEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHE T
Listed securities: EWES:
— Equity securities listed in —REBLMZRAFS
Hong Kong, at fair value b7 g/NS L =] 34,022 16,780
Debt securities: BB S
— Unlisted convertible bond —JEEmAIMRES - 5,189
34,022 21,969

On 8 October 2014, the Group invested in an
unlisted convertible bond issued by a private
company incorporated in Taiwan, with principal of
NTD20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$5,189,000) carrying
interest at 16% per annum and with maturity in 2017.
The unlisted convertible bond enables the Group to
convert the bond into the shares of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the issuer.

The convertible bond is unsecured, transferrable and
the Group can request the redemption from the issuer
at anytime starting from the sixth months after the
date of issue, subject to the approval from the issuer.
Upon the exercise of conversion rights, the Group
could hold 16.67% equity interest in that wholly-
owned subsidiary of the issuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group recognised a fair value loss of approximately
HK$5,189,000 (2014: nil) in relation to unlisted
convertible bond.

For the valuation method of the financial asset at
FVTPL, please refer to note 35(c).
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RZZE—MF+ANB AEEERER
—RHR B EEMA LA AR FTEITH
ELMAIRRES ZEFLACRB AN
& 20,000,0007T ( #8 & 75,189,000/
TL) R FEBEI6%FTEWR T —tF
FEf-JE EMAMRESFEAREE A K
BREFBETAZENBRRIMRMD -

]mRESDERT TEE BXE
B A]pA 81T A BB RT /N (B A ABERF E 5K
BT ANEL - HAFEITARERT
R E%  NEET B EITANZ
ME2EWBARA16.67%HEn -

HE_Z—FF+-_A=+—H0 K&
ERIE LM A BRRESFERAFEEE
#95,189,0008 L (—ZT—PF &) o

AR AFEFABRZEBEEN
HETA B2 BMEE3S()



25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. WRITHEHKRRE
Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on RITESFEBESHEI T EHEZLF
daily bank deposit rates. K EE o
The Group’s bank balances and cash that are REBUABEEETE 2 INeE AN
denominated in currencies other than the functional M EBYIENIETES LIRS ES
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out T:
below:
2015 2014
—E-HF _—T-MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
RMB AR 5,138 871
NTD e 1,061 1,822
ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 26. DEARABELHEZEE

On 7 December 2015, the Group entered and
signed a sales and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of one of
the investment properties with fair value of year
ended amounted to approximately RMB9,700,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,408,000) as at
31 December 2015. The sales proceed is amounted
to RMB9,700,000. Deposit of approximately
RMB2,800,000 (equivalent to HK$3,293,000) has
been received and included in trade and other payable
as at 31 December 2015. Such property was classified
as asset held for sale in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The transaction was subsequently completed on
18 January 2016. Details are set out in note 46.

RZE—RAF EP—EARZZ—1F
BANKEMERE T BB ULE=
FoRZE—RAF+-A+tH AEEHE
—BBUE=—FIUREE-HEEWH
HOUEEAREEMFER —ELRAF
BERREWE (AR -_ZE—RF+_-A
=+—HMATFELAARS9,700,000
7T (FE R 411,408,000/ 7C) ) ° H
E RS IEL B ARK9,700,0007T
R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—0 Bk
% & #) A R #2,800,0007T (FHE 7
3,293,000/ 7T ) I 51 A FE - BR 3R K EL At
FERIFRIB - X MEC DB AR E T
MARFHFIELREZEE-

BEARSHEENR _T—RF—A+/\H
SERK © B RARE BRI 5E46
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ESRIREMESRIE
2015 2014
—¥-Hf —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Trade payables JE 1~ BR 3K 291 729
Other payables H th JE 1~ KB 9,686 9,722
Deferred revenue PRI 75 = 363
9,977 10,814

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period.

TERARBEPRREEZZAHERZ

A BR AR BR e 0 4T ©

2015 2014

—F-Hf —T-AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FTAT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 291 729

The average credit period on purchases of goods
is 14 days (2014:14 days). The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all

payables are settled within the credit time frame.

The Group’s trade and other payables that are

denominated in currencies other than the functional

BEEmZVTHEEHRRI4A(=F

—POF 148) - KEE%

TRERE

BERER AERABEMEIRNEEN

WS

AEBENHESEER 2D

BE S LASN

HERIENE S K HE MR IR

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out s
below:

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-MOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
RMB AR 6,292 1,543
NTD e 172 385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE
AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 28, [E/{‘3EiERpR R 1A

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and BEAZEEEE. 28 KAIRERE
repayable on demand. 2o
BANK BORROWING 29. $RITHE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Bank borrowing, secured RITIEN - BEA 9,581 -

Carrying amount of borrowings that is HZERREHRE —FANEE

not repayable within one year from EHEREKRKERBGKRZ

the end of the reporting period but B AREE

contain a repayment on demand (BIRRREAE)

clause (shown under current

liabilities) 9,581 -
Less: Amounts shown under BRI B B BRI RIE

current liabilities (9,581) -

Amounts shown under HIRRIEME B ERRIE

non-current liabilities - -

At 31 December 2015, the secured bank borrowing is B 17 BEE R —RHF
secured by a mortgage over an investment property of TZA=+t—R8 BEBRITERT
the Company located in Taiwan with carrying amount UARRUREEMBREBERNAK
of NTD80,000,000, equivalent to approximately 80,000,0007T (8 & 7 £719,440,0007%8
HK$19,440,000 as disclosed in Note 17. The bank TO) (RIS - RITIER VIR ETF R
borrowing carried a saving deposit rate plus a fixed MEMEESZE L BFR0.62%
spread of 0.62% in the first year, 0.87% in the second F_FROSINUNE=ZZFTHFAR
year and 0.97% from the third to fifteen year. 0.97% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE
30.

31.

—T-REFT-A=T—HILFE

LOANS FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Global
Brands Management Limited (“GBM") entered into
a shareholder’s agreement with its shareholders, in
which the loan amount of HK$735,000 was borne
by the non-controlling shareholder of GBM. Such
loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
22 December 2016. As a part of the agreement,
the Group granted a loan to the non-controlling
shareholder of GBM for the purpose of such
transaction, with the same term as the loan advance
to GBM by the non-controlling shareholder of GBM.
Accordingly, such borrowing and lending amount is
classified as current asset and liabilities (2014: non-
current assets and liabilities) on the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015.

The amounts were unsecured and non-interest
bearing.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS")

(a) Convertible bonds |
On 30 April 2013, the Company issued
convertible bonds (the “CB-I") in a principal
amount of HK$34,500,000 with interest
bearing at 5% per annum to Top Status. The
CB-I will mature on 31 December 2016 (the
“Maturity Date”). The CB-I entitled the holder
to convert the CB-I in full or in part (in multiples
of HK$500,000) into the ordinary shares of the
Company at any time on or after the date of
issue of the CB-I up to fifth business day prior
to the Maturity Date at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.01 per share, subject to
adjustment provisions which are standard terms
for convertible securities of similar type. If the
CB-I had not been converted by bondholder, it
would be converted on Maturity Date by the
holder.
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30.

31.

RE EFERBRRESEHEZE
E3Y

REZE-_T—NF+-_A=+—H81t
FE ARBF2EWBRRIRRGME
EEBERAR([RIKMEEE])HE
BRI —BRRIBH EPERED
735,000 T HIR BK @R 8 B 1B A IEIE IR
BREEAE-ZEERAERF 28K
AR -—_B—XRNE+-_A-t+-RHEE-
tERMZEE D  AEB IR S MR
mEEERNIFERBRREL —EER
1 R 30 B IR Bk K8 3 ) SE R AR AR R A
TIRIRMEEEMFIEAER - Bt - 2R
gEEesBEIN-_E—FRFE+-_A=+—
BRGEMBHRARPOEARBDEE
rEE(ZE—NOF - ERDEERE

&) -

BERATASERERANEE -

AR ES ([TRRES])

() TBrERES—
ARBR-B—ZFMA=+
HATop Status¥ 1T A4 %A
34,500,000% 7T & 1% F F E5%
FEMABmRES ([ATRRE
H—]) A BRBREF R =F
—RNE+-_A=+—8 (2
B R 8-k ESH — i TiF
BANEF R RERES—ETH
HEEZYHANERELEER
 {a] B I 42 9] 20 88 IR (B B 1% 0.01
TP A SEk 9 (Z8/4500,000
BL2BEH) 2 BRES K
BMAEARQREBEK HAREH
B (K AMBUBEN TR
BH 2 IEEGER) © WAl R ES
—REBHFFBEALR AHE
REEABBFEE ALK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(a)

Convertible bonds | (continued)

On January 2014, Top Status transferred the
2013 CBs to Sino Coronet Limited, which is a
connected party of Top Status.

Transaction costs directly attributable to
issue of the CB-l amounted to approximately
HK$585,000 are allocated to liability and equity
components on initial recognition.

The CB-l contained the following components
that are required to be separately accounted
for:

(i) Liability component for the CB-I
represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of the
Company as well as the amount of the
CB-I without conversion option, plus
allocated transaction costs. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is
19.49%.

(ii) Equity component represents the
difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the CB-l and the
fair values assigned to the liability
components less allocated transaction
costs.

On 11 October 2013, as a result of the
Company'’s share consolidation, the conversion
price of the 2013 CBs was adjusted to HK$0.02
per share.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE
31, ARES ([ArERES])
(#&)
(@) TBRRES— (&)
RZ=ZZF—MHF— A - Top StatusA
HAE P EARAREEZE _T
—=FAHBRES-

BITABERES —BERXSIHA
#1585,00078 7T 1 #1] 14 HE 2R B 70
EERENMEREDD -

ABEEF B3N NTEBILA
fRz#Bm

iy ABREF—2BESS
BIRETHZAMERMR 2
EHNETARAKRRAES KR
B ERFLEL2EEEMRR
AALEN T A ZTEH
KW RARAZEE
R\ B LA I I 48 2 AR AR A ]
BRESF—HE BNE
BORX KA BEDD
N2 EBBENZER19.49% °

(i) A IEEITAR(E
H—Z2RREESRET A
EH D 2 AT EZEER
ENERHMA

RZE—=F+HA+—H8 #HR
RAARIETRDEN W _F
—=FraRREHF I RRERE
PR S FRR0.028 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

31.

(a)

(b)

Convertible bonds I (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
1,225,000,000 (2014: nil) ordinary shares
of the Company were converted as a result
of the conversion of CB-I (Note 33(f)). As at
year ended 31 December 2015, the CB-l with
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 (2014:
HK$34,500,000) are remain outstanding.

Convertible bonds I

On 13 December 2013, Skyline Top Limited
(“Skyline Top”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and Mr. So Pan entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to sell to
Skyline Top, and Skyline Top has agreed to
purchase from Mr. So Pan the sale shares of
Konson Global Investments Limited (“Konson”);
and (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to assign to
Skyline Top, and Skyline Top has agreed to
accept the assignment of, the sale loan at an
aggregated consideration of HK$40,000,000,
of which: (i) HK$20,000,000 shall be satisfied
by Skyline Top by cheque or cashier order upon
the completion; and (i) HK$20,000,000 shall
be satisfied by the Skyline Top’s procuring of
the issue of the convertible bonds (“CB-Il")
at the conversion price of HK$0.17 (note) per
conversion share by the Company to Mr. So Pan
upon completion.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching
to the CB-Il, 106,382,978 new shares shall be
issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the
issue of CB-Il as a consideration took place on
31 March 2014. Details of acquisition were
disclosed in note 40(a).
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31.

R ES ([RRES])

(#&)
(a)

(b)

AR ES— (&)
REBEZ2_F—HF+ = A
=+—BLEFE BRATBRRK
BEH— e (ME33()) - 1
1,225,000,000/% ( =& — PO F :
EI)RARAI AR EE RN
HE-ZT—hF+-_A=+—H
IEFE - AIRRESF—HNEAESHE
10,000,000/ 7T (=& — U4 :
34,500,000/ 7T ) I R & FE B

ABRRES=
R-_E—=F+=-A+=H'4&
REEEWNBARKESARA
A ([RE& ) BEREETTVE
B Bt OFREEERE
mABEESEE mMARSERE
BEFEAEBERERIKNER
BRAR ([EE]OEERD: &
(R TEBRERRE S EE
RABBEREESTEENHE
& B3 82K (& 540,000,0007%8
7T E & : (i) 20,000,000 TT i
BRBEERTHENTESARE
S+ K (i) 20,000,000/% 7T #5
AEERTEX B BBIREARRDF
R ESRIRKRAR70.17 (M
FE) 7 T M BB, ST A AT TR
&S ([ ]RESF =)o

AT I E 5 — BB Y 5 s i
1T151% - 106,382,9788 A% 10 15
FLABELT o

R EITAI M E S —EARE
MKEEERN _ZT—NFE=A
=T BER-BRARBENFE
% 5R 7P 7E40(a) ©



31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued) 31. AHRES ([TBRRES])
(##)
(b) Convertible bonds Il (continued) (b) WEKRESH= (E)

Transaction costs directly attributable to issue
of the CB-Il amounted to approximately
HK$352,000 is allocated to liability and equity
components on initial recognition.

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
19 February 2014 (the “Circular”), the principal
terms of the CB-Il are as follows:

Principal amount of the CB-II:
AMRERFR 2 RN :

Authorised denomination:
JATEERE :

Conversion price:
R (E

Interest:

B

Maturity date:
FEE -

Conversion and transferability:

Big LAl EE M

Note:

As a result of the placing of 629,000,000 shares
completed on 2 July 2015, the conversion price of
the CB-Il was adjusted from HK$0.188 to HK$0.17

per share.

BITAMRES —HNEERALR
5) B 2N #)352,0007%8 7T Ty IR ¥ 44
RSO ERE MDD -

BOARRARBR T —NF—
A+hBzimm ([Z@E]) P
BoAmRES Z 2 F BB
T

HK$20 million
20888 7T

HK$100,000 each and integral multiples thereof
F17100,00078 7T & B & &

HK$0.17
0.17%87T

3% per annum
FF3%

31 December 2017
—E—+H+=-HA=+—H

Without prejudice to any condition under the bond instrument,
there shall not be any transfer, conversion or redemption of any
principal amount of the CB-Il during the Restricted Period (as
defined in the Circular), and further, the bondholder shall not,
and shall not seek to, transfer, convert or redeem any principal
amount of the CB-Il during the Restricted Period.
EAFEEFBEMGE BT FAIREEGEE (GE&E
RZBl) T RER AR EAEE ERsE
B BE EFFAANA RS KX R G HREEE Eih
BRI ARRES — 2 EAARSTE -

B eE -

7 A 8629,000,0000% 3% 15 2 B &
RIZE—RF+A-HZK WA
& (& % 2 #2105 (B B & 1%0.188E 7T 73
BEOATE T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz—_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

31.

(b)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Conversion

No conversion of the CB-Il or of the Valid
Principal Amount (as defined in the Circular),
whichever shall be appropriate, shall take place
prior to the expiration of the Restricted Period
or prior to the happening of the Specific Event
(as defined in the Circular) (as the Company
may determine in its sole and absolute
discretion).

Prior to the expiration of the Restricted Period
or prior to the happening of the Specific
Event (as the Company may determine in its
sole and absolute discretion), the Company
shall not, and shall not have to, recognise,
accept, agree or register any conversion of any
principal amount of the CB-Il. In any event,
the Company shall not, and shall not have
to, recognise, accept, agree or register any
conversion of any Cancelled Principal Amount
(as defined in the Circular), and the bondholder
shall not have any recourse whatsoever against
the Company. The Company shall, and shall
only have to, recognise, accept, agree or
register any conversion of any Valid Principal
Amount, and the Company shall have sole and
absolute discretion in determining any or all
issues on, over or concerning conversion of the
CB-Il.

Subject to conditions under the bond
instrument, during the conversion period,
bondholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part (in multiples of HK$100,000)
of the Valid Principal amount, whichever shall
be appropriate, into such number of conversion
shares as will be determined by dividing the
principal amount of the CB-Il to be converted
by the conversion price (subject to adjustment)
in effect on the date of conversion.
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31.

R ES ([TRRES])
(%)
(b) TwERKRES= (F)

B

5 PR ) 2 6 fE U A SR E =
(&R ZBEK)ELER (RNAF]
AERNIEERE)  BITEETA
BEREF -SAEBRAELHE (E

ERZBWR) 2@ -

W5 R I B & o Al 3l E
HEER (ARAA2ENEE
E) AR NEAETEAR &
¥ FERERABREKES T
AR5 58 2 (E 8k - IS
AT ARBPNFETEAR &
¥ FAEXELEMDEEAR
B (EERZBN) 2 EfFEiHk
M EH5A AL AR E) L EMA
ERE-ARREREEAR &
X REXELREMNAERANTRE
ZAEEE AR B AR M—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Redemption

Redemption at maturity shall only be limited
and applicable to the Valid Principal Amount.
The Cancelled Principal Amount cannot, and
shall not, be redeemed whatsoever. Subject
to this as well as other conditions in the
bond instrument, the Valid Principal Amount
which has not been redeemed or converted
in accordance with the conditions under the
bond instrument by the maturity date, shall,
at the sole and absolute discretion of the
Company (and regardless of whether or not
the bondholder concerned have requested
for conversion of any principal amount of the
CB-Il into conversion shares) but subject to
shareholders’ approval (if required) as well as
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and/
or requirements of regulatory authorities,
either be redeemed by the Company on the
maturity date at a redemption amount equal to
100% of Valid Principal Amount or such part
thereof which is outstanding at that juncture,
or be converted into conversion shares. For
any avoidance of doubt, the Company shall
not, and shall not be required to, redeem
the Cancelled Principal Amount (as defined
above) or any part thereof, and the bondholder
shall not have any recourse or right of action
whatsoever against the Company.

Further details of the issue of CB-Il as a
consideration of an acquisition are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 13
December 2013, 7 March 2014 and 31 March
2014 and the circular of the Company dated 19
February 2014.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

31. WERES ([ARKRES])

(&)
(b) wERKRES= (HF)

- {=)
REHE 2 ERIZAERN MER
REBAZRE - DHEALED
SEAEKED ERGERES
SR Z BRI EARR T - 1R E
Hi B AT AR AR B E S R 2 IGR
BRyEBZEUAERE AL
AARZEBE (R TRESFF
BEAREBE BRI MAES —
ZUEMARSRERSERERN)
BAKKRRILE (WHE) WBT
BIER ETRBIRHEEWE
BE AARFRIHAREBS
RB AR $ 58 2100% 5K & B ]
REEZ BN A EEITER
g EERRB R BRLE
oARBITENBABRE T
HEAEE (EER LX) B
iy MEFFAEABRRRL
EEERESEFE-

BT ARRESF R
RENEZFE ERARFH
AR Z—=F+=-A+=8"
ZE-NF=-AEtHEZFE MO
FZA=ZF+—HZAMH LUEAK
AR A-—ZT—NE_A+H
HZ @Ko
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE
31.

—T-REFT-A=T—HILFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Redemption (continued)

The CB-Il contains the following components
that are required to be separately accounted

for:

(i)

(ii)

Liability component for the CB-Il
represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of the
Company as well as the amount of the
CB-Il without conversion option, plus
allocated transaction costs. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is
17.37%.

Equity component represents the
difference between the fair value of the
issue of the CB-ll and the fair values
assigned to the liability components less
allocated transaction costs.

No conversion and redemption has been made
during the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014 nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(9]

Convertible bonds lll and Convertible
bonds IV

On 29 May 2015, Delightful Hope Limited
("Delightful Hope"”), a subsidiary of the
Company, Yardley Wealth Management Limited
("Yardley”), the non-controlling shareholder of
Delightful Hope, and Rich Best Asia Limited, an
entity owned by the shareholder of Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which Rich Best Asia Limited (“Rich
Best Asia”) has agreed to sell and Delightful
Hope has agreed to purchase 1 ordinary share
in China Smart Asia Limited, which representing
100% equity interest, at a consideration of
HK$93,000,000, which shall be settled and
discharged by Delightful Hope in accordance
with the time, mode and manner set out under
the sale and purchase agreement.

The aggregated consideration of
HK$93,000,000, of which (i) HK$46,500,000
shall be satisfied by Delightful Hope and
Yardley by cash or cashier order upon the
completion of acquisition; and (ii) the remaining
balance of the consideration in the sum of
HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and discharged
by the issuance of the Company’s convertible
bonds to the Chinese Strategic Holdings
Limited, the ultimate holding company of Rich
Best Asia, and as follows, (i) the Convertible
bonds A (“CB-IlI") in the principal amount
of HK$23,000,000; and (ii) the Convertible
bonds B (“CB-IV”) in the principal amount
of HK$23,500,000 upon the completion of
acquisition.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching
to the CB-Ill and CB-IV, 92,000,000 and
94,000,000 new shares shall be issued.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

31. WERES ([ARKRES])

(&)
(0 TFHEREF=RITLRESDT

RZE—RAFRAZTHHE K
RNElftB AR FERMERAR ([F
fa1 1) ~ 75 160 B9 FE 4% AR IR 5k ) B
EEEBRAR (N&EH])BEARE
| i% 58 % B &) B B2Rich Best Asia
Limitedd] L B E W&« & 1 -
Rich Best Asia Limited ( [Rich Best
Asia )ERELRE mAEmME R
BEREERTIMERARMKRYE
B - 1B A93,000,0008 7T W
B iR 1R B B s P E T 89
Fefdl R R ARG REE-

48 1% {8 93,000,000/ 7T H
(i) 46,500,000 7T B M 75 181 &%
BARWEEBETKE LIRS
FIRITAEZANT : RNV EHRE
& # 546,500,000/ 7T /B B A
A AR Y BB = 18 5T B I [AIRich
Best Asiafx 4% A% A A)ZE AR B
TRRAERABBEITOASEA
23,000,000/ 7T H 7] # j% & %
(IR ESR=1) k(A&
#423,500,000/% JT Y 7] 32 j% & 5
/g ([AI AR EH I ] ) (R KRB

=
8 o

RABEES = kAl BEE
M 2 AR AT AR
92,000,000/ 594,000,000/ #f
AR 5 T DA B AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(9]

Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV (continued)

The completion of the acquisition involving the
issue of CB-lll and CB-IV as a consideration took
place on 20 August 2015. Details of acquisition
were disclosed in note 40(b).

Transaction costs directly attributable to
issue of the CB-lll and CB-IV amounted to
approximately HK$702,000 are allocated
to liability and equity components on initial
recognition.

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 27
July 2015 (the “Circular-Il"), the principal terms
of the CB-Ill and CB-IV are as follows:

31.

R ES ([TRRES])

(##)
(c)

ARBREF=RAURKRESDN
(&)

HREITUBRBRES = RAR
BREHNEARENKESE
RZTE—RFNAZFTHEK-
EEARBEEENFBERENME
40(b)

BITA[ AR (E 5 = R AT AR & 5
PO e (S B B R 5 AN 49702,000
BILRIIEERREOEEAE R

e

HERE D o

HAARBAMA—FT—hF L
AZ+tB @i (@K =) Fr
BT ATMBRES = RATBRRE

HIOEE 2 RRM T
CB-11l CB-1IV
ABRRES= AR ES D
Principal amount: HK$23 million HK$23.5 million
REH: PETER= Yy 2358388
Conversion price: HK$0.25 HK$0.25
HR(E 0.258 7T 0.258 7T
Interest: The Convertible Bonds The Convertible Bonds
shall not bear any interest. shall not bear any interest.
MR AR E 2 I AL B - AR E 2 I AL A8 -

Maturity date:
FEE -
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued) 31. OEREH ([TJBRKRES])
(&)
()  Convertible bonds Il and Convertible (0 mwBREF=RAUBRKRESNT
bonds IV (continued) (&)
CB-lll CB-IV
ARRES= ARRESHFM

Transferability:

DET TS

Subject to compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and regulatory
requirements, the convertible bonds may be transferred to any
person provided that where the convertible bonds is intended
to be transferred to a connected person (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) (other than the associates of the holders
of the convertible bonds), such transfer shall comply with the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and/or requirements
imposed by the Stock Exchange, if any. Any transfer of the
convertible bonds shall be in respect of the whole or any part (in
multiples of HK$500,000) of the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible bonds.

MRETEIER ETARUREERTHNERT  AIRRESATE
ETEMAL EMAIBRRESHEET - 2BEAL (EER
BIEMR EWARR) (AIRESIFAAZBEARIN)  GHE
FARGRIER EMRBIZARE RSB PN HE (1

) BRESFZIMEEAAUTRRES W AEBERASTEN
2 e {284 (500,00078 T 2 (&8) -

Conversion

Each holder of the CB-lll and CB-IV shall have
the right, exercisable during the Conversion
Period (as defined in the Circular-l) to
convert the whole or any part (in multiples
of HK$500,000) of the outstanding principal
amount of the CB-lll and CB-IV held by such
holder of CB-lll and CB-IV into such number
of conversion shares as will be determined by
dividing the principal amount of the CB-Ill and
CB-IV to be converted by the conversion price
in effect on the date of conversion. No fraction
of a Share shall be issued on conversion of the
CB-Ill and CB-IV. The Company shall pay a cash
amount in HK$ equal to such amount of CB-llI
and CB-IV that are not converted.

L

B AR E S = KAl R E S
MEBAERANBEKREA (ERR
B BZETBRBRESR=R
A RIE S R AR AR AR
REH= R BRESER 2
8 (T fa] 30 > (500,0005% JT 2 &
F)HMARBRASHEERAS T
B R % BB g1
THEBHNAITBRES = RATBR
BEHNASTERAERE BEK
AR EE T - T 1F st 8]
MR ESH = R R E S %
FTRERR o AR A BB LA T 2 A 48
ERREEBR JRBRES =K
AR ELSNCEIZIRE SR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz—_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

31.

(9]

Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV (continued)

Redemption

All CB-lll and CB-IV which have not been
redeemed or converted in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the CB-Ill and CB-
IV instruments by their maturity dates shall be
redeemed by the Company on their maturity
dates at a redemption amount equal to 100%
of the principal amount of such CB-Ill and CB-
V.

The CB-lll & CB-IV contains the following
components that are required to be separately
accounted for:

(i) Liability component for the CB-lll &
CB-IV represents the present value of
the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of
the Company as well as the amount of
the CB-lll & CB-IV without conversion
option, plus allocated transaction costs.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component for CB-lll and CB-IV is
8.82% and 9.27%, respectively.

(ii) Equity component represents the
difference between the fair values of
the CB-lll & CB-IV and the fair values
assigned to the liability components
less allocated transaction costs. The
fair values of the entire CB-lll & CB-IV
is HK$23,000,000 and HK$23,500,000
respectively, are valued by Asset
Appraisal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HEz_Z—RF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

31.  CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS”) (continued) 31. ABRBES ((ATRBEs])
(#&)
(d)  The movements of the CBs are set out below: (d) FBBREHFZEHHINAT:
Liability Equity
component  component Total
8ER BRI et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—m&E—F—B 4,806 29,651 34,457
Interest paid BARFE (2,177) - 2.177)
Issue of CB-Il BTA MRESR 11,977 7,671 19,648
Effective interest expense ERF B H (H3ES)
(Note 8) 2,364 - 2,364
At 31 December 2014 R_ZT—MF
—A=+—H 16,970 37,322 54,292
Interest paid BRFE (2,391) - (2,391)
Conversion of CB-l HRBABRES — (1,524) (21,056) (22,580)
Issue of CB-IIl and CB-IV BITABRER =R
Al AR (& 5 37,146 8,652 45,798
Effective interest expense ERF B H (H5E8)
(Note 8) 3,947 - 3,947
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF
+=ZA=+—H 54,148 24,918 79,066
Liability
component
BEMRD
HK$'000
FHT
Classification of convertible bonds: AR ESR 2 D8
Current Bl &3 751
Non-current JEENER 53,397
54,148
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-T—AF+t-A=1+—HBItFE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior reporting periods:

32.

EERIE

T AARREHAE BT RERHEE
DR EA S CAE) A B
&)

Fair value
Accelerated changes of
tax investment
depreciation properties Total
REMEN
MERERE ATERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET FEx
At 1 January and 31 December 2014 R=-ZE—WNF—F—HEK
+-A=+-8 - - -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiary 5 Yt BB B A 7] £ (K 340(b))
(Note 40(b)) 1,059 19,957 21,016
(Credited) charged to consolidated FEGABaREMZENER
statement of profit or loss and (%)%
other comprehensive income
for the year (22) 2,885 2,863
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-AF+-A=+—H 1,037 22,842 23,879

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$125,461,000
(2014: HK$81,892,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. No deferred tax has been recognised
in respect of such losses (2014: nil) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$664,000 (2014: HK$2,312,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

Issued and fully paid convertible
preference shares:
At 1 January 2014,
31 December 2014 and
31 December 2015

EETREHRMNAHRELR:

RZZ-WFE-A—R"
“E-MFE+ZA=t-BR
“E-RF+-A=t-H

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. {4
Nominal
value Number
per share of shares Amount
BREE BRAEE 8
HK$ HK$'000
BT TET
Authorised ordinary shares: ETEE B
At 1 January 2014 “E-mMFE—-HF—H 0.02 4,130,434,785 82,609
Increase in authorised shares EEMRMDE (KiEa)
(Note a) 0.02 5,000,000,000 100,000
At 31 December 2014 and RZE—mFE+=A
1 January 2015 and =+—-HBR=F—8%F
31 December 2015 —A-BRkZZT—1F
+ZA=1+—H 0.02 9,130,434,785 182,609
Issued and fully paid EETREHRERER:
ordinary shares:
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NFE—A—H 0.02  1,758,865,060 35,177
Placing of new shares (Note b) FREHMR (F3Eb) 0.02 800,000,000 16,000
At 31 December 2014 and “E-EEFZA=+—HEK
1 January 2015 “E-a%—f—H 0.02 2,558,865,060 51,177
Issue of shares upon acquisition of ~ WE—BIREEE
an investment property (Note ¢) BT (BIEc) 0.02 62,800,000 1,256
Placing of new shares (Note d) A& #7Ak (PisEd) 0.02 629,000,000 12,580
Issue of shares in consideration for BT 1E AU EE —
the acquisition of a subsidiary MEARZKE
(Note e) (Mizte) 0.02 53,040,000 1,061
Issue of shares upon conversion of AR EHE KB
convertible bonds (Note f) G ER 0.02  1,225,000,000 24,500
At 31 December 2015 —E-RE+-A=1—H 0.02 4,528,705,060 90,574
Authorised convertible preference EE A BRRELR
shares:
At 1 January 2014, RZZE-NF—-R—F"
31 December 2014 and “ZE-NUF+ZA=+-HRK
31 December 2015 (Note a) “E-REt+-A=1—H
(Pizta) 0.1 173,913,043 17,391

0.1 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE
SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

33.

Notes:

(@

At the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 7 March 2014, special resolution
was passed to increase the authorised share capital
of the Company to HK$100,000,000 consisting of (i)
HK$82,608,696 divided into 4,130,434,785 ordinary
shares with par value of HK$0.02 each, of which
1,758,865,060 ordinary shares have been issued
and allotted as fully paid or credited as fully paid,;
and (i) HK$17,391,304 being the nominal value of
the convertible preference shares of the Company,
to HK$200,000,000 (divided into 9,130,434,785
ordinary shares and 173,913,043 convertible
preference shares of the Company at par values of
HK$0.02 and HK$0.10 respectively) by the creation
of an additional 5,000,000,000 authorised ordinary
shares of HK$0.02 each.

On 13 December 2013, the Company and Ping An
of China Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited
and FT Securities Limited (collectively, the “Co-Placing
Agents”) entered into the co-placing agreement,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place, through the Co-Placing Agents
on a best effort basis a maximum of 800,000,000
placing shares of the Company at a placing price of
HK$0.188 per placing share (the “2014 Placing”).

The gross proceeds from the 2014 Placing were
HK$150,400,000. The net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other related expenses
were approximately HK$145,000,000. The relevant
resolution was passed at the Company's special
general meeting on 7 March 2014. The completion
of the 2014 Placing took place on 25 March 2014.
Further details of the 2014 Placing are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 13 December
2013, 7 March 2014 and 25 March 2014 and the
circular of the Company dated 19 February 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

On 12 January 2015, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party for the purchase of
an investment property located in the PRC at
consideration of RMB10,322,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$12,902,000 and was settled
by allotment and issuance of 62,800,000 ordinary
shares HK$0.02 each of the Company at a market
price of HK$0.222 per share. Details of the
acquisition are set in note 17(a).

On 15 June 2015, the Company and Sun
International Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
entered into the placing agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to
place, through the Placing Agent on a best effort
basis a maximum of 629,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.2 per
placing share (the “2015 Placing”).

The gross proceeds from the 2015 Placing were
HK$125,800,000. The net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other related expenses
were approximately HK$124,542,000. The relevant
resolution was passed at the Company's special
general meeting on 15 June 2015. The completion
of the 2015 Placing took place on 2 July 2015.
Further details of the 2015 Placing are set out in the
Company'’s announcements dated 15 June 2015 and
2 July 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE TR+ _-_A=1+—HBILFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(e) On 28 October 2015, Fantastic Alliance Investments
Limited (“Fantastic Alliance”), a subsidiary of the
Company, the Company and Hexin Limited (“Hexin")
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which Hexin has agreed to sell and
Fantastic Alliance has agreed to purchase 35,000
ordinary share in YIHE, representing 70% of the
entire issued share capital, at a consideration in
the sum of up to HK$68,544,000, which shall be
settled and discharged by allotment and issuance of
consideration shares at the price of HK$0.168 per
consideration share (i.e. 408,000,000 ordinary shares
to be issued upon the condition as stated in the sale
and purchase agreement have been satisfied).

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
53,040,000 shares of the Company with par value
of HK$0.02 each were issued at a market price of
HK$0.156 per share. Details of acquisition were

disclosed in note 40(b).

) During the year ended 31 December 2015, CB-I with
principal amount of HK$24,500,000 was converted
into 1,225,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at par at the conversion price of HK$0.02 per

ordinary share.

(9) All new shares rank pari passu with other shares in

issue in all respects.
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which includes loan from non-controlling
interests and the liability component of convertible
bonds as disclosed in notes 30 and 31 respectively,
and bank borrowing as disclosed in note 29, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

35. ©RIA

(@) Categories of financial instruments ) EmIAZESH
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BER K EWFIE
(including cash and (BEAekRESEME)
cash equivalents) 73,542 49,356
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABGZEMEE
— held-for-trading —B1EEE 34,022 16,780
— designated as at FVTPL —EEAEAFEFABRE - 5,189
34,022 21,969
Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BEATFEFABENARAE
— contingent consideration —FERHARE
payable 13,165 -
Other financial liabilities HibemafE
(at amortised cost) (IR S A TI{E) 76,453 29,572

178 china Eco-Farming Limited FEIBEEREFR A7

Annual Report 2015 — T —AEF iR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investments, loan
to non-controlling interests, trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, financial assets
at FVTPL, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amount due to non-controlling
interests, bank borrowing and convertible
bonds. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments of
includes market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk

()

Currency risk

The Group has certain subsidiaries
operate in the PRC and Taiwan, and the
functional currency of these subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Taiwan are
RMB and NTD respectively. The RMB
is not freely convertible into other
currencies however, under Mainland
China's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to
conduct foreign exchange business.

The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets, including bank balances and
other receivables, and monetary
liabilities including trade and other
payables at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Assets Liabilities
EE ff
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~2-1% _T-mF ZB-Ef _T-QOF
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TER TER TER TATL

RMB N
NTD maK
EUR BT

The Group is mainly exposed to RMB,
NTD and EUR.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

35.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

()

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2014: 5%) change in
Hong Kong dollars against the respective
foreign currencies. 5% (2014:5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2014
5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates a
decrease in post-tax loss where Hong
Kong dollars weaken against the
respective foreign currencies. For a 5%
(2014: 5%) strengthening of Hong Kong
dollars against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss and the
balances below would be negative.

HK$'000
TER

35.

RMB impact
ARBE

RTIA (F)
TREREERERBE (H)

(b)

2014
HK$'000
TET

TS EE (&)

0

NTD impact
HeEBYE
2015
HK$'000
TR

B E s (E)
TRAJAREBE BT
8 8 N B 7 BB R FH{E5 %
—T—NF:5%)H K
R JZ o 3% 5% K B T [A] &=
BAHNETEEEABR
R AINEE &\ B B BT 4 FA A b
K WRKREEEHINE
[ERApE IR G EEEHMW
i -BRESTERRE
AN ST EZ MA SN E
BB B - IR R B RS
LA S s fE SR 2 2h5% (=
T— P4 5% ) {E[E 153
B TNERBFTREB
TLHBEEINE R ER T
BEBAERD BT
B EEBE EFAES%
—ZT—F:5%) A€
HBRBEBEBBBRRSE R
MREFE T T3 485
weas-

EUR impact
BixE
2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TR

KRR E R

Decrease in post-tax loss

355 192 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i1)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate loan receivables and the liability
component of convertible bonds as set
out in Notes 23 and 31, respectively.
The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate bank balances as detailed
in Note 25 and bank borrowing as
detailed in Note 29. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

For both 2014 and 2015, in view of the
prevailing market saving interest rate for
bank balance is low, in the opinion of
the directors, the Group’s exposures to
interest rates risk are minimal, therefore
no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the bank borrowing
at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the bank
borrowing outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis point (2014
N/A) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

35.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i1)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis
points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2015 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$79,000.
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk
through its held for trading investments.
The management manages this exposure
by maintaining the investment with
appropriate risk level. In addition, price
risk was monitored by the management
of the Group who will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

If the price of respective equity
instruments held had been 10% (2014
10%) higher/lower:

- Post-tax loss for the year
would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$2,841,000
(2014: HK$1,834,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of
held for trading investments.

The Group's sensitivity to held-for-
trading investments has not changed
significantly from the prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets, mainly deposit paid for operating right,
trade and other receivables and bank balances,
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For trade and other receivables, in order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Company has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts (including trade and other
receivables). In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

For loan receivables, the Group’s management
manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of their new and existing customers before
standard payment terms and conditions
are offered. The management assesses the
collateral and credit quality of each customer
based on customer’s background information,
financial position, past experience and relevant
factors. The Group also reviews from time to
time the financial position of the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong, which
accounted for 100% (2014: 100%) of the total

trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 80% (2014:
80%) and 96% (2014: 100%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers
respectively, all within one-stop value chain
services (2014: all within the health care
services and one-stop value chain services).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 23% (2014:
100%) and 83% (2014: 100%) of the total
loan receivables were due from the Group's
largest borrower and five largest borrowers

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

However, the directors of the Company
consider the credit risk is under control since
the directors of the Company exercise due
care in granting credit and check the financial
background of these debtors on a regular basis.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

For the credit risk on the deposit paid for
operating right, the directors of the Company
considered that the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the directors of the Company to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as the
Group had continuously incurring operating
losses. The liquidity of the Group primarily
depends on the future funding being available
and the ability of the Group to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. Details of
which are set out in Note 2.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

35. &@ TR (&)

(b) EEEREEBEERBE (&)

=EmEE (&)

A ARAREFRREERR
Ty BRG]t TSR AR RE
ERERLEE YEHREX
FEBANPERE R

BHREF 1 ABEREEFEEE
RTReEENFRZERT HR
BESEERRER-

REERENNRENETRR
ME ARBEERR FEAR
e

MEBEZEME
ErpEcRBREETE A&
BEERERARNAEFTRRE
BE2REMNAESFEKFE A
REASEEERTES WHE
ReEmRBZHE-

HRAEEFERSEEER
BASE@BERBE SRR A
SENRHE ST BEORNAK
ABNE S ARRNEERZHE
BITEMBEENRE N - B
TBERP L2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. £ETA(E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) L£HREMETEEERRE (&
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REETEE (&)
The following table details the Group's TERKHVWAREFRIETA S AE
remaining contractual maturity for its non- TR TALYER R TIIRES
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been BBEZIENREBESRENAE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash Ea e B PN N2 &5 BH 4
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest o AEms  EAIRERERE
date on which the Group can be required to YHISERITEZR TG ASEEREE
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment AR TR BT T
on demand clause are included in the earliest A ge e HMIETE S REa &
time band regardless of the probability of the BEHEEE DEA G TEESHE-
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.
The table includes both interest and principal ZERPHENBELRESREAST
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows WE o HFERERZEEE 8
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is KITIH S REIRMEEAR 2 F R &t
derived from interest rate curve at the end of Ho
the reporting period.
Within More than More than
1 year one year two years Total
oron less than less than undiscounted Carrying
demand two years five years cash flows amounts
—ERg SR-F SRME FEB
REREE (EIRME EIREFE RERLE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR TER FER
2015 —E-IHF
Non-derivative FfTEemAE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables JE SRR A R EL A B A 50 9,977 - - 9,977 9,977
Amount due to FEREERIR R = TR
non-controlling interests 2,012 - - 2,012 2,012
Loan from non-controlling BB RERER
interests 735 - - 735 735
Bank borrowing RITEER 12,777 - - 12,777 9,581
Convertible bonds R ES 1,521 43,600 23,500 68,621 54,148
27,022 43,600 23,500 94,122 76,453
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. RTA(E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) L£HREMEEEEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) BEELRERE (&)
Bank borrowings with a repayment on STERERERIECHIERITER
demand clause are included in the “within 1 HAFMBEADHTE [—FE RN
year or on demand” time band in the above LER | WEEEE RN _ZE—F
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2015 and EHR_FE—MNE+ A=+ —
2014, the aggregate undiscounted principle H $RITEREOKRABE RS B%E
amounts of the bank borrowing amounted D BI4 /59,581,000 T R E o« 48
to approximately HK$9,581,000 and nil EEAREENB BRI KD T
respectively. Taking into account the Group's EEWAMEE BT E N
financial position, the directors of the Company ERERIEER AT ES
do not believe that it is probable that the HE ZEETEZRAUEBER
bank will exercise their discretionary rights to HREFEN S SR HEEE-
demand immediate repaid. The directors of the AR - A2EZELTFER SN
Company believe that such bank borrowings H g4 512,777,000 0 (= F
will be settled by in accordance with the —E:E) o
scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loans agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount
to approximately HK$12,777,000 (2014: nil).
Within More than More than
1 year one year two years Total
oron less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
demand two years five years cash flows amounts
—FA% SR—F EoiNkS R
REREE BIRWFE ELREFE  BREREE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FET FAET TAT
2014 —E-NE
Non-derivative financial FiTESREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables FEBR R Eo A FE 1 508 10,814 - - 10,814 10,814
Amount due to NI RS TIE
non-controlling interests 1,053 - - 1,053 1,053
Loan from non-controlling FERBREREEN
interests - 735 - 735 735
Convertible bonds ARRES 2,325 3,487 20,600 26,412 16,970
14,192 4,222 20,600 39,014 29,572

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

fiaf )5 B M) o 2 B B 1A R 7 HA ORI
EEMGBANEAEMAR AL
XEBBIETESRBENY
PHNETANSES TUER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(0 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments
This note provides information about how
the Group determines fair values of various
financial instruments.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial

35. LRTA (&)
(0 SRMIANATENE

ARt ERAEE AL SR
TABTAFENT AL Ex -

() FEBEEHELFHELY

instruments that are measured at EHMTEZAFE
fair value on a recurring basis
Relationship of
key inputs and
Significant significant
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial assets 31 December 2015 hierarchy and key inputs inputs to fair value
DAFENIE
RZZ-1F BABEERR
tZAZt-H fRERLR REBEH BENEABA
SREE HATE DFEER EZL N ¢ ERNCDN - HEZANEE
Listed equity securities
IHREARS
Held-for-trading non-derivative HK$34,022,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A N/A
financial assets classified as FVTPL (2014: HK$16,780,000) an active market
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
REAHBRRRTHRRE 34,022,000 T -8 RERTSNEE a1 TEm
ATEFABR EREEL (Z3—mF:
BEEEHITECRAE 16,780,000/ 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(o) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

35. &@ TR (&)
(0 EMIBNAFETE(H)

() FEBEEHELFHELY
TR -FE(E)

Relationship of
key inputs and

Significant significant
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial assets 31 December 2015 hierarchy and key inputs inputs to fair value
ATENEE
RZZ-1f BABBRRE
tZA=1-8H RERLR REBEMH BENEAGA
SREE WATE DFESR TERAEE EXBAE HBZANEE
Unlisted debt securities
FETREERS
Designated as financial assets at FVTPL ~ HK$nil (2014: Level 3 Discounted cash flow model for the  Expected cash flows (2014:  The lesser the expected
HK$5,189,000) component by reference to the Long term revenue growth  cash flows, the lower
expected cash inflow upon the rate, taking into account the fair value (2014:
maturity of the bond (note) (2014:  management's experience  The higher the long
Using Binomial Option Pricing and knowledge of market  term revenue growth
model: by reference to the face conditions of the specific rate, the higher the
value of the bond and its coupon ~ industries) fair value)
rate and the quoted price of listed
equity within the same industry
and the market interest rate for
determination of option value. The
discount rate adopted is ranged
from (2014:12.49% to 16.16%)
and discounted cash flow model
for the bond component by
reference to the expected cash
inflow upon the maturity of the
bond.)
BERBRTEFA THL(ZF-mE: E=R FAPMBEBRENER NEL BERSR (CT-NE- R BYRERMS
BRzoREE 5,189,000%7T) ZEHFIERNRERERA-  BRARE ZRIEE RAIATEHE(ZZ
() (ZZ-mE:RAZE  EHRNEAERmEE  —0E: RERARK
AWEEERY: L2ZES5HT  AHERRAZ) REGGHULTES
AERESE EARTLER &)
BERBRETHEBENDS
ME-FRBOTRENT (ZF
—IU4F 12.49%216.16% ) RS
BRRLRBEAHRESTH
2EREFIBR EERER
Ae)
Note: Due to the convertible bond issuer is suffered from a significant financial difficulty and there is no

Wi

forecast cash flow to enable the application of Binomial Option Pricing model with reference to
discounted cash flow model. Accordingly, the adjusted net assets method is adopted.

HRATRERESFETALREAYBRE AMERSRERATEARE2ELRRAS
MRAN ZEAREEER Qi KARFEELADERM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

35.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. BT R (&)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (o) SRMIEMAFEE (H&)

instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the
management of the Group anticipated
that, based on the expected business
operation level of Fuyu, the probability
of the triggering event to happen for
the year ending 31 December 2016
would be low, besides, the fair value of
the Profit Guarantee as at 31 December
2015 has been performed by the valuer
not connected with the Group, the fair
value of the Profit Guarantee as at 31
December 2015 is nil (2014: nil). The fair
value estimates are based on the actual
profit in the past and profit forecast
in 2016. This is a level 3 fair value
measurement.

During the year ended 31 December
2015, a contingent consideration was
incurred upon acquisition of YIHE Group
(Note 40(b)). The fair value of the
contingent consideration arrangement
of approximately HK$14,164,000 as at
completion of acquisition was estimated
by applying the income approach.
The fair value estimates are based on
the volatility of the Company’s shares
ranged from 36.8% to 41.3% and
assumed that YIHE has reached the
net profit of less than HK$7,000,000
for each of the three years ending
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
respectively. This is a level 3 fair value
measurement.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. 2@ T A (&)
(o) Fair value measurements of financial (0) ERTEMNAFEE (&)
instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) AEBTERTE L FERY
instruments that are measured 2T AZ L FE(E)
at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

As at 31 December 2015, there was a gain RZZTE—HAF+=A
on fair value of contingent consideration =+—H #AREKRARK
of approximately HK$999,000 recognised MZBREXRNR-_Z—"N
in profit or loss for the contingent F+-_A=+—HEEFM
consideration arrangement, as the price T® MRS ARBLHE
per share of the Company’s share has been EAEﬁT&EP ERIAREZ
decreased as at 31 December 2015. The ifﬁJ& #7999,0007%
fair value of the contingent consideration T AREHNAFER
as at 31 December 2015 is approximately —hAF+-_A=+—
HK$13,165,000 (2014: nil). H# %13,165,000% 7T
—TE) e
Note: There were no transfers between sy RASREHR AF
levels of fair value hierarchy in the Bt E &R 2 B =
current reporting period. Bk o
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value ST AESE Z&Q$TEQ+
measurements of financial instruments SRR B 7 YER -
on recurring basis:
Unlisted  Contingent
debt consideration
securities payable
kb B
BHES RRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NFE—H—H - -
Purchases EE 5,189 -
At 31 January 2014 RZE—NF—HA=+—H 5,189 -
Additions NE - (14,164)
Total loss: A -
— In profit or loss - Em (5,189) 999
At 31 December 2015 —HF+-A=+—H - 13,165
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(0 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(ii) The directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of other
financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair
values due to the short-term maturity
or the impact of discounting was not
significant.

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Commitments under operating lease
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

35.

36.

RTIA (F)
(0 EBMIENAFETE(H)

(i) ARAREFRBNEEH
BHRRTEDBHNEM SR
BEMERMBEZRAE
BENFERE UL H
REREHEI B R AR
B FEK-

REHNEE

RERNET 2&E
EEBEBEBA

R|BEBR  REBRBERIATHHEE
HZ TRAIBEREHON AR 2 RIER
SRHIEAENT

as follows:
2015 2014
—F-Hf —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(Restated)
(&=75))
Within one year —F R 1,968 1,848
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF (BEEEMTF) 1,116 2,298
3,084 4,146

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms of one to two years (2014: one
to two years) and rentals are fixed over the terms of
the leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-Z-AF+-A=t—ALEE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 36. RKEHOAE (&)
Commitments under operating lease (continued) RETAANIE T 2 &E (8)
The Group as lessor KEFELHBEA
Property rental income earned during the year was ERN -BEYERENADN A
approximately HK$1,521,000 (2014: HK$156,000). 1,521,000% 7 ( =& — PO 4F : 156,000
The properties generated annualised rental yields BIL) o R EMEBEETR22% (ZE
of 2.2% (2014: 1.9%) on an on-going basis. The —FE:19% )72 FEHRERRER-E
properties leased out have committed tenants for the HHEMERRK—FEHERP -
next year.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REHR - AEEE T B1ERE
contracted with tenants for the following future HeHEEBPEETL:
minimum lease payments:
2015 2014
—B-HE —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
(Restated)
(EEH))
Within one year *E W 3,083 143
In the second to fifth year inclusive FRF (BEEEMSE) 2,954 -
6,037 143
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EBEXREIE
2015 2014
—E-HF —TMF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of EHERIHERNGETE
the acquisition of plant and WEFREBORERE X
equipment contracted for but BEMNEARRL
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 1,026 -
Capital expenditure in respect of BRI HERNGET
the acquisition of investment WMEPREORBIREDED
properties contracted for but BARRXE
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements - 21,768
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE
38.

—T-REFT-A=T—HILFE

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
24 January 2002 (the “Scheme 2002"). Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 6 May 2011, the
Scheme 2002 was terminated and a new share option
scheme (the “Scheme 2011") was adopted.

Under the Scheme 2002, the Company may only
grant share options to the directors of the Company
or any person who is an employee of members of the
Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interests. However, the Scheme 2011 provides a
broadened basis of and scope of eligible participation
and enables the Group to reward the employees,
the directors of the Company and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group.
The Scheme 2002 was expired on 23 January 2012
and the directors of the Company consider that it is
appropriate to adopt the new scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011
is to enable the Company to grant options to selected
employees to subscribe for shares of the Company
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to
the Group. The board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, invite any full-time or part-time
employees of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive and non-executive
directors of the Company, advisors, consultants of the
Company or any subsidiary of the Company to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011 was
initially 10% of the issued share capital as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
An option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Board to
each participant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
employee should pay HK$1.00 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The subscription
price for the shares of the Company will be a price to
be determined by the Board and will be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated
on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of granting of the options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares on the GEM as stated on the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of granting of
the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
64,750,000 (2014: nil) share options had been
granted under the Scheme 2011 The Group
recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$2,300,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: nil) in relations to share options granted by the
Company.

38.

SO MBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE
BB (&)
BIE _EE_Feal kT ——F5tEl
(BIEEITE R ARITREFERKE) fA]
TEITORR TR B2 REA121E
RHRATEBBARARTREETRG
1% BRENESFGETIHE R
SEEZBARABERITE EEAER
R BB AMARRX1.008TTE
RERBREZRE - ARFIRMD 2R
BESHESSET WA ORMHRN
BRERLEAEBIAEERER L
PRI BIZER 2 Y (B - (IR R B
BRERLE AR A ER 5 BB AR
FRMER FAAFINEIFERZ FIUWH
B RN EE=EF&ZSE -

AKRFIREBE_E—AF T+ _A=1+—
BEFEERARE -_ZT——F:28®RLE
64,750,000 E Rk 1 (=T — W & -
ﬁ)ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬂhﬁM%h%F@

—E-RAFTZA=t—HILFER
WEﬂEE B %E#72,300,00056 T (—ZF—
F:F)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE
38. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

38. BRE (&)

FiE BRI BT

Exercise

Date of grant Exercise period price

%t B HA 1T ER TEfE

HK$

BT

Scheme 2011 13/7/2015 14/7/201 5-13/7/2016 0.212
—E——F5tE —E-hFt+tA+=R ﬁitﬂ+@5i
T-RFtHA+=H

Scheme 2011 13/7/2015 14/7/2016 13/7/2017 0.212
—E——F5 8 —E2-hAFtA+=H :7 /\i‘bﬂ‘f’@ﬁi
—t+F+A+=A1

Scheme 2011 13/7/2015 14/7/2017-13/7/2018 0.212
—E——F5tE —E-hFt+tA+=HR —+tF+HATHEBEZE
—N\F+A+=H

The following table discloses movements of the
Company's share options held by the directors of the
Company during the year:

TREBEFALRRREEMHBARAE
Ptz &)

Outstanding Granted Outstanding

at 1/1/2015 during year  at 31/12/2015

R=Z-1F R-E—-1F

~A-H +=A=+-H

fef RAT FARE ] RAT BE

Directors 5= - 64,750,000 64,750,000
Exercisable at the end of the year ~AARFERAITT{E 12,950,000

Weighted average exercise price  fI#EFHITEE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, options
were granted on 13 July 2015 (2014: nil). The
estimated fair value of the options granted at grant
date is approximately HK$5,991,000. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, amount of approximately
HK$2,300,000 had been recognised in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_T-—AF+-_A=1+—BHILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 38. EEMREE (/)
The fair value was calculated using the Binomial NEFEDE - ERAERE - ZERXY
model. The inputs into the model were as follows: BAEIENT
2015
—E—FHfF
HK$'000
THET
Maturity date: 13/7/2016 AR =E—X<FLtA+=H
Weighted average share price I RR(E HK$0.21258 7T
Exercise price T E HK$0.21278 7T
Expected volatility TE HR R 1R 66.21%
Expected life TEHAfE A HA 1 year F
Risk-free rate o1 [ e ) 2 0.087%
Expected dividend yield TE HARR B [0l 3R & Nil &
Maturity date: 13/7/2017 A —E—tFtA+=H
Weighted average share price niEFHRE HK$0.21258 5T
Exercise price TTIE(E HK$0.21258 7T
Expected volatility T8 HA R 1@ 67.07%
Expected life TEHA(E A ER 2 years
Risk-free rate el P 0.354%
Expected dividend yield TE HARR B B ] = Nil &
Maturity date: 13/7/2018 AR —E—-NFtA+=H

Weighted average share price nkEFHRE HK$0.21278 T
Exercise price 171018 HK$0.21258 5T
Expected volatility T8 HA R 18 87.22%
Expected life TE HAfE A HA 3 years
Risk-free rate 2 [2 o ) 2 0.699%
Expected dividend yield TE HARR B | 3] & Nil &

TEHAR IR TR A A R m IR (B P B T F
ZEESLRE T IABRE - B EKAZTE
HaEAFERHEREEERE 2 KEME
WA AT E R - TR GBI RITARE
LEEELHE-

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 4 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

S DR A e A R 2 A
T HEBREATEFAOED R
BRDERE FOREE B
BEREETEBRRNTARKME
B -

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value
of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE
39.

—T-REFT-A=T—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs capped at HK$1,500 (HK$1,250
prior to June 2014) per month to MPF, in which the
contribution is matched by employees.

Pursuant to the regulation of the relevant authorities
in the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this
country participate in respective government
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the
eligible employees. Contribution made to the Schemes
is calculated base on the certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities
of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes
is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the
Schemes.

Under the Labor Pension Act of Taiwan, Employees
may choose a scheme where the rate of contribution
by an employer should not be less than 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and the employees may
also voluntarily contribute up to 6% of the monthly
salaries to the provision fund account under the Labor
Pension Act of Taiwan.

The total expense recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$318,000 (2014:
HK$344,000) represents contribution payable to
MPF and the Schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.
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EBHRERGTE
REEBAEFMBREBNGEREELE
BIET % EREINEEAXEARE
HNES HEAKEEESRIFE AR
AR T ERARS%E R TRES
(ERABEA1,5008T) (KT —M
FNARIA,2508T)  MEBINEE
AR B R o

REFEEHEER AL REBRZ
BIZK 2 fiY 8§ 2 B 2 B B TR R AR A48 7
A (TFAH 8] - Bt A RN B A R
AR Z ST BN HR LN EER
BB ZEWEH - Mz Far 8IF 2
FRI5 IR R o B AR (I AT AT B AR S M A AR
ZETASHAE -FEEHERAE
AR KR B I E N 2 2 BURKAER) -
AEERZFEZETEA/REZE
BE ESE-SANNIER 7

RIEBEGES TRASKD BEAESE
BEHKLEEADREE A #H6% 25
g A RIE 688 TRIKE RHI B R
ASREBSRFPHEAZSEAFZ
6% °

R BEREME TN S ERNRHR
S ABEEX318,0008 L (Z T — U 4F:
344,000 7T ) FE AR S ER AR FE E
HRES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE—_ZE—RF+-_A=+—RBIFE
40. WHEEHEB QT

Acquisition of an asset in a subsidiary @) WE—REHNBATRNEER
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_Z-—NFE+-A=+—H
EFE
Konson V-7
On 31 March 2014, Skyline Top acquired 100% N-T—mE=H=+—§8 %
equity interest in Konson and accepted the B = W e R M100% 2 M B
assignment of the amount due to a former AN E RIS T v s o S
shareholder. Konson is the sole legal and BB AR AT ([
beneficial owner of the entire issued share M) BRIO BTN Y E—EF
capital in Union World International Group RERSES A ME R AL 2
Holdings Limited (“Union World"), Union World EEHI0%E I ItREER
holds 40% of the equity interest in Beijing HX; it BT 25 A 55% M IR AE T4t
Beijing HX holds 55% of the equity interest in A A ARSI E—k
Beijing XN, and Beijing XN is the sole legal and TREXBAA (BA [FEEE
beneficial owner of the entire equity interest ) FEHEEEENTIEE
in the Fuyu (collectively known as the “Konson FREANSSHEERERAA
Group”). The principal activities of Konson AIEMAE—Z—mWE—F+HH
and the Konson Group and the details of this B 38 (K
transaction are disclosed in the Circular of the
Company dated 19 February 2014.
Since the principal asset of the Konson HREEEEN T EEEERIE
Group comprises only interests in associates, —HRP BB E QBN ER
which principal activities of the associate is (ZBMB NN T EEEAYE
property development in the PRC, cash and FI3%) 4 RIEITES B
bank balances, accruals and amount due to B R FET AT RR B 38 - (A i
a former shareholder. In the opinion of the BERA WHEBEEEBRYN TE
directors, the acquisition of the Konson Group BE BB SR R FE 3T (&
is not considered as an acquisition of business SEEEAHETEBKENE
under HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combination NG ES XX
through acquisition of subsidiaries.
HK$'000
TAET
Consideration transferred: CEEHEAE:
Cash RE 20,000
Issue of CB-II, at fair value BT MR ES W AFE
(Note 1 and 2) (HfEE1K%2) 20,000
Total 4Bt 40,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. WEKEBLAT (&)

(a) Acquisition of an asset in a subsidiary (a)
(continued)
Konson (continued)
The identifiable assets and liabilities of the
Konson Group recognised as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

WE-ENEARNEE (8)

B (&)
FEEENIE B HRERH A @&
RIEERBENT:

HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: B REE:
Interests in associates AR /NEINEoF 39,684
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR 331
Accruals JEETE A (15)
Amount due to a former shareholder — JEff — & BT R B FR 1B (9,641)
30,359
Add: Amount due to a former o AREEATEEN
shareholder assigned to J& < — % R AR SR & 5/ 18
the Group 9,641
40,000
Note 1:  The fair value of CB-Il at completion date BeE1 :  ATMRESHF T A

was valued by using Binomial Option
Pricing model which the Company’s share
price and share price’s volatility are the
key input to the valuation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Acquisition of an asset in a subsidiary
(continued)

(a)

Konson (continued)

Note 2:

As part of the acquisition condition,
the vendor, Mr. So Pan granted a profit
guarantee ("Profit Guarantee”) to
the Group in respect of the financial
performance of Fuyu. As stipulated in
the agreement with Mr. So, if Fuyu fails
to meet the accumulated profit before
tax amount of HK$80,000,000 from 31
March 2014 to 31 December 2016, the
principal amount of convertible bonds
issued by the Company would be reduced
proportionately in accordance with the
agreement. As at 31 December 2014 and
2015, the management of the Group
anticipated that, based on the expected
business operation level of Fuyu, the
probability of the triggering event to
happen for the year ending 31 December
2016 would be low, besides, the fair
value of the Profit Guarantee as at 31
December 2015 had been performed by
the valuer, Asset Appraisal, not connected
with the Group, the fair value of the
Profit Guarantee as at 31 December 2015
is nil (2014: nil).

Net cash outflow in acquisition of
the Konson Group:
Cash consideration paid
Less: Bank balances and
cash acquired

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z—AE+-_A=1+—HIFE

40. Y&
(a)

WEFERENREDR

ENRERE
B ERITE R R TR R

China Eco-

BHWEATR (&)
REBZE-_Z—HmNFE+=-A=1+—
ALEFEWE-ENBARNE
E (&)
V-3-2C )
M2 (EAKRBEOBHIEE &

75 EROR A SRR R B

BRIE A A EEE B G

FRTE (RFRF]) ©

A0 B AR AL A R SLED

BRI R R == ke

—ME=A=+—HE_

E—-XE+=RB=+—H

MR AR EDBREA R

=14 #180,000,000/% 7T

BIA A RIBITRY AT R R (B

HFARSEERIE R E IR

PlF A R T —OE R

—E-RAF+ZA=1+—

A rEEEEEES"

RIERARMIEREBCE

KE-REBE-_ZT—XREF

T-A=t+-—HILFEH

BB BRI -

N RZE—RF+=

AZ+—BZR®FREA

FEEHERNEERER

Al B R R T

HE RZE—RHE+Z

B=+—H #H®RBZLQ

FEAT(ZT—MN4EF:

=)

=

R
(20,000)

331

(19,669)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) Acquisition of an asset in a subsidiary

(continued)

Konson (continued)

Transaction cost directly attributable to the
acquisition of Konson Group amounted
to approximately HK$704,000, in which
HK$352,000 had been recognised as
transaction cost directly attributable to the
issuance of CB-Il as disclosed in note 31(b),
and the remaining HK$352,000 have been
recognised as an expense in the current
year, within administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

(b)  Acquisition of a business

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(i) China Smart Asia Limited (“Smart

Asia”)

On 28 May 2015, Skyline Top Limited
(“Skyline™”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Yardley (collectively
“JV Partners”) established Delightful
Hope for the purpose of the acquisition
of Smart Asia. Delightful Hope is owned
as to 50% by each of the JV Partners.

On 29 May 2015, Delightful Hope,
Yardley and Rich Best Asia, the subsidiary
of Chinese Strategic, which is one of
the non-controlling shareholders of
the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which
Rich Best Asia has agreed to sell and
Delightful Hope has agreed to purchase
1 ordinary share of 100% equity interest
in Smart Asia at a consideration of
HK$93,000,000, which shall be settled
and discharged by Delightful Hope in
accordance with the time, mode and
manner set out under the sale and

purchase agreement.
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BB E AR (&)

(a)

(b)

REBZ-T—NFE+=-A=+—
ALEEERE-—BHRBATNE
= ()

EEfs (4&)
KEREEEEERGEZRS
A ZR 49 /704,0008 00 B
#1352,000/8 T ERER AT 1T A]
BRREF-_HEEEEZZIK
AN (IMIEE3 1) FTHER) - MR T
352,000 L E A AN F [EEER
BRAY BBEBRGEETREAM
PHERERFHITHEAZA-

BEZ_Z-A%+-A=t-—H

IEFE

() EXEZNERRE([E
ad)
RZZE—RAFAA-TN
B RERBERAR (AR
AEEMBAR [RE])
HgM(RBAIAER
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HEB50% M m
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Asia (EARB 2B A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued)

(@)

China Smart Asia Limited (“Smart
Asia”) (continued)

The aggregate consideration of
HK$93,000,000, of which (i)
HK$46,500,000 shall be satisfied by
Yardley by cash or cashier order upon
the completion and (ii) the remaining
balance of the consideration in the sum
of HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and
discharged by the Company's issuance
to the Chinese Strategic (i) the CB-ll in
the principal amount of HK$23,000,000;
and (i) the CB-IV in the principal amount
of HK$23,500,000 at completion.

This acquisition has been accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
amount of gain on bargain purchase
arising as a result of the acquisition was
approximately HK507,000. Delightful
Hope is principally engaged in property
investment and has acquired Smart Asia
so as to continue the expansion of the
Group's property investment.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

WEEKIB A E (&)
(b) WEEIS ()

i) ERTEMNERA A ([#

) (&)

KB 4& £ 593,000,000
7T E H# (i) 46,500,000/
7T 78 B 58 BK I BB O ) A
BERBROTAEZF R
(i) & #4 &H46,500,0007%
TERTKEBRKARQF
MEARBEITOASRE
7/$23,000,0005 7T 2 A #
BRESH = RINEAEER
23,500,000/ 7T 2 A #2 j%
EHF MmN RIEE -

It TE R BB B R W B R A
R-AWRBEEELNZ
{8 U B8 I 2 49 507,000
BT -HZWMETENREDE
BEWEWBEEN LAF
BRAAEBYMERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. WEMHEBLAT (&)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) XK (&)
(i) China Smart Asia Limited (“Smart i) BATIMNERAE ([#

Asia”) (continued)

Details of the acquisition are set out in
the announcements of the Company
dated 29 May 2015 and circular of the
Company dated 27 July 2015.

) (&)
FHEWBEEENFEHIN
ARFIHBA-ZZT—RF
FAZ+THhBEHAMREAR
NEIBHAE T —HF+
AZ+tEB8@EK-

HK$'000
FETT
Consideration transferred: EEENRE:
Cash Be 46,500
Issue of CB-Ill, at fair value BT ES
(Note 31(c)) =N FE (KMEE31(0) 23,000
Issue of CB-IV, at fair value BT BmRES
(Note 31(c)) ERFE (HE31)) 23,500
93,000

The fair value of CB-Ill and IV at
completion date was valued by Asset
Appraisal using Binomial Option Pricing
model which the Company’s share price
and share price's volatility are the key
input to the valuation.

AR E S = REREK
HEIO R FET R BE
R -EAMEEERL
EITHE AR RE R
BRERSREENEZE
AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. WEMHEB LT (&)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) WEXEXK (&)

(i) China Smart Asia Limited (“Smart i) BRTMHNERAT ([E
Asia”) (continued) ) (&)
Acquisition-related costs amounting BN EE ETEME A K AL
to approximately HK$700,000 have 700,000/ T HEBR R B
been excluded from the consideration wEEAE WD RESB
transferred and have been recognized HEEMEEmINERNT
as an expenses in the current year, B ERBREER
within the administrative expenses in the F o
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

The fair values of the identifiable assets AN UEE B HARER M |

and liabilities of Smart Asia recognised HREELNEEAFED
as at the date of acquisition were as T

follows:

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

s 8 B

BEEW

DNFE

HK$'000

FAT

Plant and equipment 5 B 5% 4 689

Investment properties REYE 121,010

Trade and other receivables JRE S R 5% K2 B A e WU IE 665

Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 707

Trade and other payables JE {<F AR 3R B EL A JE £~ 5K IR (9,607)

Deferred tax liabilities BREFRIBEEE (19,957)

Net assets FEEE 93,507

The fair value of trade and other
receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to approximately HK$665,000.
The gross contractual amounts of
those trade and other receivables
acquires amounted to approximately
HK$9,993,000 at the date of acquisition.
The best estimate at acquisition date
of the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected amounted to
approximately HK$9,268,000.

JE S R SR % H A JE R IR
REEB B A FENR
665,000 7T o 72 UL fE B
HY - 5% 55 PR WOBR X I B At
JERHRIBM B E NS TR
/49,993,000 7T - B B
W iE A EATE A~ 2 Uk (Bl Y
BRBEERZ &ZEMEFTH
/49,268,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. WEMHEBLAT (&)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) XK (&)
(i) China Smart Asia Limited (“Smart i) BATIMNERAE ([#

Asia”) (continued)
Gain on bargain purchase arising on

1) (&)
WEEENZERBE RS

acquisition
HK$'000
FETT
Consideration transferred BEERE 93,000
Less: net assets acquired TR R E E (93,507)
Gain on bargain purchase WEEANZEBE =
arising on acquisition 507

None of the gain on bargain purchase
arising on the acquisitions is expected to
be taxable for tax purposes.

MEBEFHEENZEE
BERABHRRENS
RERT -

HK$'000
FETT
Net cash outflow in acquisition of Y& ZERA IR €7 1 F 58
Smart Asia

Cash consideration HeRE 46,500

Less: Bank balances and B IRITESR R FTINEEIR €
cash acquired (707)
45,793

Included in the loss for the year was
approximately HK$85,000 attributable
to the additional business generated
by Smart Asia. Revenue for the year
includes approximately HK$982,000
generated from Smart Asia.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued)

(@)

(i)

China Smart Asia Limited (“Smart
Asia”) (continued)

Had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, total revenue of
the Group for the year would have
been approximately HK$67,718,000,
and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$71,341,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1
January 2015, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

YIHE Group

On 28 October 2015, Fantastic Alliance,
a subsidiary of the Company, the
Company and Hexin entered into a
sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which the Hexin has agreed to sell
and the Fantastic Alliance has agreed
to purchase 35,000 ordinary shares
in YIHE, representing 70% of the
entire issued share capital of YIHE, at
a consideration in the sum of up to
HK$68,544,000, which shall be settled
and discharged by Fantastic Alliance
procuring the Company to allot and
issue the consideration shares at the
price of HK$0.168 per consideration
share (i.e. 408,000,000 to be issued
upon the condition as stated in the sale
and purchase agreement have been
satisfied), and the consideration shares
shall be allotted and issued by the
Company to Hexin in accordance with
the time, mode and manner set out
under the sale and purchase agreement
(the "Acquisition”).

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

WEEKIB A E (&)
(b) WEEIS ()

i) ERTEMNERA A ([#
) (&)
MUBBER T —HF—
A—HK  BIAEBRF
& 48U 2= 49 267,718,000
BT MEEEBBENA
71,341,000 L BEE &
HOERSBEAR BT
—EAERBEEN_-Z
—AF—A—BEKMA
SEERERER 2=
RIS EHEE 7R IR
BIERRKREE 2TEM -

(i) EHEEHE
RZE—RAF+AZ+N
H - Fantastic Alliance (4%
AAMBAG)  ARA
MAMETYE & W
BIhEEMEBELE R
Fantastic AllianceA =B E
H A 35,0000% & i % (48
EREAEBERITR
KE70% ) REE &
= 568,544,000/ 7T 0 #
H Fantastic Alliancefg {#
RNRAalRERARERD
0.168/8 T g 3 &K ZH 171X
ERGH (BNE EiHBZEY
RHEEXEE TEITH
408,000,0008% ) /& & &
bR MAERGD ERAK
NAERIEE B P8
MR R r e k%
IFEM([KESEE]) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

40.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. WEMB LT (&)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) WHEBEK (&)
(i) YIHE Group (continued) (i) EEEHF (&)
Details of the Acquisition are set out EREWESENFEHRR
in the announcement of the Company KABHEBA-_Z—T1
dated 28 October 2015. In accordance E+A-+N\BHB A
with the sale and purchase agreement, BIEEEHE BERE
the settlement of purchase consideration D ENBEKERN - RNE
is divided into forth tranches, EHETHREE T ERT
53,040,000 shares will be issued upon 53,040,000/ i% 1n » K i
the completion of sale and purchase EEWMEAETE @A
agreement, and maximum 118,320,000 IKFEERE REASE
shares will be issued at each year during E_ZFNNBFET K
the second to forth anniversary financial FEBFEFBEFETRS
years of YIHE Group upon the fulfillment 118,320,0008% J& 17 ©
of the level of net profit as prescribed in
the sale and purchase agreement.
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred: CEBERE:
53,040,000 shares at a price of R 7 H 1% HR%0.15678 L2
HK$0.156 at completion date ~ {E1&%%7753,040,0000% J& {5 8,274
Contingent consideration HARREBLH (M)
arrangement (note) 14,164
22,438
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued)
(ii)  YIHE Group (continued)

Note:

The contingent consideration arrangement
has the following requirements:

(i)

(ii)

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company’s shares
to the Hexin if the net profit of
YIHE Group for the year ending
31 December 2016 is higher than
HK$7,000,000 or if the net profit
of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be
allotted and issued will be reduced
on a pro-rata basis. No allotment and
issuance will take place if the YIHE
Group suffers loss for the year ending
31 December 2016.

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company’s shares
to the Hexin if the net profit of
YIHE Group for the year ending
31 December 2017 is higher than
HK$7,000,000 or if the net profit
of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be
allotted and issued will be reduced
on a pro-rata basis. No allotment and
issuance will take place if the YIHE
Group suffers loss for the year ending
31 December 2017.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE
WEEHE = (&)
WEEEH (&)
(i) ES£H(#)

B L -

SAREBLHFRBUTRE

(i) WEAEBEBRER
—E—-XRNE+=-A8
=t+—BULEFEZ4
#1145 Bl & 747,000,000
BT WEAEEZ
4 F) 20 547,000,000/
T AEEGREE R
%% 17118,320,0008%
KRB’ BHFEMR:
15T Be 8 R BT 2 R
9 1 ¥ Lo 5] 38 R o ik
BEEBREE=ZT
—RETZA=+—
AEFESRZEIE"
B4 IR % I B 1T R

1/'\ o

(i) WEAEEREZE
—E—+tHF+ =8
“t—HLEFEZ4
F = 77,000,000/ 7T
LMEAEE T
> 1A7,000,0005% 7T -
AR B S BB BT
118,320,000 A A &)
B Fam: & Fie
BREBEITZRGEIE
LB AR ME A
EREE-_ZT—+F
+ZA=+—HILHF
EXZEHE BER
BNEITRR D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

Br R SRR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-—T—

EFE+-A=1T—RHILFE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)
(i)

Acquisition of a business (continued)
YIHE Group (continued)

Note: (continued)

(iii)

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company’s shares to
the Hexin if the net profit of the
YIHE Group for the year ending 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018 respectively
is higher than HK$7,000,000 or if the
net profit of the YIHE Group is less
than HK$7,000,000, the shares to be
allotted and issued will be reduced
on a pro-rata basis. No allotment and
issuance will take place if the YIHE
Group suffers loss for the year ending
31 December 2018.

40. WEMHEATR (&)
(b) WX (&)
(i) EHEEE (&)
MisE: (&)
iy WEEEBEREZR
—E—-—XR"HF+=ZH
=t+—H - ZZT—+

F+-_A=+—8BEK
ZZE-NF+=A
=t+—RHRLEFEZH
F= 77,000,000/ 7T
NMMEEEE 2R
4> 127,000,000 7T »
AN A BB R AT
118,320,0000% A2 7]
RO TEM & TR
B REBIT 2RO iR
LE IR - T E A

EREE T )\F
+ZA=+—H1LF

EEXEE BER
B RETRMG -
HK$'000
FHET
Classification of contingent U EE EIH TR 2
consideration payable as at ERSAREZ S
completion of the acquisition
Current BPER 5,065
Non-current JERNER 9,099
14,164
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. UREE MTJ'E ANF (8E)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) N 2R (8])
(i) YIHE Group (continued) (i) EELEHF (&)

Details of calculation of contingent ERAEMNSKAREBZTE
consideration payable are set out int R FF ISR 3E41 -
note 41.
The fair values of identifiable assets BEEEEMAEZRRFTK
acquired and liabilities of the YIHE Group BEERBENKERH
recognised as at the date of acquisition R RNFEMET
were as follows:

HK$'000

FTAT

Intangible assets BmEEE 6,416
Trade and other receivables JFEE UK B R % L A JE UK SR TE 421
Trade and other payables JRE A<F B SRR % L At JE A< TR IE (30)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE (1,059)
Net assets FEE 5,748

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

The fair value of trade and other
receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to approximately
HK$421,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other
receivables acquires amounted to
approximately HK$421,000 at the date
of acquisition.

JFE LAY AR K B L At P W Rk 1B
RKEEHBH 2 AFENR
421,000 Lo R UK BE B
Hi - 2 SRR WBR SR R EoAtb
JEMFIEM B E KSR
5&421,00058 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. WEBHEBAR (&)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) WHEBEK (&)
(i) YIHE Group (continued) (i) EEEHF (&)

Goodwill arising on acquisition: Wi B A PR
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred EEERE 22,438

Plus: non-controlling interests N FEER AR SR A 5

(30% in YIHE) (REEHEA30%) 1,724
Less: net assets acquired B FTIE R B E (5,748)
18,414

The non-controlling interests in YIHE REERBERNES S

Group recognised at acquisition date
was measured by their proportionate
share of net assets acquired.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of YIHE
Group because the cost of combination
included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for
the combination effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefits of
expected synergies, revenue growth
and future market development and the
assembled workforce of YIHE Group.
These benefits are not recognised

BT R S R IR E
1 P W g 5 & B Y L

SHE-

BEEASEEENEHE
Th A& GFRCAS B HE 1R Bt
(B tHh - B BT
BEERLLBREEAKE
H T8 5 16 R 24 - Mk a4
EMARERMGEHR MK
TAFSREMEE B
SRR FMaE W EER
BoRER DERZS
M AR A AR E

separately from goodwill because they BERERIZLE.
do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets
HK$'000
T
Net cash outflow on WEEEEEMNR ML FHE
acquisition of YIHE Group -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued)

(i)

YIHE Group (continued)

Included in the loss for the year was
approximately HK$398,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by
the YIHE Group. Revenue for the year
includes approximately HK$289,000
generated from YIHE Group.

Had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, total revenue of
the Group for the year would have
been approximately HK$66,181,000,
and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$60,264,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1
January 2015, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

WEEKIB A E (&)
(b) WEEIS ()

(i) EHEEE (&)
FEEBERERESAEE
B EBRFTELENL
398,000/8 7t ° F E WA
PREEAEEMEENY
289,000/ JT °

MUBBER T —hHF—
A—HEK  BIAEBRF
E B %= 49 566,181,000
BT MEEEBBEBNA
60,264,000 L BEE &
HLhERSBEAR BT
—EAERBEENR_Z
—AF—A—BEKMA
SEERERER 2
RiEEEBE IR TE
BIERRKREE 2TEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE

40.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. WEKEB AT (&)
(b)  Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) WHEBEK (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHEr—F—mFE+-—H=4+—H
IFFE
(i)  Fujian Seton (i) EEEE
On 4 November 2014, Ye Lei Investment N-ZZE—WE+— A
Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (f# B EZIEEERCEYD
ZHREBH(FI)BERRA), BERAR(ARARANEE
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of WEAR) ([EF])H
the Company (the “Purchaser”), and YT R EBR A A
Shenzhen Seton Investment Co., Ltd., (—FERFPEEFMK 2
a company incorporated in PRC with nE)) REERZ LT (518
limited liability and Ms. Liu Shu Feng BIEH] )M R EE
(collectively, the “Vendors”) entered into Wik B E AR EWEE
share transfer agreements pursuant to rEFRELEEREMR
which the Purchaser agreed to acquire WEBARAR (—ERH
and the Vendors agreed to sell the Btz 2 BR AR
entire equity interest in Fujian Seton e BREAA
Investment Co., Ltd. (B2 M RIKRER R #3,600,0007T (B8R
FR/A®]), a company incorporated in 4,597,200 70) ([ BE
PRC with limited liability, at an aggregate EIH]|) o
consideration of RMB3,600,000
(equivalent to HK$4,597,200) (the
" Acquisition”).
Details of the Acquisition were set out EAWEEENFEHRN
in the announcement of the Company AKABBHAE-—ZT—NE
dated 4 November 2014, +— A BH A
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred: CEERE:
Cash Re 4,597
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. WEMB AT (&)
(b) Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) WEBER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 Br—_ZF—pmFEf+—_H=+—H
(continued) IFFE (&)
(i) Fujian Seton (continued) (i) B (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets BENBERNUEE B R
and liabilities of Fujian Seton recognised AR EELBERA
as at the date of acquisition were as FEEWMT:
follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
Wit HE B
EEH
NE
HK$'000
FET
Plant and equipments = M i 414
Investment properties WEME 3,821
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 53
Other receivables and
prepayment H b fE W IE R TR AT R 136
Accruals and other payables FEEH & A % B h FE < /18 (735)
Net assets FEE 3,689
Goodwill arising on acquisition  Ux &% E A Ry & 908
None of the goodwill arising on MEgREEENEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

the acquisitions was expected to be
deductible for tax purpose.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition
of Fujian Seton because the cost of
the combination included the future
market development and the assembled
workforce of Fujian Seton. These
benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they did not
meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

HA 3 R FRL R IR ©

WEEERREEHE:
LTy A R A BIR
R 5 % R AR iR R A
RAEET -ZENaETE
EE BB R W
REBMBEL RTEAIE
B R R E R R AR

Al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHz_Z—AF+-A=1+—HLLEE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

40.

(b)

40.

BB E AR (&)

Acquisition of a business (continued) (b) WEBHEWK (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHEr—F—mFE+-—H=4+—H
(continued) IFFE(E)
(i)  Fujian Seton (continued) (i) EBEEE (&)
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash outflow in WiERE AR R TR
acquisition of Fujian Seton:
Cash consideration ReRE (4,597)
Less: Bank balances and B IRTTEE R R FTIEEIR &
cash acquired 53
(4,544)

Included in the loss for the year was
approximately HK$212,000 attributable
to the additional business generated
by Fujian Seton. Revenue for the year
includes approximately HK$40,000
generated from Fujian Seton.

Had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2014, total revenue of
the Group for the year would have
been approximately HK$45,542,000,
and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$29,519,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1
January 2014, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.
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212,000/ 70 FE WA
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40,000 7T °
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BT O MEEEBROA
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
The contingent consideration arrangement has the
following requirements:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the Group will allot and issue the 118,320,000
Company's shares to Hexin if the net profit of
YIHE Group for the year ending 31 December
2016 is higher than HK$7,000,000 or if the
net profit of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be allotted and
issued will be reduced on a pro-rata basis. No
allotment and issuance will take place if the
YIHE Group suffers loss for the year ending 31
December 2016.

the Group will allot and issue the 118,320,000
Company’s shares to Hexin if the net profit
of the YIHE Group for the year ending 31
December 2017 is higher than HK$7,000,000
or if the net profit of the YIHE Group is less
than HK$7,000,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata basis.
No allotment and issuance will take place if the
YIHE Group suffers loss for the year ending 31
December 2017.

the Group will allot and issue the 118,320,000
Company'’s shares to Hexin if the net profit
of the YIHE Group for the year ending 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 respectively is higher than
HK$7,000,000 or if the net profit of the YIHE
Group is less than HK$7,000,000, the shares to
be allotted and issued will be reduced on a pro-
rata basis. No allotment and issuance will take
place if the YIHE Group suffers loss for the year
ending 31 December 2018.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

41. ENHARE

SRR EBLHABEUATRE:

i)y WEAEEREBEZE-_ZT—XF
TAZ+RALEFEZHEFS
727,000,000 Tk i B & £ B 2
#5F > 727,000,00058 T - B AR &
B2 A2 &% 317118,320,000% 4
NAERHD AR Mg FERER
BT BRD RO - HE
AEBREE-_T—XRE+_A
=+t HILFEHRFERSR IR
BRI TGHEITo

iy WEEEEREBZ-_Z—tF
T A=+ HLEFEZH&FS
77,000,000 Lk EE SE 2
#E 7  $27,000,00078 7T - BII AN &
B =il s % E17118,320,0008% 4
REIRGD FTEMR - M T %R
BT 2RO B ARD - WE
AEBREBE-_ZT—+F+_A
=+—RIEFEHEFEE A
BRBEITTIEET

(i) WMEEEEIFIREBEE=_T—X
F+-_HA=+—H8 —F—+F
+-A=Z+—H —ZZE—N\#F
TZAZ+RALEFEZHEFS
727,000,000 TSk i B & £ B 2
#5F > 747,000,00058 7T - B AR &
B2 A2 &% 317118,320,000% 4
NARHD TEMR Mg FERER
BT BRDBRLOIR D - HE
AEBREE_T—N\F+_A
= t+t—HILFEHRFESR IR
BREBEITTGHEITo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

S
41.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration
arrangement of approximately HK$14,164,000 was
estimated by applying the income approach. The
fair value estimates are based on the volatility of the
Company's shares ranged from 36.8% to 41.3% and
assumed that the YIHE Group has reached the net
profit of less than HK$7,000,000 for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
respectively. This is classified as a level 3 fair value
measurement.

As of 31 December 2015, there was a decrease in
contingent consideration payable of approximately
HK$999,000 recognised in profit or loss, as the price
per share of the Company’'s has been decreased
as at 31 December 2015 compared with the value
at the date of completion. The carrying amount of
contingent consideration payable is approximately
HK$13,165,000 as at 31 December 2015.
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41.

BARAKRE (&)

HAREBLHMNRFEL14,164,0008
TR AR AEGE - A ARG TIE
AR BT F36.8%E41.3%H) K
BYBRRXESEEREE-Z— X F"
2+ FERZTE - N\F+ZA=1T—
H1E=EFE % FaaeF|2 17,000,000
BB ERE=RAQFEE

=
=z°

R_E—RE+_A=+—HB @R
ARARBOZERERNR =T —RAF
+-A=1+—HEBEKBHEBEEA
T MEMNSIARER BT ERR
4>#9999,000/% T o FE S sk AR B BRE
BERZZE—RAFT-_A=+—HLOA

13,165,000/ 7T °

|wu



42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has entered

(a)

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

42. BEALXRS
(a) PFREREMBHRKRABEEEIN K
SEFRNEBAEALIINATE

into the following significant transactions with KL 5
related parties during the year:
NEEWE XHEME 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Top Status (Note 1) Loan interest expense paid - 64
Top Status (FFEE1) ERNERMEZ T
Sino Coronet Limited (Note 2) CB-l interest expense paid 265 719
REBR AT (HEE2) B AR EF1F B
Luck Bloom (Note 3) Loan interest expense paid - 29
Luck Bloom (Fff#F3) ERERAE X
Bright Kingdom Consultancy fee paid 600 527
International Limited (Note 4)
EEER AR QA (M54) EfEREA
Wonderful Future Investments Purchase of plant and - 260
Limited (Note 5) equipment
ERIRE AR AR (MEES) BERE L&E
East Grand Limited (Note 6) Purchase of plant and - 980
equipment
BRRAR AR (KEEe) BERE L&RE
Note 1:  Top Status is the shareholder of the BfsE1 © Top Status B RIARER o
Company.
Note 2:  The beneficial owner of Sino Coronet Mizx2: SEERAFTNERES
Limited is connected to a director of the ANBERNG—ZREEER
Company. 38 o
Note 3: Luck Bloom is the former fellow MizE3 : Luck BloomA&7Z A & [F &
subsidiary of the Company. EIEENEI
Note 4:  Bright Kingdom International Limited Mizx4 : EBEBEBRRARAFEAD
is connected with the director of the BEEHRME-
Company.
Note 5:  Wonderful Future Investments Limited BIEES :  SEEHSE AR AR EAA
is connected with the director of the EEEME-
Company.
Note 6: East Grand Limited is connected with the MizFe: EREABRATEANTE

director of the Company.

=EEME-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company

42. BEALXRS (&)
(b) FESEASLH

FARRRIZEERTREEEH

and other members of key management during Rk B 7 BN T :
the year was as follows:

2015 2014
“B-HFE —TmF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Short-term benefits 55 HR 4B A 6,682 4,827
Post-employment benefits B A EEEA 96 100
6,778 4,927

The remuneration of directors of the Company
and other members of key management is
determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE DT BB E
COMPANY
2015 2014
—®F-HF —FOF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET
Non-current asset FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTB AR 2 E 135 135
Current assets MENVEE
Other receivables H {th i Uy SR8 325 317
Amounts due from ) S NGIE Q]
subsidiaries 126,101 15,120
Bank balances and cash BITEBREES 22,653 25,010
149,079 40,447
Current liabilities mEEaE
Other payables H h fE 1~ 3KIB 1,777 1,306
Amounts due to subsidiaries B R RFRIA 14,099 15,268
Convertible bonds Al AR E 5 751 -
16,627 16,574
Net current assets mENEE TR 132,452 23,873
Total assets less current liabilities B &ER TS EE 132,587 24,008
Non-current liability EREBARE
Convertible bonds Al A E 5 53,397 16,970
Net assets FEE 79,190 7,038
Capital and reserves BEARR B
Share capital % 7 90,574 51,177
Reserves Tt (a) (11,384) (44,139)
Total equity AR 79,190 7,038
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. EAAQAFEBBHRRE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(@) Reserves (a) B
Equity
component Share
Share  of convertible option Special Accumulated
premium bonds reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES
RGEE BEHS BRERE Rl EH | &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TEL
(Note 31) (Note 38)
(B3E31) (F3E38)
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-m5-A-H 45,729 29,651 - 28,769 (162,947) (58,798)

Loss for the year, representing ~ AFEHE MAXFE
total comprehensive expense 2EFALAE

for the year - - - - (122,910) (122,910)
Placing of new shares REMR (H3330))

(Note 33(b)) 134,400 - - - - 134,400
Transaction costs attributable to ~ EE&EH k2 X ZH A

placing of new shares (4,502) - - - - (4,502)
Recognition of equity component TR Bk EH 7 EEHH

of convertible bonds (Note 31 (Fi5¥31) - 7,671 - - - 7,671
At 31 December 2014 WZE-RF+-A=1-H 175,627 37,322 - 28,769 (285,857) (44,139)
At 1 January 2015 R-E-RF—-HF-AH 175,627 37,322 - 28,769 (285,857) (44,139)

Loss for the year, representing ~ AFEEE HATEE
total comprehensive expense 2EFRTLE

for the year - - - - (86,042) (86,042)
Issue of shares upon conversion %A AR EHEE TR

of convertible bonds (F3E336)

(note 33(f)) (1,920) (21,056) - - - (22,976)
Issue of shares upon acquisiion ~ MEER AMEREITRN

of the investment property (B3E33(0))

(note 33(c)) 11,646 - - - - 11,646
Placing of new shares REIR (H33()

(note 33(d)) 113,220 - - - - 113,220
Transaction costs attributable to ~ BREFTE 2 X BMA

placing of new shares (1,258) - - - - (1,258)
Issue of shares in consideration  E{TRNEAYENBAR

for the acquisition of HRE (ME33e)

subsidiaries (note 33(e)) 7,213 - - - - 7213
Recognition of equity ATRRES  BRHH

component of convertible (Fita31)

bonds (note 31) - 8,652 - - - 8,652
Recognition of equity-settled BRNEREERARG

share based payments BEBRRR (M538)

(note 38) = = 2,300 - - 2,300
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-R%+=f=+-H 304,528 24918 2,300 28,769 (371,899) (11,384)

The Company has no distribution reserves as at RZE—RAFR-ZZT—NFEF+=A
31 December 2015 and 2014. =t B ARERER DI
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44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

44. HEARFRE (&)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEARER BERAERS EMAY/E¥4% ERTRERRE ANABERAERELA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
B B
2015 2014 2015 2014
“%-1f -T-O% Z®-If “T-F
Kama Business Holdings Limited ~ Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - One-stop value chain
US$1 services
Kama Business Holdings Limited ~ BB EE A7) REENES 1ET LRk — WA BEERY
Anson Development Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Group administration
HK$100
RIEERBERAA BRERAR i 100% 702 SR cEER
Hoi Fan Investment Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Inactive (note 4)
Us$1
SMREFRAA ARERRR REENES [Era:3:1 TEE (M)
Goodlink Corporation Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  One-stop value chain
HK$1 services
BEERLR ARERRR i 1B LRk — WA BEERY
Golden Jack Development Limited  Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - 100% - - Inactive
Us$1
Golden Jack Development Limited BB E A7) REENES 1ET LRk EELEK
Grand Protection Holdings Limited ~ Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Us$1
ERERERAT BRERRR REENES [Erd:3:1) RERR
Alpaco Company Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
Us$1
Alpaco Company Limited BREFAR REENES [Era:i:1) BENE
Kaley Development Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Inactive (note 3)
Us$1
FRERERAT BRERRR REENES [Era:i:1) TEEH (WH3)
Cyberpress Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Inactive (note 3)
HK$100
FHERAF BREALH Bk 100 T2 EBR TEER (Hi3)
Elite Rising Holdings Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of - 100% - - Inactive (note 4)
Us$1
Elite Rising Holdings Limited EREMARF RERAES ESva= e TEER (M)
Prima Target Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of - - - 100%  Inactive (note 4)
Us$1
Prima Target Limited EREMARF RERAES ESva= e TEEH (M)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, MEBRATHE (8)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEARER RREERA HMRYL/ E4% BRTRARRA ANABERAERELY TEXH

Directly Indirectly
BB 5
2015 2014 2015 2014

-1 -T-mF =—B-FF -T-QOF

Jade Cedar Enterprises Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of - 100% - - Inactive (note 4)
Uss1
Jade Cedar Enterprises Limted AR EEAF) RERIES [EPa:3:1d EEER (i)
Wide Graceful Holdings Limited ~ Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Uss1
Wide Graceful Holdings Limited ~ R EEA ) RERIES [EPa:3:1d RERR
Joy Gold Trading Enterprises Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited Uss1
LEEHEEERRT BREMART ABRRAE 1XTZEBR AR
Ever Chance Management Limited  Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Group administration
HK$10,000
BEERERAA EREERA & 7010,0002 E Mk £HER
King Health Trading Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Trading of consumables
HK$1 and agricultural
products
REEHERAR AREERR i BT ERR EREAREERES
Ease Chance Investment Limited ~ Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
EEREARAA AREERR i 10,0008 72 £ MR REBR
Sky Success International Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited HK$100
AABRREFRAR AREERR i 100872 &R REBR
Skyline Best Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Uss$1
AEEBRAE AREERR RERAES (B3 REBR
Wise Success Holdings Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$50,000
Wise Success Holdings Limited BREEAR EERAHE 50,000 7.2 &Mk REBR
King Noble Holdings Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$50,000
King Noble Holdings Limited BREEAR EERAHE 50,000 7.2 &Mk REBR
Fine Champion Holdings Limited  Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$50,000
Fine Champion Holdings Limited ~ BREF AR EERAHE 50,000 7.2 &Mk REBR
On Good Investment Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
REREAERAR AREERR i 10,0008 72 SR REBR
Glory Delights Investment Limited  Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
EAREERAT AREERR i 10,0008 72 SR REBR

226 china Eco-Farming Limited PEIBEEREFR AT
Annual Report 2015 —Z—AF Fif



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, MEBRATHE (8)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEARAR BREERA HRRYL/ E$n% BRTRARRA RARRARARERLA TEXH

Directly Indirectly
B 5
2015 2014 2015 2014

-E-nf -T-NF CB-FE -T-QF

Total Famous Investment Limited  Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
PREAERAR EREERA R 10,000 7T 2 £k RERR
All Ready Holdings Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Uss$1
All Ready Holdings Limited BREAAT RERIES [Ewd:3:1 RERR
Luster Shine Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Uss$1
Luster Shine Limited EREMAR EERLES [Ewd:3:1 RERR
Skyline Top Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Uss$1
REBERAR EREERA ABRRAE XL EBR RERR
Great Hero Global Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% 100%- - - Investment holding
Uss$1
BIERRERAR BREALH ABRRAE XL EBR RERR
Global Brands Management Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 51% 51%  Brands management
Limited HK$500,000
REREERERAT BREART i 500,000% 0.2 mEER
Splendor Health Holdings Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited Uss1
FRERERAT BRAERH RERAES 1R EBR REZK
Konson Global Investments Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited US$50,000
RERRREABRAR BRAERH RERAES 50,0005 7T 2 & REZK
Union World International Group  Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited HK$10,000
BRERERARAR BRAERH & 10,0008 72 £ MR REZK
Top Yield Properties Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
HK$1
HMEEXERAA BRAERH EE BTz EBR RENE
ERBIRERARAR Limited liability Talwan Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100% Property holding
BLARE NTD 1,000,000
EEBFRERARAR ERERAA B H18%1,000,00070 BENE
AtHRR BB
RRHRRZEARAR Limited liability PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
RMB10,000,000
BRHAREBRAR EREERA ikl AR 10,000,007 L RES
LERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HLEFE

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, MEBRATHE (8)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEARER RREERA HMRYL/ E4% BRTRARRA ANABERAERELY TEXH

Directly Indirectly
BB 5
2015 2014 2015 2014

-1 -T-mF =—B-FF -T-QOF

BRREFAORNERDR  Limited liability PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RMB3,283,453
(2014:
RMB1,706,473)
BEREFACMINERRT  EREARA HE AR#3,2834537 RERK
ZHRER
(Z2-m%F:
ARE1,70647370)
JERERA Y ERAR  Limited liability PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
RMB100,000
BEREFH (RIERRE  AREEAR HE AR#100,0007.2 BENE
BREK
REREFA RIBRAT  Limited liability PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
RMB100,000
REREFA (R ERAT  BAREERA HE AR100,0007.2 BENE
BHRER
AEREEENERLRA Limited liability Taiwan Ordinary shares of - - 50.75% 59.75%  Trading of agricultural
BRAR NTD 10,000,000 products
REREEENRALRG BREARH = #12%10,000,0007C RERRS
BRAT BB
Delightful Hope Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - - 50% - Investment holding
(note 1,2) US$100
FRERLA EREERA ABRRAE 100572 £ Bk AR
(H31,2)
China Smart Asia Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 50% - Investment holding
(note 1,2) HKS$1
EABNERAA AREERR i BT ERR REBR
(B#1, 2)
Shenzhen Shengshi Fugiang Limited liability PRC Ordinary shares of - - 50% - Property Holding
Technology Co., Ltd US$5,000,000
(note 1,2)
RTEEERMRERAE  BREERA HE 5,000,000 T2 & BENE
(HsE1, 2) bilis
Main supreme Limited (note 1) Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% - - - Inactive
Uss1
Main supreme Limited (#3E1)  BREFAH RERLES IETZEBR i3
Far Eastern Finance Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% - Inactive
(note 1) HK$10,000
BRUBARAR (1) BREMART 2 10,0003 7T 2 £k BEXH
Harmony Alliance Holdings Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% - - - Inactive
Limited (note 1) Uss1
Harmony Alliance Holdings BRERRR RERIES [EPa:3:1d LEEH
Limited (1)
Kingtop Asia Investment Limited  Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% - Inactive
(note 1) HKS$1
BRREFRAA (K1) AREERR i BT ERR RS 3
Glory Luck Holdings Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 51% - Inactive
(note 1) HK$10,000
HEREARAF (HiE) AREERR B 10,0008 72 SR RS 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, MEBRATHE (8)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEARER BREERA EMAY/E¥4% ERTRERRA ANABERAERELS TEXH

Directly Indirectly
B 5
2015 2014 2015 2014

-E-nf -T-NF CB-FE -T-QF

Gold Goal International Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% - - - Inactive
(note 1) US$1
Gold Goal International Limited ~ ERETAT EERAES [Ewd:3:1 LEEH
(PzET)
Success Royal Investment Limited  Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% - Inactive
(note 1) HK$1
SRREERAA (M) BRAERH & BT ERR RS 3
Fantastic Alliance Investments Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% - - - Inactive
Limited (note 1) Us$1
Fantastic Alliance Investments EREMEAR EERAES 1R Bk EELK
Limited ( Hiz1)
Sino Eco Green Limited (note 1) Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% - Inactive
HK$1
PRERERAF (FE1) EREERA R BT Bk BEXH
YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of - - 70% - Inactive
Limited (note 1) US$50,000
HACEERAERAR (Hd1) BREERT ABRRAE 50,0005 7T LBk BEXH
Huge Famous Corporation Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 70% - Inactive
Limited (note 1) HK$1
#EERAR (M) EREERA R BT Bk BEXH
Maxford Wealth Limited (note 1) Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% - - - Inactive
Uss$1
Maxford Wealth Limited (1i1)  AREFERR EERLES [Ewa:3:1 LEEH
Kingview Master Limited (note 1) Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of 100% - - - Inactive
Uss$1
Kingview Master Limited (fi3E1)  BREFAE RRRUES 1B LR EEEEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g e ek

For the year ended 31 December 2015

)
HE

44.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities
at the end of both years.

Notes:

Being the subsidiaries acquired or incorporated
during the year ended 31 December 2015. For
acquisition of subsidiaries, details are disclosed in
note 40.

The Group owns 50% equity shares in Delightful
Hope, Smart Asia and Shenzhen Shengshi Fugiang
Technology Co., Limited (the
Group”). However, the Group is able to exercise the
control over the board of directors of the Delightful
Hope Group as the Group is able to appoint 2
out of 3 directors of Delightful Hope through the
shareholder’s agreement. Accordingly, they are
classified as subsidiaries.

“Delightful Hope

The subsidiaries were inactive and classified as
discontinued operations during the year ended
31 December 2015. Details are set out in note 10.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
subsidiary was de-registered.

230 china Eco-Farming Limited PEIBEEREFR AT

Annual Report 2015 —Z —

REFR

44,

B~ RS ()

X P B 4 2 K - AR P B A R B 34T
TR EHE

B 2

1. BE-F-AFT-_A=t+-BL#F

J;HSZ,E%EJZEIHHEX_LE’UWJ% al-HH
U RE T8 2 RO RH IS BB IO MY 5540 ©

AEENRF B EARRNTHRERE
BHRBERAB([FhEE])ESR
50% A% o AT - AN SR I BE SR
BRRBAEZE=REEFTHORNEE
F HARBEAEREIEFRHEEZE

SITEEGE A HEDER
ER=NGIE

REE-Z—AF+=-A=+—H1t
FE- ;Ziﬂfﬁ%@ RIEEER Wk
DEACKRIEKEER BHFER
HEIEE10 -

BHE_ZT—
E M B A

hE+ZA=+—HIF
AIEEUH M -



45.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
convertible bonds incurred an imputed interest
of approximately HK$3,947,000 (2014:
HK$2,364,000).

During the year ended 31 December
2014, CB-ll in the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 was issued by the Company to
acquire a subsidiary, Konson Group, as partial
settlement. Details are disclosed in note 31.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
CB-lll and CB-IV in the principal amount of
HK$46,500,000 were issued by the Company
to acquire a subsidiary, Smart Asia, as partial
settlement. Details are disclosed in note 31.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
53,040,000 shares of the Company with par
value of HK$0.02 each were issued to acquire
a subsidiary, YIHE, as partial settlement. Details
are disclosed in note 40.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a
subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party for the purchase of an investment
property located in the PRC with fair value of
RMB10,322,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$12,902,000 and was settled by allotment
and issuance of 62,800,000 ordinary shares.
Details of the acquisition are set in note 17(a).

During the year, the Group entered into a
mortgage loan arrangement with a bank in
respect of the investment property located
in Taiwan with a total borrowing amount of
approximately HK$9,581,000.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

45. FEFRERH

@ #BE-_Z-—AF+-_A=+-—
HIEFE IR EHE LB
F8.493,947,0008 T (== —
12,364,000/ 70 ) °

b #HE-Z-—-NF+-_A=+-—
HIEFE AAREITASER
20,000,000/ T 2 A R EH =
HAEKE-—HNBARRESEE
MEIT  1ERBDERN - FIBHE
N IS

© #BE-_Z—HEF+-_A=+-—
BIEFE ARAIBRTEASER
46,500,000/ 7T 2 AJ MR E 75 =
Ty B — B A B A B
17 1EREL D ENR - FFHIE B BT
5E31 o

d #HE-_ZT-—HF+-A=+—H
WEFE AR E RIS — B
NAIEAMEITEREME.02H
JC2.53,040,0008% B% 17 + 1 & £B
DER - B R BN MIFE40 -

) #HE-_EZ-—AF+-A=+—H
LHFE - AAGMBARE—F
BYE=FAIMNE B AR
B—HEURFEAEEYSE (K
RNFEAAREE10,322,00070
(F8E 7 #912,902,000% 7T) )
I LA Bt B 1% 3% 7762,800,000% A
AElERBR S -EHEKEEE
MEFBE NI FE17@)

f) FR - AEERUREENKRE
WEEIRTEI I BERZHE
& N AR%E %) 59,581,00078 It °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE
46.

—T-REFTA=T—HILFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Formation of Right Ocean Asia Limited

On 4 February 2016, Maxford Wealth Limited
("Maxford Wealth”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement
(the “JV Agreement”) with (i) the non-controlling
shareholder (the “Shareholder”) of Right Ocean
Asia Limited (“Right Ocean”), an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company established
after year and date, (i) spouse of the Shareholder
as a guarantor and (i) Right Ocean, in which the
Shareholder shall procure Chan Kee Holdings Limited
("Chan Kee") to enter into (i) the sole distributorship
agreement for the sole and exclusive distributorship to
Right Ocean for the sale and distribution of the food
products in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan; and (ii)
trademark license agreement with the Company by
which a license will be granted to the Company to
utilise the trademark for the purpose of distribution
and sales in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

In the meantime, a shareholder loan agreement was
entered between Maxford Wealth and Right Ocean,
pursuant to which Maxford Wealth has agreed to
lend a loan of HK$11,000,000 to Right Ocean, with a
fixed interest rate of 5% per annum and repayable on
demand.

Another loan agreement was entered between
Right Ocean and Chan Kee, pursuant to which Right
Ocean has agreed to lend a loan of HK$6,000,000
to the trademark owner, Chan Kee, with his personal
guarantee, an interest rate of 7% per annum,
repayable within 36 months after drawdown for
business operation.

Details are set out in the announcement of the
Company’s announcement dated 4 February 2016.
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46.

47.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

Disposal of an investment property

As disclosed in note 26, the Group entered and signed
a sales and purchases agreement with an independent
third party to dispose one of the investment properties
held by the Group and located in the PRC with fair
value of RMB9,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,408,000 as at 31 December 2015. The sales
proceed is amounted to RMB9,700,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$11,408,000) while the sale
less cost of disposal is amounted to RMB9,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,290,000).
Deposit of approximately RMB2,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,293,000) has been received
and included in trade and other payable as at 31
December 2015. Details are set out in note 26.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the retrospective adjustment of the
discontinued operations during the year, certain
comparative figures have been restated to conform
with the current year’s presentation.

46.

47.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—RF+-A=1+—HLEE

BREMEREE(A)

HEREME

BN E26FTH T A EEBE — B
VEZFHIULEZEBEEHHE LD
EREEMBAR —FECLAFEE
BEME ZWMER_ZT—RHFE+=R
=t+—H®AFERARKI700,000
7T (& 7 #911,408,00058 7T ) - £ &
FT13 38 & A E#9,700,0007T (&
7 #711,408,0005% 7T ) + i1 88 & 8 H &
AR A A R #9,600,0007T (& R4
11,290,000/87L) - R =T —HF+=A
=+—H BEL AK%2,800,0007T
(& R #93,293,000/8 7T) 2 &2 & W 5t
AERRF R EMERKIE - BEFIS
BRFIEE26 ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHRE

The following is a summary of the published results and
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial

AT R3Z T O P s R R AN BB T
hEMBERE 2 TI#XENEELA BN

years prepared on the basis set out in the notes below. 2o
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1t-BHLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1f —ZT-QmF 2= —F--f Z—E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FEL FTEL FEL TET
Continuing operations BEREER
Turnover EEB 59,748 45,541 19,194 20,798 27,223
Profit (Loss) before taxation BRHETER (BE) (55,837) (28,799) (25,745) (21,046) (12,636)
Taxation M (2,863) 48) (15) - (22)
Profit (Loss) after tax from REFELCEEBOKRTEZ
continuing operations wmFl (B8) (58,700) (28,847) (25,760) (21,046) (12,658)
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Profit (Loss) after tax from RECR RS EBH
discontinued operations BREEER (BE) (1,051) - - - -
Profit (Loss) for the year FREH (BR) (59,751) (28,847) (25,760) (21,046) (12,658)
Non-controlling interests FEERRRER 537 1,454 14 - -
Profit (Loss) attributable to AREERREE ARG R
equity shareholders of (B#E)
the Company (59,214) (27,393) (25,746) (21,046) (12,658)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BEE BERIFERBREES
INTERESTS
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HILEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-Hf —T-mf —%-=f T ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTAET FTET TET
Total asset BEE 387,399 164,701 27,276 13,700 20,592
Total liabilities BEE (113,534) (29,655) (16,787) (31,098) (38,019)
Non-controlling interest FERR R R (46,235) 1,448 14 - -
Equity attributable to KRR HEB ARG ER
owners of the Company 227,630 136,494 10,503 (17,398) (17,427)

The summary above does not form part of the audited

financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
BEYHE

At 31 December 2015
RZE—RF+=-HA=+—H

Location Type Lease Term Effective held
il 2 BE HEH BERESE
Hong Kong

&

Flat C, 29/F, Tower 3, Sky Tower, Residential long-term lease 100%

No. 38 Sung Wong Toi Road,

To Kwa Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong,

together with a car-parking space

No. R206 on the second floor of

the same building

EENELNE F=x A 100%
REEBE38

R E3E291E CE

HERUNZET _BNREM

(#m5%R206)

Unit 8D, TML Tower, 3 Hoi Shing Road, Industrial medium-term lease 100%

Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEMALEEEEREIRTMUESSDE T A 100%

PRC
H

Unit 12F, 12th Floor, Residential medium-term lease 100%
Block A, EPI Residences,
Futian District, Shenzhen,

PRC

mERIITIEH R T=E i Hf 100%
RBEEH L HBE

E12[EARE12FRE

Fulong Garden, Houhai Village, Commercial and long-term lease 100%
Baigi Country, Quanzhou Residential

Taiwanese Impediment Zone,
Fujian Province comprising

flats 3005 to 3012 of

commercial and

residential building

No.1 and flat 2905

of commercial and

residential building No.3
PEERZEARMNEERER [5E4 23 1 100%
Bg &g RE e B 5 (TR
3005F 301257 8 AL &

355 P (£ #29055% B {7
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
BREW=

At 31 December 2015
RZE—RF+=-HA=+—H

Location Type Lease Term Effective held
ith 2h EH HEH BERESR
Room 9-11B, Block 2, Residential long-term 100%
Mangrove West Coast, Binhai Avenue,

Nanshan District, Shenzhen City,

Guangdong Province, PRC

H BRI T R L & = 231 100%
BB REAREABIT R

21%9-11B

Shop Nos. A-02 to A-04, Block 2, Hechang Commercial long-term 100%
Garden, Southeast of the junction of Tian'an

Road and Fengze Street, Fengze District,

Quanzhou City, Fujian Province, PRC.

FEERZERMNMEERR EE3 R H 100%
AL mE2HEIXORMEA

FMETEI2RIEA-02 » A-03 & A-04

Unit 104, Block 4, Shijimingzhu, No.245 Residential long-term 100%
Hualin Road, Chayuan Sub-district, Jin'an

District, Fuzhou City,Fujian Province, PRC.

FEERZEARMNTERE F= R HA 100%
?A%ﬁemiewﬁﬂmssf

42 A ZRAIE 1048 T

Suites A to H on the 33rd Floor of Commercial medium-term lease 50%
Shidai-Caifu Building, Futian District,

Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC

PEERE R TR [GES & HA 50%
AR ERNEIBAZHE

House on Land Lot No. G17102-16 Residential medium-term lease 50%
Shuitousha Village, Nanao Town,

Longgang District, Shenzhen City,

Guangdong Province, the PRC

A B B R A A Y T RE 1 [ F= H HA 50%
R KSR Y

G17102-16°R #5% 2 Rl E2

Taiwan

=P |

Flat A3, 12th Floor, Block A with two car Residential free hold 100%
parking spaces in the building numbered 166

and 167 at Zenith City, Lane 235, Jingmaoer

Road, Nangang District, Taipei City, Taiwan

altTEBRLER23SBHAAEKRE F= KA
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